Tillamook County Transportation District
Board of Directors
Regular Monthly Meeting

October 2018

Thursday, October 18, 2018 at 6:30 PM
Transportation Building

3600 Third St., Ste. A

Tillamook, Oregon






BOARD OF DIRECTORS — REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING
Tillamook County Transportation
Thursday, October 18", 2018
Robert J. Kenny Board Hearing Room
3600 Third St., Ste. A, Tillamook, Oregon

REGULAR MEETING

1.  Callto Order
2.  Pledge of Allegiance

3.  Roll Call

4 Announcements & Changes to Agenda
5 Public & Guest Comments

PUBLIC HEARING

6.  Adoption of Intercity Transit Enhancement Plan
7.  Adoption of TCTD STIF Plan

GENERAL MANAGERS REPORT

8.  Financial Report
9.  Service Performance Report
10.  Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance
11.  STIF
12.  Planning & Development
13.  Grant Funding
14.  Facility/Property Management
15. Miscellaneous

CONSENT

16.  Motion to Approve the Minutes of September 20, 2018 Regular Board Meeting
17.  Motion to Accept Financial Report: September 2018

18.  Motion to Appoint STIF Advisory Committee Membership Application

19. Motion to Approve SDIS 2018 Best Practices Survey

ACTION ITEMS

20. Resolution 18-23 In the Matter of Adopting the TCTD Intercity Transit Enhancement Plan
21.  Resolution 18-24 in the Matter of Adopting the TCTD Statewide Transportation Enhancement Fund
(STIF) Plan

DISCUSSION ITEMS

22.  Sunset Empire Transportation District IGA to use Ecolane
23.  Dial-A-Ride Fare Policy Analysis

24.  Staff Comments/Concerns

25, Board of Directors Comments/Concerns

26.  Adjournment

UPCOMING EVENTS
None

Next regularly scheduled meeting to be held Thursday, November 15, 2018
(Rev.101618)






Tillamook County Transportation District
Normal Trial Balance - Unposted Transactions Included In Report
From 9/1/2018 Through 9/30/2018

Account Code Account Title - Debit Balance Credit Balance
1001 General Checking Account 112,983.08

1006 Payroll Checking 10,164.22
1009 NW RIDES ACCOUNT 184,337.56

1011 Prop. Mgmt. Checking 17,242.39

1020 LGIP - General Account 37,146.58

1030 LGIP - Capital Reserve 796,221.08

1040 Petty Cash . 200.00

Report Total 1,148,130.69 10,164.22
Report Difference 1,137,966.47

Date' 10/9/18 11:49:55 AM MONTHLY BOARD REPORT - CASH Page: 1



Document Document
Number Date

13807 9/7/2018
13807 9/7/2018
13807 9/7/2018
13807 9/7/2018
13808 9/7/2018
13809 9/7/2018
13810 9/7/2018
13811 9/7/2018
13812 9/7/2018
13813 9/7/2018
13814 9/7/2018
13814 9/7/2018
13815 9/7/2018
13816 9/7/2018
13816 9/7/2018
13817 9/7/2018
13818 9/7/2018
13819 9/7/2018
13820 9/7/2018
13820 9/7/2018
13820 9/7/2018
13821 9/7/2018
13822 9/7/2018
13823 9/7/2018
13824 9/7/2018
13825 9/7/2018
13826 9/7/2018
13827 9/7/2018
13827 9/7/2018
13827 9/7/2018
13828 9/7/2018
13829 9/7/2018
13830 9/12/2018
13831 9/12/2018
13832 9/18/2018
13833 9/18/2018
13834 9/18/2018
13835 9/18/2018
13836 9/18/2018
13836 9/18/2018
13837 9/18/2018
13837 9/18/2018
13838 9/18/2018
13838 9/18/2018
13839 9/18/2018
13840 9/18/2018
13841 9/18/2018
13841 9/18/2018
13841 9/18/2018
13842 9/18/2018
13843 9/18/2018
13843 9/18/2018
13844 9/18/2018
13845 9/18/2018
13845 9/18/2018
13845 9/18/2018
13845 9/18/2018

Date: 10/9/18 11:50:15 AM

Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register
1001 - General Checking Account
From 9/1/2018 Through 9/30/2018

Transaction
Amount Payee Transaction Description
1,285.00 ADVANCED DIESEL SERVICE BUS 29 ENGINE WORK
2,086.00 ADVANCED DIESEL SERVICE BUS 34 ENGINE WORK
4,384.00 ADVANCED DIESEL SERVICE BUS 32 ENGINE WORK
436.00 ADVANCED DIESEL SERVICE FUEL ELECTRICAL REPAIR BUS 29
350.00 ALL STARR SIGNS 60x & 70x brochures
212.12 ALSCO - Portland Linen MATT SERVICE
475.00 BIKEPORTLAND.ORG NWOTA
56.53 CAR CARE SPECIALISTS, INC. DEF
889.99 Carquest Auto Parts VEHICLE EXPENSE/INVENTORY
100.58 CHRIS MOTLEY MILEAGE
21.90 CLAYTON NORRBOM TRAINING/MEAL
112.00 CLAYTON NORRBOM ATU PICNIC
1,010.00 Coast Printing & Stationery GRAND RHONDE BROCHURE
50.50 COUNTRY MEDIA ADVERTISING
50.00 COUNTRY MEDIA ADVERTISING
97.01 JERRY BOND MILEAGE FOR BUS 29 NBG TO SAl
3,028.52 LES SCHWAB WAREHOUSE CENTER VEHICLE EXPENSE
104.00 LUM'S AUTO CENTER, INC. SEAT BELT EXTENDER
1,962.61 McCOY FREIGHTLINER RADIATOR
31.07 McCOY FREIGHTLINER inventory
1,301.66 McCOY FREIGHTLINER BUS 301 BRAKES, LUBE OQIL FILTE
18.35 DAVISON AUTO PARTS, INC. VEHICLE EXPENSE
24.00 NEW AGE CAR WASH CAR WASH
1,309.70 PETROCARD INC. FUEL
262.50 Prevailing Communications RADIOS BUS 300 AND 302
16.51 Rosenberg Builders Supply OFFICE SUPPLIES
22,958.24 Sheldon Oil Distributors fuel
46.95 Tillamook Motor Co. van 107 oil change
863.21 Tillamook Motor Co. bus 200 preventive service
328.40 Tillamook Motor Co. lube oil & filter service
49.95 VANIR BROADBAND, INC. INTERNET
274.56 VERIZON tablet data
1,075.05 Marie Mills Center, Inc janitorial
2,726.24 CARDMEMBER SERVICE CARD CHARGES
7,803.00 ADVANCED DIESEL SERVICE ENGINE REPAIR
200.00 BIO-MED TESTING SERVICE, INC. EMPLOYMENT DRUG SCREENS
243.07 BRENT OLSON MILEAGE/OPERATIONS
553.00 Buflard Law, P.C. LEGAL
650.00 Burden's Muffler & Towing TOWING 34
170.00 Burden's Muffler & Towing TOWING 105
29.75 CAR CARE SPECIALISTS, INC. DEF
26.78 CAR CARE SPECIALISTS, INC. DEF
76.86 CHRIS MOTLEY MILEAGE 60X
102.48 CHRIS MOTLEY MILEAGE FOR 60X
24.00 CLAYTON NORRBOM MEAL/TRAINING
850.00 CoastCom, Inc. NWR & TCTD TELEPHONE
50.50 COUNTRY MEDIA ADVERTISING
50.50 COUNTRY MEDIA MARKETING
45.00 COUNTRY MEDIA ADVERTISING
119.01 CRYSTAL AND SIERRA SPRINGS WATER
57.77 DAVID WHEELER MILEAGE 70X
57.77 DAVID WHEELER MILEAGE 70X
50.03 Dish DISH
82.36 FleetPride, Inc. BUS 34 NEW SEAT
21.00 FleetPride, Inc. INVENTORY
769.03 FleetPride, Inc. INVENTORY
192.00 FleetPride, Inc. INVENTORY
Page: 1



Document
Number

13845
13846
13847

13848
13849

13849
13850
13851
13852
13853
13854
13855
13856
13856
13856
13856
13857
13858
13858
13859
13860
13861
13862
13863
13864
13865
13866
13867

Report Total

Date: 10/9/18 11:50:15 AM

Tilamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register
1001 - General Checking Account
From 9/1/2018 Through 9/30/2018

Document Transaction
Date Amount Payee Transaction Description

9/18/2018 84.16 FleetPride, Inc. BUS 302 SEAT REPAIR

9/18/2018 293.00 GenXsys Solutions, LLC LICENSE AND EXCHANGE ONLINE

9/18/2018 475.12 GOVERNMENT ETHICS COMM UNIT 24 OREGON GOVERNMENT ETHICS
7/01/18-06/30/19

9/18/2018 22.99 MAC TOOLS DISTRIBUTING SHOP TOOLS

9/18/2018 52.10 Office Depot Credit Plan TCTD OFFICE SUPPLIES, MONITOI
RISER

9/18/2018 132.75 Office Depot Credit Plan TCTD OFFICE SUPPLIES/DYMO

9/18/2018 297.55 Pacific Office Automation copies

9/18/2018 1,095.58 PETROCARD INC. FUEL

9/18/2018 225.22 Pacific Office Automation COPIER LEASE TCTD

9/18/2018 128.62 ROBERT SOUTHWICK MILEAGE FOR 60X

9/18/2018 2,246.75 SPECIAL DISTRICTS INS. SERVICE WORKERS COMP

9/18/2018 90.47 TABATHA WELCH MILEAGE / TRAINING

9/18/2018 336.00 TILLAMOOK COUNTY SHOPPER, LLC HELP WANTED & FAIR BUS SCHEL

9/18/2018 48.00 TILLAMOOK COUNTY SHOPPER, LLC HELP WANTED

9/18/2018 48.00 TILLAMOOK COUNTY SHOPPER, LLC PUBLIC NOTICE

9/18/2018 48.00 TILLAMOOK COUNTY SHOPPER, LLC HELP WANTED

9/18/2018 220.00 TRANSPORT WISDOM, LTD CDL TESTING

9/18/2018 501.35 Western Bus Sales BUS 200

9/18/2018 69.39 Western Bus Sales VEHICLE EXPENSE

9/20/2018 82.84 KATHLEEN SCHWABE MILEAGE

9/20/2018 87.20 BRENT OLSON MILEAGE

9/21/2018 50.00 Gary A. Hanenkrat (09202018 BOARD MEETING

9/21/2018 50.00 JACKIE EDWARDS 09202018 BOARD MEETING

9/21/2018 50.00 JIM HUFFMAN 09202018 BOARD MEETING

9/21/2018 50.00 JUDY RIGGS 09202018 BOARD MEETING

9/21/2018 50.00 MARTY HOLM 09202018 BOARD MEETING

9/21/2018 50.00 MELISSA CARLSON-SWANSON 09202018 BOARD MEETING

9/21/2018 50.00 MERRIANNE HOFFMAN 09202018 BOARD MEETING

67,157.15

Page: 2



Tillamook County Transportation District
Check/Voucher Register
1006 - Payroll Checking
From 9/1/2018 Through 9/30/2018

Document Document

Number Date Payee

091418-01 9/14/2018  DANIELL F. AMAYA
091418-02 9/14/2018  SYLVIE G. BALLANCE
091418-03 9/14/2018  LAURA M. BEELER
091418-04 9/14/2018  JEREMY J. BELLANTE
091418-05 9/14/2018  JOHN P. CLINE
091418-06 9/14/2018  CLIFFORD R. DERRICK
091418-07 9/14/2018  RICHARD A. DIETZ
091418-08 9/14/2018  KARRI L. HOOKER
091418-09 9/14/2018  TOMMIE L. HUFFMAN
091418-10 9/14/2018  JAMES N. JETT
091418-11 9/14/2018  ROBERT R. KENNEY
091418-12 9/14/2018  JOHN C. MAGNANO
091418-13 9/14/2018  TYLER J. MARSHALL
091418-14 9/14/2018  CHRISTOPHER A. MOTLEY
091418-15 9/14/2018  ALLAN G. NEWCOMB
091418-16 9/14/2018  SARAH J. NORRBOM
091418-17 9/14/2018  CLAYTON T. NORRBOM
091418-18 9/14/2018  PAUL J. NORTON
091418-19 9/14/2018  BRENT K. OLSON
091418-20 9/14/2018  JAMES M. PALMER
091418-21 9/14/2018  GARY R. PETERSON
091418-22 9/14/2018  DOUGLAS W. PILANT
091418-23 9/14/2018  RONALD G. PIMENTEL
091418-24 9/14/2018  LAWRENCE A. QUINTAL SR.
091418-25 9/14/2018  VERNON L. RESSLER
091418-26 9/14/2018  STEPHANIE A. RODRIGUEZ
091418-27 9/14/2018  GWENDOLYN J. RUSSELL
091418-28 9/14/2018  ERIN L. RYAN

091418-29 9/14/2018  ROBERT W. RYAN
091418-30 9/14/2018  STEVE H. SCHWABE
091418-31 9/14/2018  KATHLEEN E. SCHWABE
091418-32 9/14/2018  ROBERT E. SOUTHWICK
091418-33 9/14/2018  MARK A. STRICKER
091418-34 9/14/2018  MICHAEL P. THOMPSON
091418-35 9/14/2018  TABATHA R. WELCH
091418-36 9/14/2018  DAVID T. WHEELER
091418-38 9/14/2018  CLYDE C. ZELLER
092818-01 9/28/2018  DANIELL F. AMAYA
092818-02 9/28/2018  SYLVIE G. BALLANCE
092818-03 9/28/2018  LAURA M. BEELER
092818-04 9/28/2018  JEREMY J. BELLANTE
092818-05 9/28/2018  TERRA L. BUCHANAN
092818-06 9/28/2018  JOHN P. CLINE
092818-07 9/28/2018  CLIFFORD R. DERRICK
092818-08 9/28/2018  RICHARD A. DIETZ
092818-09 9/28/2018  KARRI L. HOOKER
092818-10 9/28/2018  TOMMIE L. HUFFMAN
092818-11 9/28/2018  JAMES N. JETT
092818-12 9/28/2018  ROBERT R. KENNEY
092818-13 9/28/2018  MICHAEL ]. LOWENSTEIN
092818-14 9/28/2018  JOHN C. MAGNANO
092818-15 9/28/2018  CHRISTOPHER A. MOTLEY
092818-16 9/28/2018  ALLAN G. NEWCOMB
092818-17 9/28/2018  SARAH J. NORRBOM
092818-18 9/28/2018  CLAYTON T. NORRBOM
092818-19 9/28/2018  PAUL J. NORTON
092818-20 9/28/2018  BRENT K. OLSON

Date: 10/9/18 11:50:26 AM Page: 1



Tillamook County Transportation District
Check/Voucher Register
1006 - Payroll Checking
From 9/1/2018 Through 9/30/2018

Payee

Document Document
Number Date
092818-21 9/28/2018
092818-22 9/28/2018
092818-23 9/28/2018
092818-24 9/28/2018
092818-25 9/28/2018
092818-26 9/28/2018
092818-27 9/28/2018
092818-28 9/28/2018
092818-29 9/28/2018
092818-30 9/28/2018
092818-31 9/28/2018
092818-32 9/28/2018
092818-33 9/28/2018
092818-34 9/28/2018
092818-35 9/28/2018
092818-36 9/28/2018
092818-37 9/28/2018
092818-38 '9/28/2018
5306 9/14/2018
5307 9/14/2018
5308 9/14/2018
5309 9/14/2018
5310 9/14/2018
5311 9/14/2018
5312 9/14/2018
5313 9/14/2018
5314 9/14/2018
5315 9/14/2018
5316 9/14/2018
5317 9/14/2018
5320 9/11/2018
5321 9/18/2018
5322 9/18/2018
5323 9/20/2018
5324 9/28/2018
5325 9/28/2018
5326 9/28/2018
5327 9/28/2018
5328 9/28/2018
5329 9/28/2018
5330 9/28/2018
5331 9/28/2018
5332 9/28/2018
5333 9/28/2018
5334 9/28/2018
5335 9/28/2018
5337 9/20/2018
5338 9/28/2018
5339 9/30/2018
5340 9/30/2018

Date: 10/9/18 11:50:26 AM

JAMES M. PALMER

GARY R. PETERSON
DOUGLAS W. PILANT
RONALD G. PIMENTEL
LAWRENCE A. QUINTAL SR.
VERNON L. RESSLER
STEPHANIE A. RODRIGUEZ
GWENDOLYN J. RUSSELL
ERIN L. RYAN

ROBERT W. RYAN

STEVE H., SCHWABE
KATHLEEN E. SCHWABE
ROBERT E. SOUTHWICK
MARK A. STRICKER
MICHAEL P. THOMPSON
TABATHA R. WELCH
DAVID T. WHEELER
CLYDE C. ZELLER
DONALD M. ANDERSON
ALFRED BARRAGAN
JERRY D. BOND
CATHRYN L. BOND
JAMES P. BROWN
JULIENE J. HOOTER
STEPHANIE R. LANE
PEGGY PETERSON

ERIK C. PETERSON

RICK A. ROGERS
LEONARD W. STITT
HELEN I. MERCADO-ROMERO
SPECIAL DISTRICTS INS.
SERVICE

UNITED FINANCE

HRA VEBA TRUST

JAMES KILLIAN

DONALD M. ANDERSON
ALFRED BARRAGAN
CATHRYN L. BOND
JERRY D. BOND

JAMES P. BROWN
JULIENE J. HOOTER
STEPHANIE R. LANE
PEGGY PETERSON

ERIK C. PETERSON

RICK A. ROGERS
LEONARD W, STITT
HELEN I. MERCADO-ROMERO
ATU LOCAL #757

HRA VEBA TRUST
PACIFIC SOURCE

REGENCE BLUECROSS
BLUESHIELD

Page: 2



Document Document
Number Date

4136 9/7/2018
4137 9/7/2018
4138 9/12/2018
4139 9/12/2018
Report Total

Date: 10/9/18 11:50:34 AM

Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register
1011 - Prop. Mgmt. Checking
From 9/1/2018 Through 9/30/2018

Transaction
Amount Payee Transaction Description
263.99 City Of Tillamook WATER SEWER
158.75 CITY SANITARY SERVICE GARBAGE
240.00 CHRISSY'S CLEANING SERVICE janitorial
321.62 Marie Mills Center, Inc janitorial office
984.36

Page: 1



I

|UMPQUA BANK: CLOSING DATE 9/25/2018 |
| L

— _}__

_Date  [Vendor IEsc_rip@ﬂransa_hctio_n_____ - Amount
' ' |
R 4_‘__ - DOUGPILANT [
8/27/2018 |[KITTY'S MEALS/MEETING DOUG & GARY $ 29.00 |
9/4/2018 |PACIFIC MEALS/MEETING DOUG & TABATHA $ 42.50 |
| 9/6/2018 |PACIFIC |MEALS/STAFF MEETING/HELENS 1ST DAY $ 154.40
9/12/2018 |USA TODAY |ADVERTISING-DRIVER RECRUITMENT $ 399.00
9/14/2018 |USPS POSTAGE $ 100.00
9/14/2018 |EAGLE NEWSPAPERS ADVERTISING/DRIVER RECRUITMENT $ 480.00
9/14/12018 |GARIBALDI PORTSIDE MEALS/MEETING DOUG & JUDY $ 40.00
9/17/12018 [FRED MEYER KITCHEN/STAFF K 137.84
9/21/2018 [FRED MEYER KITCHEN/STAFF '$ 4075
9/24/2018 [KITTY'S _|MEALS/MEETING DOUG & GARY ] $ 2975
9/24/2018 [SAFEWAY KITCHEN/STAFF - $ 9.47
| 9/24/2018 |FIVE RIVERS MEETING DOUG & MISS $ 9.50
$  1,472.21
CATHY BOND
08/27/18 |FIELDPRINT BACKGROUND CHECKS/NWR $ 12.50
08/27/18 [FIELDPRINT BACKGROUND CHECKS/NWR $ 12.50
08/27/18 |WERNERS MEALS/MEETING NWR $ 34.00
08/29/118 |J2 EFAX FAX SERVICE $ 10.00
09/06/18 |ADOBE SOFTWARE $ 24.99
09/12/118 |FIELDPRINT BACKGROUND CHECKS/NWR $ 12.50
09/13/18 |FIELDPRINT BACKGROUND CHECKS/NWR $ 12.50
| _09/17/18 |BLUE HERON MEALS/MEETING NWR $ 15.00
$ 133.99
BRENT OLSON
08/24/18 |PANDA EXPRESS MEAL-NWR MEETING $ 7.70
| 08/24/18 [MTCPRO |SOFTWARE $ 49.00
/29/18 |PANDA EXPRESS MEAL - NWR MEETING $ 7.70
/07718 |SUBWAY MEAL-BRENT & JERRY BUS 29 TO SALEM $ 12.78
09/10/18 |PANDA EXPRESS MEAL-BRENT & JERRY BUS 301 TO WESTERN | 3 15.40
09/13/18 |STAPLES OFFICE CHAIRS BRENT & HELEN $ 479.98
09/17/18 |NANI PAPA NWOTA MEETING MEALS $ 71.30
09/21/18 |ROCK N ROGERS MEAL - NWR MEETING $ 9.99
09/24/118 |MTCPRO SOFTWARE $ 49.00
$ 702.85
TABATHA WELCH
08/27/18 |SAFEWAY OFFICE SUPPLIES/SNACKS $ 19.68
09/06/18 |DUTCH BROS TABATHA/HELEN COFFEE-CHECKS SIGNED $ 9.50
09/07/18 |ALASKA AIRFARE/TRAVEL HELEN $ 286.40
09/07/18 |ALASKA AIRFARE/TRAVEL TABATHA $ 286.40
09/12/18 |SAFEWAY TABATHA/HELEN PAYROLL/LUNCH $ 15.46
09/12/18 |SAFEWAY TABATHA/HELEN PAYROLL/COFFEE $ 14.70
09/13/18 |[DUTCH BROS TABATHA/HELEN COFFEE-CHECKS SIGNED $ 10.50
09/19/18 |CRAIGSLIST ADVERTISING $ 20.00
09/21/18 |SAFEWAY OFFICE SUPPLIES/COFFEE $ 29.97 |
09/21/18 |VISTA PRINT HELEN - BUSINESS CARDS $ 20.99
09/24/18 LA PROVIDENCIA lTABATHA/HELEN LUNCH PAYROLL/SUNDAY | $ 20.00
|
| $ 733.60
| I
| | Charges total| $  3,042.65
! | Grand Total| §  3,042.65
— 1
APTROVAL LA DATE _ /o-%- 8 |




3 UMPQUA BANK

September 2018 Statement
e Open Date: 08/24/2018 Closing Date: 09/24/2018

X
2

Ei;: Visa® Platinum Business Rewards Card

Page 10f5

Cardmember Service (: 1-866-552-8855

TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460) BUS' 30 ELN 78 18
New Balance ' 83 Activity Summary
MlmmumPayment Due i -1 |Previous Balance + $3,920.62
Payment Due Date 1012 }2018 | |Payments - $3,920.62cr
= Other Credits $0.00
Reward Points Purchases + $3,042.65
Earned This Statement 3,509 Balance Transfers $0.00
Reward Center Balance 9,977 Advances_ $0.00
as of 09/23/2018 Other Debits $0.00
For details, see your rewards summary. Fees Charged $0.00
Interest Charged $0.00
New Balance . = $3,042.65 .
Past Due $0.00
Minimum Payment Due $31.00
Credit Line $10,000.00
Available Credit $6,957.35
Days in Billing Period 32
N FET” Mail payment coupon Pay online at Pay by phone
Payment Optlons: |:>~ \.I with a check \@ myaccountaccess.com ‘: 1-866-552-8855
Please detach and send coupon with check payable to: Cardmember Service CPN 001469460
L'_[l =S
UMPQUA BANK . _— ek
Account Number 17790
Payment Due Date 10/22/2018
24-Hour Cardmember Service: 1-866-552-8855 New Balance $3,042.65
Minimum Payment Due $31.00

(l . to pay by phone
1 . to change your address

000008931 01 SP 000638219781996 P Y

TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

3600 3RD ST STE A
TILLAMOOK OR 97141-2730

U TR L LT O U L T A B B T U RO

Amount Enclosed 3

Cardmember Service

P.0. Box 790408
St. Louis, MO 63179-0408

RUTT Ve (U ST L P S P TR e T



;3| UMPQUA BANK

September 2018 Statement 08/24/2018 - 09/24/2018 Page 2 of 5
.. TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN ~ 160) Cardmember Service (: 1-866-552-8855

Rewards Center Activity as of 09/23/2018
Rewards Center Activity* 0
Rewards Center Balance 9,977

*This item includes points redeemed, expired and adjusted.

This Year
Rewards Earned Statement to Date
Points Earned on Net Purchases 2578 18,220
Gas, Restauranis & Telecom Double Points 931 5995
Total Earned 3,509 24,215

For rewards program inquiries and redemptions, call 1-888-229-8864 from 8:00 am to 10:00 pm (CST)
Monday through Friday, 8:00 am to 5:30 pm (CST) Saturday and Sunday. Automated account information is
available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

Important Messages

Paying Interest: You have a 24 to 30 day interest-free period for Purchases provided you have paid your
previous balance in full by the Payment Due Date shown on your monthly Account statement. In order to
avoid additional INTEREST CHARGES on Purchases, you must pay your new balance in full by the
Payment Due Date shown on the front of your monthly Account statement

There is no interest-free period for transactions that post to the Account as Advances or Balance Transfers
except as provided in any Offer Materials. Those fransactions are subject to interest from the date they post
to the Account until the date they are paid in full.

Account Security is very important to you and to us. When you use your Card to make a purchase,
particularly over the phone or online, you may be asked to provide a card security code, sometimes called a
CVV. This information is used to help confirm that it is you using the Card and that the Card is authentic.

Post Trans

Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation
s : : Purchaseés and Other Debits ~ Sl g
08/27 08/23 7460 KITTYSFOOD & SPIRITS TILLAMOOK OR $29.00
09/04 08/31 0070 PACIFICRESTAURANT TILLAMOOK OR $42.50
09/06 09/05 0071 PACIFICRESTAURANT TILLAMOOK OR $154.40
09/12 09/12 5281 USA TODAY JOBS NETWORK 844-419-9560 VA $399.00
09/14 0912 2011 USPSPOSTAGE ENDICIA.C 800-576-3279 CA $100.00
09/14 09/12 7371 EAGLE NEWSPAPERS INC 503-3931774 OR $480.00
09/14 09/13 9621 GARIBALDIPORTSIDE GARIBALDI OR $40.00
09/17 09/15 6492 FRED-MEYER #0377  TILLAMOOK OR $137.84
0921 09/1¢ 2876 FRED-MEYER #0377 TILLAMOOK OR 34075
09/24 09/20 3819 KITTYS FOOD & SPIRITS TILLAMOOK OR 32875
09/24 08/20 1858 SAFEWAY #2723 TILLAMOOK OR $9.47
09/24 09/21 7243 SQ*FIVERIVERS COF TILLAMOOK O©OR $9.50
Total for Account 308 $1,472.21

Continued on Next Page



UMPQUA BANK

September 2018 Statement 08/24/2018 - 09/24/2018 Page 30f 5
TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 460) Cardmember Service (: 1-866-552-8855

Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation
... .= Purchases and Other Debits . o e e
08/27 08/25 9305 FIELDPRINT INC 888-291-1369 PA $12.50
08/27 08/25 4264 FIELDPRINT INC 888-291-1369 PA $12.50
08/27 08/23 0489 WERNER GOURMET MEAT SN TILLAMOOK OR $34.00
08/29 0828 9510 J2 EFAX SERVICES  323-817-3205CA $10.00
09/06 08/05 0992 ADOBE *ACROPRO SUBS 800-833-6587 CA $24 99
09/12 09/11 3457 FIELDPRINT INC 888-291-1368 PA $12.50
09/13 09/12 9001 FIELDPRINT INC 888-291-1369 PA - $12:50
09/17 09/13 1536 BLUE HERONFRENCH CH TILLAMOOK ©OR $15.00
Total for Account { 2022 $133.99

Post Trans

Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation
‘Parchasesand OfHerDebits = = 0 oo
3468 SAFEWAY #2723 TILLAMOOK  OR $19.68
09/06 09/05 5980 PP*TILLAMOOKDU GEARHART OR $9.50
09/07 09/04 1006 ALASKA Al0272183799370 SEATTLE WA $286.40

ROMERO MERCADO 09/25/18
PORTLAND ORE TO AUSTIN
AUSTIN TO PORTLAND ORE

09/07 09/04 1154 ALASKA Al0272183799369 SEATTLE WA $286.40
WELCH/TABATHA 09/25/18 i
PORTLAND ORE TO AUSTIN
AUSTIN TO PORTLAND ORE

09/12 09/10 1107 SAFEWAY #2723 TILLAMOOK OR $15.46
09/12 09/10 0454 SAFEWAY #2723 TILLAMQOK OR $14.70
09/13 09/12 8149 PP*TILLAMOOKDU GEARHART OR 2 $10.50
09/12 09/18 4816 CRAIGSLIST.ORG 415-399-5200 CA $20.00
09/21 09/19 0163 SAFEWAY #2723 TILLAMOOK O©OR $29.97
09/21 0920 6110 VISTAPR*VistaPrint.com 866-8936743 MA $20.99
0924 09/23 7139 LA PROVIDENCIA TILLAMOOK  OR $20.00

Total for Account . 4148 $733.60

Post Trans

Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation
T iEn -Purchases and Other Debits =~ B rE e e
08/24 08/23 7109 PANDAEXPRESS #1133 HILLSBORO ©OR $7.70
08/24 0823 0742 FS *www.mtcpro.com 877-3278914 CA - $49.00

Continued on Next Page



i+

T

g UMPQUA BANK

September 2018 Statement 08/24/2018 - 09/24/2018

LAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN

Page 4 of &5

Cardmember Service ‘: 1-866-552-8855

Transactions OLSON,BRENT

Post Trans

Date Date Ref# Transaction Description

08129 08/28 8830 PANDA EXPRESS #5639 PORTLAND OR
0907 09/05 6341 SUBWAY 00475218 SALEM OR
09/10 09/07 0165 PANDA EXPRESS #1531 PORTLAND OR

09/13 09/12 2589 STAPLES DIRECT

800-3333330 MA

09117 089/14 1647 SQ*NANIPAPA'AISL TILLAMOOK OR
09721 09/20 6619 ROCKNROGERSDINER SALEM OR
09/24 09723 7054 FS *www.mtcprocom 877-3278914 CA

Total for Account

12649

Credit Limit $3000

Amount Notation
$7.70
$12.78
$15.40
$479.98
$71.30
$9.99
$49.00
$702.85

Transactions BILLING ACCOUNT ACTIVITY

Post Trans

Date Date Ref# Transaction Description
: Ci0 o i Payments and Other Credits

0913 09/13 8 PAYMENT THANK YOU

Amount Notation

$1194.38cR —

09/13 09/13 8 PAYMENT THANK YOU $2,726 24cr
Total for Account 7790 $3,920.62CR
2018 Totals Year-to-Date
Total Fees Charged in 2018 $0.80
Total Interest Charged in 2018 $80.91
Interest Charge Calculation
Your Annual Percentage Rate (APR) is the annua! interest rate on your account.
**APR for current and future transactions.
Balance Annual Expires
Balance Subject to Interest Percentage with
Balance Type By Type Interest Rate Varijable Charge Rate Statement
“BALANCE TRANSFER $0.00 $0.00 YES $0 00 13 .99%
*PJRCHASES 3304265 $0.00 YES $0.00 13.99%
*ADVANCES $0.00 8000 YES $0.00 25.74%

Continued on Next Page



| :28ed

UBLIRA 29 135png qLA/M Hodsy qOg ATqIuoN

%000 (00'8t8°LY) 00°8¥8°LY 000 000 000
%000 (00°5£8°02) 00'5€8°0T 00°0 000 000
%6065 (00°000°6) 00°000°CT 00000 €1 000 000
%68°1¢C (z§'9L0°S) 0070059 Y ETY'1 LYTHS 0£91¢S
Yobb 6T (00 00LZ1) 00°000°81 00°00€°S 00°00S°1 00°006°1
%000 (00°000°1) 00°000°1 000 £€'€8 00°0
%IE1T (rs£88°81) 00°000°¥C 97 911'S 00°000°C T0°98S°1
%0001 {00°000°6) 00°000°01 00°000°T €EEe8 000
%000 (00'000°1) 00°000°1 000 £€°¢8 000
%000 (00000°T) 00°000°T 000 £CES 00°0 3
20070 (00°000°001) 00°000'001 000 £EEEEg 00D
2000 (00000°02T) 00°000°0T¢ 00°0 €€ €€E8I1 \aqo
%00°57 (00°052°0¢) 00°000°L9 00°05L°91 £EE8ec \\\ 00°0
%00°ST (00°000°9¢€) 00°000°8% 00°000°Z1 007000~ 000
2000 (00°000°09¢€) 00°000°09¢ 00°0 00°060°0¢ 000
%000 (00°21t°90L) 00°ZI¥°90L 000 \\@Sw,wm 00°0
%00°0 (000000 1) 00°000°0€1 000 000 000
%01'LT (£8°20L°19) 00°000°¢8 :.Sw.\mm\ €E°€80°L 000
%86 L (£6'928°111) 00°000°61¢ LOELT €01 L9916'LT 00°0
%0¥ 91 (zLgev'ce) 00°000°0% _8T195%9 ceeee’s 19T
%00°T (06'026°068) 00000006~ 01'6L0°6 00°0 87 186°1
Y%L 61 (T9¥$8°11L) oo.o%\ﬁww 8E°SHISLI L9916 EL L36¥1°6S
%0L V< ($8°8£0°€LT) 00°000°592 ST'I96°16 00°€80°TC 9" ELI'ST
2000 so.mmw,mm«.c\._\oo.mmwnmmvn_ 00°0 00°0 000
\\\.\\
%ST \\\.oo:m:m A 128png [e10] [enoy 198png pouad [en1oy pold
\..\ vaﬁzm EHOF Ricehquiitadiliig] Mﬁmsz Hﬁob:U

~

810T/0€/6 USNOIY, §10T/1/6 WOL]

1odey up pepnjou] suonoesuel], pajsodu) - JUSWISIELS [BIOUBL]

PLISI uonvliodsuea J, A3uno)) jooure[[LL

e MU pan R ~M0

NV SO 1611 81/6/01 91
punj IS WO IJSuBL],

SOy "YoIng Yo A WOLY IQJSURI]

pun, [BISUAL) WO JASUBL],
awoouy dxd feuonelad( asea]
QUIOOU] 258
Jwoou] FuUISHIADY
JWOoOU] ISaI9)U]
QUIOOU] - SI9SSVY JO A[BS
QWOOU] SNOSURI[AISHAI
suoneiad() sng [eroads
0I€S - SHuel)
(1) 11€6 - swein
J1S - swein
YoreIN] "1u0) Jeured V.LOMN
11€S VI - siuelp
swueIp) [eude)
pun,j HNSUBI] OPIMIILIS
XB] [[0IABJ 9181S HSUBL] SSBIA
INUIAY JoQUIL], S1e1S
xe], A1edoid siea X 1sed
xe], A1radoig
ANU2ATY 10eHU0D)
SAIB {
enden) Sunpiop,
SO0IN0SIY



Tillamook County Transportation District
Financial Statement - Unposted Transactions Included In Report
From 9/1/2018 Through 9/30/2018

Current Current Current Year Total Budget
Period Actual Period Budget Actual Total Budget Variance 25%
Resources
Working Capital 3500 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,432,835.00 (1,432,835.00) 0.00%
Fares 4000 25,173.56 22,083.00 91,961.15 265.000.00 (173,038.85) 34.70%
Contract Revenue 4020 59,149.87 73,916.67 175,145.38 887,000.00 (711,854.62) 19.74%
Property Tax 4100 1,981.48 0.00 1,981.48 900.000.00 (898,018.52) 0.22%
Past Years Property Tax 4110 2,446.21 3,333.33 2.446.21 40.000.00 (37.553.79) 6.11%
State Timber Revenue 4120 0.00 17,916.67 0.00 215,000.00 (215,000.00) 0.00%
Mass Transit State Payroll Tax 4130 0.00 7,083.33 0.07 85,000.00 (84,999.93) 0.00%
Statewide Transit Fund 4135 0.00 0.00 0.00 130,000.00 (130,000.00) 0.00%
Capital Grants 4210 0.00 58.867.67 0.00 706,412.00 (706,412.00) 0.00%
Grants - FTA 5311 4220 0.00 30,000.00 0.00 360,000.00 (360,000.00) 0.00%
NWOTA Partner Cont. Match 4225 0.00 4,000.00 12,000.00 48,000.00 (36.000.00) 25.00%
Grants - STF 4230 0.00 5,583.33 16,750.00 67,000.00 (50,250.00) 25.00%
Grants - 5311 (f) 4240 0.00 18.,333.33 0.00 220,000.00 (220,000.00) 0.00%
Grants - 5310 4245 0.00 8.333.33 0.00 100,000.00 (100,000.00) 0.00%
Special Bus Operations 4300 0.00 83.33 0.00 1,000.00 (1,000.00) 0.00%
Miscellaneous Income 4400 0.00 83.33 0.00 1,000.00 (1,000.00) 0.00%
Sale of Assets - Income 4410 0.00 833.33 1,000.00 10,000.00 (9.000.00) 10.00%
Interest Income 4510 1,586.02 2.000.00 5,116.46 24,000.00 (18,883.54) 21.31%
Advertising Income 4520 0.00 83.33 0.00 1,000.00 (1,000.00) 0.00%
Lease Income 4900 1,900.00 1,500.00 5.300.00 18,000.00 (12,700.00) 29.44%
Lease Operational Exp Income 4910 516.30 541.67 1,423.48 6.500.00 (5.076.52) 21.89%
Transfer From General Fund 4911 0.00 0.00 13,000.00 22,000.00 (9,000.00) 59.09%
Transfer from Veh. Purch. Res. 4915 0.00 0.00 0.00 20,835.00 (20,835.00) 0.00%
Transfer from STF Fund 4916 0.00 0.00 0.00 47.848.00 (47,848.00) 0.00%

Date: 10/18/18 10:22:29 AM Monthly BOD Report w/YTD Budget & Variance Page: |






Transfer from NWOTA
Total Resources

Expenses
Personnel Services
Payroll: Administration
Payroll: Dispatch
Payroll: Drivers
Payroll: Maintenance
Payroll Expense

Workers Compensation Ins.

Total Personnel Services

Materials and Services
Miscellaneous Expense
Professional Services
Administrative Support
Website Maintenance
Planning
Dues & Subscriptions
Office Equipment R&R
Computer R&M
Fees & Licenses
Insurance
Office Expenses
Board Expenses

Date: 10/18/18 10:22:29 AM

4917

5010
5020
5030
5040
5050
5055

5060
5100
5101
5102
5103
5120
5140
5145
5150
5160
5170
5175

Tillamook County Transportation District

Financial Statement - Unposted Transactions Included In Report
From 9/1/2018 Through 9/30/2018

Current Current Current Year Total Budget
Period Actual Period Budget Actual Total Budget Variance 25%

0.00 0.00 3,000.00 3.000.00 0.00 100.00%
92,753.44 254,575.65 329,124.23 5,611,430.00 (5,282,305.77) 5.87%
26,592.66 27,587.50 80.156.88 331,050.00 250.893.12 24.21%
(1,969.73) 10,458.33 26,227.64 125,500.00 99,272.36 20.89%
80,438.70 72,208.33 255,895.60 866,500.00 610,604.40 29.53%
3.523.29 5,416.67 11,602.90 65.000.00 53,397.10 17.85%
38,178.18 50,833.33 120,144.70 610,000.00 489,855.30 19.69%
2,246.75 1,875.00 17,769.19 22,500.00 4,730.81 78.97%
149.009.85 168,379.16 511,796.91 2,020,550.00 1,508,753.09 25.33%
0.00 0.00 108.00 0.00 (108.00) 0.00%
6,952.00 6,687.50 22,366.90 90,750.00 68,383.10 24.64%
5,482.23 2,083.33 5,482.23 25,000.00 19.517.77 21.92%
0.00 416.67 0.00 5.000.00 5,000.00 0.00%

0.00 1,666.67 2,980.00 20,000.00 17,020.00 14.90%

4,125.00 1,000.00 6,740.00 12,000.00 5,260.00 56.16%
225.22 250.00 617.22 3,000.00 2,382.78 20.57%
3,293.00 2,916.67 4.935.50 37.500.00 32,564.50 13.16%
680.11 1,458.33 1.172.09 33,500.00 32,327.91 3.49%
0.00 7,541.67 (781.00) 90,500.00 91,281.00 (0.86)%
1,408.93 1,083.33 3,529.64 13,000.00 9.470.36 27.15%
350.00 833.33 1,598.00 10,000.00 8,402.00 15.98%
Monthly BOD Report w/YTD Budget & Variance Page: 2






Tillamook County Transportation District
Financial Statement - Unposted Transactions Included In Report
From 9/1/2018 Through 9/30/2018

Current Current Current Year Total Budget
Period Actual Period Budget Actual Total Budget Variance 25%
Operational Expenses 5180 2,695.96 2,541.67 12,867.66 30,500.00 17,632.34 42.18%
Drug & Alcohol Administration 5185 200.00 125.00 295.00 1.500.00 1.205.00 19.66%
Marketing 5190 2,385.00 4.000.00 8,116.73 48,000.00 39,883.27 16.90%
Telephone Expense 5210 1,825.15 1,758.33 4,655.23 21,600.00 16,944.77 21.55%
Travel & Training 5220 3,397.90 2.875.00 9,910.59 34,500.00 24.589.41 28.72%
Vehicle Expense 5240 16,447.16 14,791.66 42,147.33 177.500.00 135,352.67 23.74%
Fuel Expenses 5245 24,093.31 21,666.66 74,066.77 260,000.00 185,933.23 28.48%
Volunteers 5250 0.00 125.00 0.00 1.500.00 1,500.00 0.00%
Postage 5260 100.00 125.00 300.00 1,500.00 1,200.00 20.00%
Mgmt/Labor Recreation Fund 5270 227.54 197.25 1,260.96 2,367.00 1,106.04 53.27%
Transit & Visitor Center Lease 5280 700.00 700.00 2,100.00 8,400.00 6.300.00 25.00%
Transit & Visitor Center Maint 5285 1,207.45 1,250.00 2,929.49 15,000.00 12,070.51 19.52%
General Operating Cont. 5290 0.00 2.916.67 0.00 35.000.00 35,000.00 0.00%
Property Operating Expenses 5300 1.058.17 2,083.33 3,496.02 25,000.00 21,503.98 13.98%
Flex Lease: Fees 5330 0.00 83.33 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00%
Property Maint. & Repair 5340 1,101.04 833.33 4,012.03 10,000.00 5,987.97 40.12%
Operations Facility Maint. 5346 71.63 208.33 313.48 2,500.00 2,186.52 12.53%
Total Materials and Services 78,026.80 82,218.06 215,219.87 1,016,117.00 800,897.13 21.18%
Special Payments
STF Payments to Recipients 5200 0.00 300.00 4,788.00 19.152.00 14,364.00 25.00%
Total Special Payments 0.00 300.00 4,788.00 19,152.00 14,364.00 25.00%
Transfers
Transfer to General Fund 9130 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 71,683.00 68.683.00 4.18%
Transfer to Vehicle Reserve 9150 0.00 0.00 1.000.00 10,000.00 9,000.00 10.00%
Transfer to NWOTA Fund 9160 0.00 0.00 12,000.00 12,000.00 0.00 100.00%

Date: 10/18/18 10:22:29 AM Monthly BOD Report w/YTD Budget & Variance Page: 3






Reserve for Future Expenditure
Unappropriated Ending Fund Bal
Total Transfers
Capital Outlay
Debt Service
Flex Lease: Principal
Flex Lease: Interest
PUD Loan Expense
OTIB Debt Service
Total Debt Service
Capital Purchases
Building Repair & Renovation
Bus Replacement/Addition
Computer Upgrade
Fuel Cell Triangulation Point
Bus Stop Signage/Shelters
Total Capital Purchases
Totai Capital Outlay
Total Expenses

Date: 10/18/18 10:22:29 AM

9175
9180

5310
5320
5325
5338

5350
6000
6020
6021
6040

Tillamook County Transportation District

From 9/1/2018 Through 9/30/2018

Financial Statement - Unposted Transactions Included In Report

Current Current Current Year Total Budget
Period Actual Period Budget Actual Total Budget Variance 25%

0.00 0.00 0.00 624,750.00 624,750.00 0.00%
0.00 0.00 0.00 810,087.00 810,087.00 0.00%
0.00 o 0.00 16,000.00 1,528,520.00 1,512,520.00 1.05%
0.00 3.750.00 0.00 45,000.00 45,000.00 0.00%
0.00 1,250.00 0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 0.00%
602.05 0.00 1,807.21 7,500.00 5,692.79 24.09%
0.00 0.00 0.00 29,591.00 _29,591.00 0.00%
602.05 5,000.00 1,807.21 97,091.00 95,283.79 1.86%
0.00 3,250.00 573.50 39.000.00 38.426.50 1.47%
0.00 69,583.33 0.00 835,000.00 835,000.00 0.00%
5,389.03 416.67 5,389.03 5,000.00 (3859.03) 107.78%
0.00 500.00 0.00 6.000.00 6,000.00 0.00%
0.00 3,333.33 0.00 45,000.00 45,000.00 0.00%
5.389.03 77,083.33 5,962.53 930,000.00 924,037.47 0.64%
5,991.08 82,083.33 7,769.74 1.027,091.00 1,019,321.26 0.76%
233,027.73 332,980.55 755,574.52 5,611,430.00 4,855,855.48 13.46%
Monthly BOD Report w/YTD Budget & Variance Page: 4






\/._ W “Nﬁ qf..\..._

~

Tillamook County Transportation District
Financial Statement - Unposted Transactions Included In Report
From 9/1/2018 Through 9/30/2018

Current Current Current Year Total Budget
Period Actual Period Budget Actual Total Budget Variance 25%
Resources
NWR Startup 4025 0.00 0.00 206,000.00 206,000.00 0.00 100.00%
NWR Revenue 4026 274.987.92 0.00 549.975.84 3,060,000.00 (2,510,024.16) 17.97%
Miscellaneous Income 4400 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.000.00 (5,000.00) 0.00%
Total Resources 274,987.92 0.00 755,975.84 3,271.000.00 (2,515,024.16) 23.11%
Personnel Services
Payroll: Administration 5010 18.485.40 0.00 37.865.71 390,000.00 352,134.29 9.70%
Payroll Expense 5050 2,715.01 0.00 4,779.29 30,000.00 25,220.71 15.93%
Total Personnel Services N_,moo.ﬁr 0.00 42,645.00 420.000.00 377.355.00 10.15%
Materials and Services
Professional Services 5100 210.00 0.00 11,360.00 25,000.00 13,640.00 45.44%
Dues & Subscriptions 5120 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.100.00 2,100.00 0.00%
Office Equipment R&R 5140 225.22 0.00 225.22 2,400.00 2,174.78 9.38%
Computer R&M 5145 0.00 0.00 0.00 14,700.00 14,700.00 0.00%
Fees & Licenses 5150 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,320.00 10,320.00 0.00%
Insurance 5160 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,400.00 2,400.00 0.00%
Office Expenses 5170 358.09 0.00 7,846.91 15,000.00 7,153.09 52.31%
Operational Expenses 5180 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00%
Telephone Expense 5210 1,588.04 0.00 3.334.08 20,000.00 16,665.92 16.67%
Travel & Training 5220 84.39 0.00 553.22 9,000.00 8.446.78 6.14%
Postage 5260 0.00 0.00 100.00 5,000.00 4,900.00 2.00%
Purchased Transportation 5265 218,860.75 0.00 461,337.05 2,375.880.00 1,914.542.95 19.41%
Member Mileage Reimbursement 5266 7,249.11 0.00 15,872.36 45,000.00 29,127.64 35.27%
Date: 10/18/18 10:20:41 AM Monthly BOD Report w/YTD Budget & Variance Page: |






Tillamook County Transportation District
Financial Statement - Unposted Transactions Included In Report
From 9/1/2018 Through 9/30/2018

Current Current Current Year Total Budget
Period Actual Period Budget Actual Total Budget Variance 25%

Volunteer Mileage Reimburse 5267 23,422.06 0.00 23,422.06 80,000.00 56,577.94 29.27%

Office Rent 5281 400.00 0.00 400.00 4,800.00 4,400.00 8.33%

Property Operating Expenses 5300 63.87 0.00 63.87 900.00 836.13 7.09%

Total Materials and Services 252,461.53 0.00 524,514.77 2,615,000.00 2,090,485.23 20.06%

Capital Outlay

Capital Purchases

Computer Upgrade 6020  (206,000.00) 0.00 15,542.31 20,000.00 4,457.69 77.71%

Ecolane Investment 6022 206,000.00 0.00 206,000.00 206,000.00 0.00 100.00%

Office Furnishings 6030 0.00 0.00 9,032.35 10,000.00 967.65 90.32%

Total Capital Purchases B 0.00 0.00 230,574.66 236,000.00 5,425.34 97.70%

Total Capital Outlay 0.00 0.00 230,574.66 236,000.00 5,425.34 97.70%

Total Expenses 273,661.94 0.0 797,734.43 3,271,000.00 2,473,265.57 24.39%

Date: 10/18/18 10:20:41 AM Monthly BOD Report w/YTD Budget & Variance Page: 2






Tillamook County Transportation District Summer Quarter

QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE
Operating Cost
Service Passengers Farebox Cost per
Quarter per Hour Ratio per Hour Passenger

Dial-A-Ride Services

Summer -17 1.3 58.3% 65.97 51.96
Fall - 17 1.2 61.9% 62.40 51.65
Winter - 17 1.3 63.7% 59.17 47.31
Spring - 17 1.3 67.5% 56.34 44.44
Summer -18 1.3 59.1% 67.63 52.30
STANDARD 1.3 65.3% 56.36 45.19

Deviated Fixed Route Services

Summer -17 7.0 11.8% 71.46 10.19
Fall - 17 6.8 11.0% 68.71 10.17
Winter - 17 6.8 11.3% 67.91 9.96
Spring - 17 6.8 11.6% 64.99 9.53
Summer -18 6.3 10.2% 66.99 10.70
STANDARD 7.0 12.4% 64.60 9.29

Intercity Services

Summer -17 3.2 33.4% 78.67 24.70
Fall - 17 2.9 29.7% 76.38 26.64
Winter - 17 2.8 29.0% 75.71 26.62
Spring - 17 2.8 29.7% 72.54 25.46
Summer -18 3.4 23.5% 77.08 22.34
STANDARD 2.9 31.5% 72.86 24.86

Other Services

Summer -17 37 6.3% 61.83 16.61

Fall - 17 4.6 7.6% 57.68 12.47

Winter - 17 7.8 9.7% 57.45 7.35

Spring - 17 6.1 10.7% 54.78 8.98

Summer -18 5.7 2.7% 60.25 10.53

STANDARD 6.9 10.7% 55.54 8.28
10/10/2018

TCTD MIS Report 2018-19 .xlsx



| obed %9'¢c 6.¥°16G 180D 10811Q @ JogeT ‘ebes|iN [e10L
€L02 0e's 80°0 %0°0€ 16’c 91L°69 Zev'eeL  (ELO°LPL rdclisi 4 Ls9'0ep s0Z'Lel pSZ'0LC €99°CZL 89'0L 18L°Lp 89g’L2e $831AI9S 0104 18301
9L 82’0 oL0 %L'2 LS S2'09 PEG'GL 620t 0¢6 [ A €8¢'L $80'€ 9pe 85¢C Siv'L 8ly S80S J8HYIO [E10L
280 110 800 %E"L 6 1909 £06°cL A4 028 9606 €21 6E8°C €8¢ (11504 PEL'L /81 uopessdQ sng [epeds
8¢'8 890 ¥C0 %T YL zch ¥¥'8S 0€9'L AR 0oL POL L oLy vve €9 8¢ (349 LeC siedduy
SS0IAISS 1BUI0
L8l S¢S 900 %S €T ve 80724 919'LLL  [0E6°LE vr6 L £¥0'96 669'SE 00964 6c9C ltte 189'L LgEov Ajro1eu 1ejoL
98’y ¢S 00 %E9 A €592 8€5'6E £€5E°L cre’) £8¢'¢e 85908 89621 6¥9 L1S 999'1L 605¢ 8puUoy puel X0L
L6 29¢ S0°0 %ZCL L'e 1964 02699 82Tl ¥56'C GLL'SE 196Vl ClE'EE L10°L 8Z8 cl0't 1v0'8 weies xX09
GL'EE 30°01 800 %0°St £e 10°GL 85199 €62'CL rL'e S¥0°8E vL9'CL 09282 £96 288 €56'Z §9.'62 pueiod S0
INYEIT}
989 oL 0L0 %c 0L £9 66'99 cLo'z6c  |E¥6'LS 218'G) Ser'GLlL 128y 79901 6FL'S vEY'Y c9l'le AR 3IN0Y pajeine( [e1ol
G9'9 cl'L 900 %¢C’'6 6'¢ gc'eL 616°GL L8Pl Lyl'E 8G5 LY 208'Sl Gee'se Sve'L 0G0'L GS0'y G686°9 AND ujodun #0
6474 8L 0L0 %t Ll 1’9 G089 8L LL1L 208°Le 098'S 566'79 9LL'6l vz9'er 008t €ra'L 8/6'6 162CL BliuezZURN €0
jS1oR) €0’ 90°0 %8°G L€ 18°G9 L¥S'6E YLLL orL'e €6.L'eT €€6'S ogz'el 808 009 we'e €LET SpisUead0/sSUEBISN 20
0e2 z.0 6L0 %6°LL Lot 6119 G/L.'69 zlLo'el 890y ozL'sy G.6'0 265'GL 96¢'L orL'L 88’ LL 8ce'8 doo umoy Lo
oy parEineg
G6°6¢ 68°0¢€ S0°0 %165 £l £9°L9 0EE'VST LLi'gy Z¥6'02 186'8Y 1L 96¢'9¢ 0£6'08 ovs'y 09.'¢ €98’y cLc'ost Hva el
8Ll vl 000 %90 60 8€'80C €/6'0L Ge9 wiLL 2lee foreo) 182 89 €5 0S 29 188JUNjOA
§5°€S 05¥9 90°0 %L'08 80 98'99 60€'82L  [98L'tE GLG'6 25'501 8y'8e L1G'E9 62C'E 99T AN AA 608'2rL Soply MN
S04 28°¢C S0°0 %ELL SC 6¥'e9 8¥0°'S9 069'¢l elLL'e 8Ly 6S¥'L 2e9'0l €62’ L't 665'C Le's Sprd-v-elg
SO0IAISS Sply-v-Eld
(8) noy ($) 214 Apisang oney o tad () aey | (¢) s1son | (g) sison  ($)1s0D ($) 100 1509 SelN sinoy SincH sibussed (s) ke e
BANBS  obeiany ¢ iBusseqd xogaieq sibusseq  AunoH 210 1081IpUY| a1g posed peseq solniss pled Q1A soInss alAi Snuansy
fenuanay AunoH abesjiy alA QLA aled QLA
810Z/0L/0L 810z des miyL

90UBULIOUdd pUE SORSNELS 91 (-0)-IRdA

610Z/8L0Z Ad [ENdY

1oUISIg uonlepodsuea} Aunos yoowe|j |




Z obey

%LLL  [S09°LL ceb'8eL  188°099 %9°0L [1LZ0°L 819°01 159'6 %Z'8 |8SL'E [R: Y% 4 £29'8¢ %L L- zese 89€°LZZ  068'cZe S80IAI8G 4101 1'jJoL
%6°9L- [89L°¢- ¥ES'GL L0L'8L %9'8L- |6G- 8G¢ lle %0°G¢ |S62 Sip°L 08L71 %099 |L18- 154 62¢'L S80I J8YIQ 810
%86 A7z €06°E) 199°CL %LLE (Ve oce 90¢ %099 |1SY PeELL £89 %1€l |60S- 181 969 uolielsdQ sng [esds
%0°€L- [OLr'Y- 0£9°L 0¥0'9 %6V, |€8- 8¢ Ll %¥LE- |9G)- L¥E 6% %L9G- |20g- LeZ €ES stadduy
SSJAISS 1BUI0
%48G  |067'E9 9L9'LLL 921’801 %ELS |95 122'C civ'L %8'€9 [€66'C 189°L 889t %y [8L9°L Leeoy €0.'8E AjdJe] jelo |
HHHHHAR |BEGBE 8€5'6E - 10/NG# | LLG L1S 0 i/AIC#  |959°L 989°L 0 I0/AIQ# |60G°C 60G°C 0 apuoy puels X0L
%065 |LS¥'vT 026'59 e9P'LY %808 |6.¢ 8e8 6¥S %L66 |VES'L 2.0 8eG'L %L'€GL [898'Y ¥0'8 6.l ws|eg X09
%80~ |90G- 851'09 ¥99'99 %¥ v |Ly- 88 £26 %E'9 |16~ €562 0sl'e %Z'9L- |6GL'G- 592’62 ¥25'se puejpod G0
MY )
%96 686'G¢ clo’/6c  €e0'hie %ETL |18y YEV'Y Ly6'E %E0 |8 Z9L°.T 8.9'L¢ %S'8- €182 ARA oeeg'ee N0OY paxid 8207 [E10L
%0 65¢ 616G 099G %0V 54 050"t 0L0't %0'8¢ 1988 SS0'v 69L°¢ %S’L |01 G86'9 088'9 AND uoou +0
%87¢Z |18.°0C 82.'LLL  16B'0B %92¢  |95€E £v9'L 187°L %40~ |21 8.6'6 05001 %9'8- |00Z'L- L6221 LB6'EL ejuezUeN €0
%LEL |69L'Y Lyg'ee €LL'PE %G'6L |86 009 20s %49~ |09L- We'e Lo¥'e %S€L-  |09¢- gle'e €492 apisuead(/sueIsN Z0
%E0 L8l G/.'69 y65'69 %90~ |L- ovLL 8vL'L %l Y- |0LS- 88Y'LL 850°CL %0vL- |8GEL- 8ce'8 989'6 doo umoy Lo
|noy pajeInsg
%E'E-  [904'8 0LEHPSE  QEO0'E9e %l [29L- 08l't 2e6't %7 |Ple- €987 £20'S %E0-  |LLG- ZIZ’0SL  82/'0SGL Hva (ejoL
%6°95- |06v'PL-  €.6°01 £91'6e %8°98- |8vE- €5 00 %S¢~ |BLY- 0§ 899 %y 66~ |LLLTLL- 29 6LL'LL 188)un|on
%SGl  |086'te 60€8ZL  62E'WSL %SLe | LLiv 299°¢ 961z %CyL 9.2 viee 8€6°L %6°ce  [L£5'L2 608'crl  2lLT'SLL saply MN
%6°Le- |96L'GL- 8¥0°G9 YrZ'e8 %S L2 |98e- L0 L L2E'L %S |82L 665°C | WA ¢ %869~ |9€6'0L- LPE'L 112'vT apry-v-eld
BOINISS BpId-vV-EIQ
gouslayiqg | soualsyq 150D [B10] 1803 (101 goUaIalig | souataylq]  SINOH SINOH gouaaylq | adustayid siBusseq  sibussey aoUBIRYI] | @oUBISlId  SNUBASY  2NUIADY uny/einoy
JusoIad unowy usdlad | junowy 20IBS 9oIM8g | jusdlad Junowy juaoled | junowy aie aleq
6L/8L 8L/LL 6L/81 8L/LL 61/81 8L/LL 6L/81 8L/LL

uosuedwo I A-19A0-1BI A

8l0g deg niy L

810z dag niy L

810z dag iy

810¢ dog muy L

61L/81 A4 01 8LILLAA

1oUISiq uoneuodsuel} Ajunon yoowe|p |




%8P £B6'1E 690269 /88099 SIS0 [EJOL
98°es $ %0°0C jold snid - S1S00) pEaIaA0
£9vr  $ ajey Aunoy yoeo) %0t~ (rp8'c) £L0LL 268'gvL sisoD 1aug

%€ PEBWIBAQ SNId sng |lpws %L'6 #50'8 169'0EY 165'26€ 51500 peseg ApnoH
ee § 2jey AnoH ueAlUN %z 0 (L22) S0Z'1Z4 Zer'LzL sisoQ peseg sbesy
%Z'9 S)S0D 32uIg SNid - Woud pesyan0 1Emoy %0°9L ve'LE $62'0L2 010'c€2 abeaiy
LOvE % ajey AnoH |BMoY ha'sh BoUaiBld  adusIBlIg 6L/8L eL/LL uolduasaq
:uopeinojen ajey Aunoy 20k SMld gy :uope|noes ajiw Jod 1509 sdiad  junowy 6L/8F Ad O} SLILLAS
1507 uoljejnoje) uongesadQ sng (e108dg 8102 dos ybnoiyl LA uosuedwo)
¢ abeyd
%38 [0S0 02'S 08's %G Ll-  |%6°€" %0°08 %6°EE %3 T 3 6€ oY %L [2l0 91'69 £v'89 S30IAISS JUIQ [EI0L
%8CL-  |9L0" 8C 0 ¥0't %065 |76 %LT %9'9 %9'ES 0c 'S A %VC  |eC b G209 1069 S80S JBUI0) 110 |
%8€8- |58 0" 210 Z01 %GSL %V %€ b %S'S %987 EP 67 tE %L |50 1 7709 2519 uoneIsdQ sng [erveds|
%896~ |0v'0- 89'0 2070 %308 {%ES %2 L %8'8 %Z'ELL Ll 44 SY %SL |07 P1'8S LES sieddu]
SeIIRIBS 18O
%y9e-  [L0E A 9z8 %t e |%ETL" %G €2 %8G %E'8 €0 e A3 %6Y  |09°€ 8072 8FEL Ajoieu (el
O/AIG# O/AIGE 25 b 0INIOE I0/AIG#  |%E 9 %S9 %00 0/NIC# 10/AIC# A3 I0/AIGH# 0AIGHE I0/AIQ# €592 0/NIG# 8pUoY PUEIS X0L
%L9Z  |SS0 292 202 %L'6S %St %Z'ZL %L %528 60 e 8z %v'S |60t 1962 £5'GL wales X09
%9 0L~ [02'L- 80'0L 82'LL %9'GL-  |%EB- %0°S¥ %E'ES %6k Lo £ v'e %8Ee  |sLe L0'SL 9TTL pueluog G0
EE)
%L8 |0V O oL} [ %G9k~ |%07T %Z 0} %ETh %L 0 80 €9 0L %y'e- 891" 6699 19'89 2IN0Y PaleInaq [B10L
%L 0z-  |Sv o [0 PANA %2t |%L0 %Z 6 %l'6 %0°€C 70 6€ 53 %Ge |v9e 822l €672 RiD uieaur vo
%62 |10 gz'L 68l %362~ |%6'E" %t'LL %b'Gl %Z'Ze Lt L9 8L %g'e- |99 $0'89 0404 ejUBZUBI €0
%e' /- |80°0 €0t N1 %6'€Z- %8 L %8G %L %612 0L~ e 87 %6 |L£78- 19'59 vZ'69 episueesp/s1eleN zZ0
%8'6-  |80°0- 2.0 080 %zl %02 %611 %68l %L P 0 L0k S0l %60 |50 6119 +9°09 doo umoy 10
sinoyg peeinea
%0y  |0C ) 68708 6962 %LE  |%8} %1 65 %E LS %10 00 B0 €l %60 |50 €929 9029 uva Eol
%9Z6- |05GL ¥l %291 %L 86" |%EEh %90 %6Eb %L e L0 60 AP %SLcc |SLvrl 8E'80C £9'EQ J9RUNIOA
%v'g  |20'S 059 8v'65 %L |%PS %108 %lL'¥L %0°9" Lo 80 60 %6 |evE- 98°'99 62702 seply MN
%ELL- |00°2- Z8'2 286 %ELY-  |%6LL- %E"LL %2 62 %L Ve 9'0 sz 61 %¥'0- |92°0 6729 5.'29 apiy-v-e1q
SOIAIaS SpIg-v-ieid
g usdtad | gig wunowy aled ased HiQ usdied | Jig junowy oney oney HIg wedlad | Jig unowy OH/ ANOH/ MQ usdlad | Yig unowy  aey AUnoH  aiey ApnoH uny/einoy
aBesany sbelany XQgeJe X0qase JBussed Bussed
6L/181 gLizt 6L/8L 8L/LL 6L/8L 8LiLL 6LigL 8L/iLL
810z dos nuyL 810z dog nuyL 810z dos nuy L 810z das iy

:Om_._mQEOO adueLwIoUdd 9)e(J O} Jed A

6L/8L A4 03 8L/ILLAA

J014381Q uoneuodsuel | A3Juno? joowel|i}




Tillamook County Transportation District

MONTHLY PERFORMANCE REPORT September 2018
RIDERSHIP BY SERVICE TYPE SEP SEP YTD YTD YTD %

2018 2017 FY 18-19 FY 17-18 Change
Dial-A-Ride Service
Tillamook County 749 770 2,564 2,471 3.8%
NW Rides 793 628 2,119 1,938 9.3%
Volunteer 0 197 50 668 -92.5%
Dial-A-Ride Total 1,542 1,595 4,733 5,077 -6.8%
Deviated Fixed Route Service
Rt 1: Town Loop 3,460 3,814 11,488 12,058 -4.7%
Rt 2: Netarts/Oceanside 686 816 2,241 2,401 -6.7%
Rt 3: Manzanita/Cannon Beach 2,695 3,160 9,978 10,050 -0.7%
Rt 4: Lincoln City 1,289 945 4,055 3,169 28.0%
Local Fixed Rt Total 8,130 8,735 27,762 27,678 0.3%
Inter City Service
Rt 5: Portland 857 928 2,953 3,150 -6.3%
Rt 60X: Salem 877 453 3,072 1,538 99.7%
Rt 70X: Grand Ronde 486 0 1,656 0 #DIV/O!
Inter City Total 2,220 1,381 7,681 4,688 63.8%
Other Services
Tripper Routes 142 232 341 497 -31.4%
Special Bus Operations 260 209 1,134 683 66.0%
Other Services Total 402 441 1,475 1,180 25.0%
TOTAL ALL SERVICES 12,294 12,152 41,651 38,623 7.8%
ONE-WAY TRIPS BY USER GROUP

Fixed YTD YTD YTD %
USER GROUP Route DAR FY 18-19 | FY 17-18 | Change
General (18 years to 60 years of age) 6,414 247 22,920 20,885 9.7%
Senior/Disabled 3,450 1,234 15,824 14,831 6.7%
Child/Youth (less than 18 years of age) 888 62 2,907 2,908 0.0%
Total 10,752 1,542 41,651 38,623 7.8%
OTHER RIDER CATEGORIES Fixed YTD YTD YTD %

Route DAR FY 18-19 | FY 17-18 | Change
Ride Connection 42 FI 195 256 -23.8%
Tillamook Bay Community College 207 348 171 103.5%
NWOTA Visitor Pass 134F _ 663 376 76.3%
Northwest Rides 2355 698 1,944 1,938 0.3%
Helping Hands Shuttle 68 182 220 -17.3%

10/9/2018

09-18 RIDERSHIP REPORT .xlsx




" M. h
ia A i r;
Y.Y
[ Y /] L o
’ M=
W S

Coordinating Committee Meeting
October 12, 2018
Tillamoek County Transportation District
36003 5t
Tillamook, OR
10:00 am—2:00 pm

Teleconference Information
866/755-7677
Pin # 005939
Agenda
10:00— Introducti Wel to Guest Doug Pilant
j0:05a | 1+ Introductions. Welcome to Guests g
2, Consent Calendar (Action [tems)

10:05— 4 September 14, 2018 Meeting Minutes (Attached) Doug Pilant
10:15a 4 September 2018 Financial Report

4 Ridership Tracking (September 2018)
10:15— | 3. Open Trip Planner Thomas Craig
10:45a % Discussion All
10:45— . :
11:00a | 4 NW Connector Holiday Schedule Doug Pilant/All
11:00— ) 5o : Jeff
11:302 5. North Coast Tourism Studio/Transportation Hazen,/Mary

6. NWOTA Standing Items

% IGA All
11:30— % NWConnector Newsletter, NW Oregon Events Mary McArthur
12:00p 4% Potential addition of Bike and Ride Information on Mary McArthur

Website

% Signage Update Doug Pilant
12:00— | 7 Lunch
12:30p
F2rag= 8. NW Standing Items (Continued)

:30 : All
2:00p 9. Other Business and Member Updates
Attachments:

September 14, 2018 Meeting Minutes

NWOTA meetings are open to the public and accommodations will be provided to persons with
disabilities. If a sign language interpreter is needed, please call Mary McArthur at 503.228.5565 at least 48 hours
prior to the meeting.

wWww. nwconnector. net

bt cC Rtk

TRANSPORTATION

il TRANSPORTATION

& SUNSET EMPIRE
% BISTRICT




NW Oregon Transit Alliance (NWOTA)
Coordinating Committee Meeting Minutes
September 14, 2018
Tillamook County Transportation District
Tillamook, OR

Introductions: Doug Pilant, Coordinating Committee Chair, opened the meeting. Meeting attendees included:

— Cynda Bruce—Lincoln County Transportation

—  Paul Lewicki—Sunset Empire Transit District

— Doug Pilant—Tillamook County Transportation

Arla Miller—ODOT

Excused: Mark Bernard, Jeff Hazen, Lee Lazaro, Todd Wood

Consent Calendar: Unanimously approved. (Consensus)

% August 10, 2018 Meeting Minutes—No corrections.

4 August 2018 Financial Reports—Doug reviewed a revised August 2018 report that includes partner match
contributions to date. TCTD went ahead and paid their entire match at the front end and will send out a
memo giving the other partners the option to do so if they want/cag do so. Partners approved an October
Travel Glossy insert in The Boomer for $475. TCTD annual administrative expenses for the year were also
prepaid. d

4 Ridership Tracking—Change of reporting to a FY, will mean that only ¥ yeéar of the Coastal Connector
will included in last year. CCR’s reductions in service will impact numbers this upcoming year. Partners
will review the assumptions for the perf?x_'mance calculations. Marywill send out the assumptions. The
operating data will also be organized by the Connector routes, as in the current reporting form.

NWConnector Transit Access Study

Ken and Ryan reported. Surveyor is looking at Columbia County stops. Rgan’s shop is working on design.
Schedule has been pushed beyond the original end date of Dec/Jan: Looking at a February ending date.
Preferably would like to replace the Neotzu stop in Lincoln County. Cvnda will come up with a better option, a
stop that is ready to go other than the design components. Upcoming deliverables: Cost estimates and review
of design package in December, individual stop designs will be reviewed incrementally. Scheduling of the
surveying was delayed due to a contracting issue, so the schedule for getting stop designs to each partner is
being amended. Doufg reported that there is a lot in Pacific City across from a couple of the proposed stop that
is vacant and for sale. TCTD is considering purchasing that lot for a park and ride, and if that happens, it
would make more sense to have the new stop located there instead. Doug, Ken and Ryan will discuss the
Pacific City stop off line. Cynda als¢ asked for some help on bus stop signs, and Ken will follow up with her.

NWOTA Standing [tems

% IGA—TCTD’s Board passed the IGA with two clerical edits: #4 Coordinating Fiscal Entity should read
‘Tillamook County Transportation District, and 11B Duration should be June 30, 2019. Doug noted that it
« isimportant to get the IGA approved by all partners, because there may be an opportunity to add Yamhill
- asapartner, and the NWOTA legal paperwork needs to be in order. Yamhill is also looking adding transit
technology enhancements, which, if they were part of NWOTA and were to use Swiftly, the technology
could be used system-wide.

+ NW Connector Newsletter, NW Oregon Events—Suggestion on a story would be how NWConnector
system works: How connections are organized—arrival/departure windows are created around
neighboring systems. Wait and recovery time is built in to catch connecting buses. Riders can track buses
in real time on.their mobile device bus app. If bus gets too far off schedule (more than 1 minute early or 4
minutes late), the bus won’t show up on the app. Riders can call their local agency, they can still see the
bus and let you know where it is. If there is heavy traffic or an accident, buses can get behind. Another
story could be how to travel with luggage and with a bike.

Other potential stories, from the July NWOTA Board meeting: Doug’s board chair will be taking transit to
Yachats and will keep a diary, which can be converted into a NW Connector story, barriers identified in
Cascadia Report, and an overview of the Oregon Coast Bike Plan would be another good topic. Bike Rack
information. Mary will write up some items for review at the September board meeting.

1|Page



4 Potential Addition of Bike and Ride Information on Website—Continues to be a work in progress. Mary
will contact Sports Works on instructions. Jeff will send Mary SETD’s bicycle information for drafting a
NWOTA policy. October agenda item.

4 Signage—Doug provided an updated shelter posture. Only a couple of edits are still needed. Partners
agreed that the design is good and ready to go. Doug also handed out two more examples of the signs, one
blue and one green. Only concern raised was whether the green would go with the blue poles and shelters.
Doug will send out to Todd, Jeff and Lee for their feedback.

Management Plan Update—Mary went over the proposed amendments. (See attached)

& Visitor Passes—May want to look at how visitor passes work, whether they could be used anywhere in the
system, and did not have to be connected with a back—forth to the valley. Consider making the focus
system travel, rather than travel from the valley combined with travel up and down the coast. Look at
visitor pass usage at a future meeting.

+

5. Member Updates

% Sunset Empire—Paul went to the zero-emission transit conference in Los Angeles. Huge global
movement to find/use sustainable energy and infrastructure, LA'is 1ook1ng at being totally battery-
operated within the next 20 years. Will be a big transition. Need both infrastructure, buses, back-up
power generation. Hydrogen cells will refuel in 5 to 104ninutes. Réfueling is another big conmderatlon
As fleets get larger, more expensive to use batteries gn per bus basis. Hﬂ]s require a certam amount of
power capacity.

4 Lincoln—Cynda has been working on Drug and Alcohol Review. Waiting to getlab certlﬁcates
Certificates need to be signed by current lab employees, turnover has been a problem. STIF bylaws have
been adopted. Are planning on combining their STIF and Transit Advisory Committees. The District’s
State Audit noted that a Reasonable Modification Policy (which is differentihan Reasonable
Accommodation Policy) for all contractors is requited. Cynda will send it out. Just ordered 3 buses.

4 Tillamook—New HR specialist, Helen, who will be workifigwith NWQFA. Experienced in handling HR
matters. Completed Title 6 update and were found in'compliance..Summer shuttles were very successful.
Operated one extra day, ridership was up over5o0%:. Inthe middie of the STIF process.

Recorded: Mary McArthr, Col-Pac EDD and NWOTA Staff
; | ;

2|Page



1 :28eg 2ouBLIEA 79 1e8png QLA/M Hoday qOg AYIuon
%388 LLTY6EET 00°000°L¥1 €TLSOEL L1¥S8°S €TTES9
%0070 00°000°S 00°000°S 000 000 00°0
%000 00°000°S 00°000°S 00°0 000 00°0
%000 00°000°S 00°000°S 00°0 000 000
%81 ¥ 00°05L°89 00°0SL°TL 00°000°¢ 00°0 000
%00°0 00°05L'89 00°0SL°89 00°0 00°0 00°0
%00°001 000 00°000°¢ 00°000°¢ 000 00°0
%CETIl LLT61°09 00°0ST°0L €T°LSO'0T LI¥S8'S £T°TES9
%00°0 00°000°§ 00°000°S 000 L99TY 000
%STSI 00°STH'ST 00°000°0€ 00°SLS Y 00°00S°T 00°050°1
%00°0 00°000°¢ 00°000°s 000 L99TY 000
%T6'1C LLL1IS 61 00°000°ST €TT8Y'S £€°€80°C €8y S
%000 00°0ST°S 00°0ST°¢ 00°0 0S°LEY 000
%EE9T (00°000°c2T) 00°000°L¥1 i 00°000%T 00°000°¥ 000 -
%00°001 000 00°000°C1 00°000°C1 00°0 000
%00'ST (00°000°9€) 00°000°8% 00°000°Z1 007000 00°0
%00°0 {00000°L8) 00°000°L8 000 00°0 00°0

%ST QOUBLIBA 198pag ®1o], feruoy 198png porind [en10y pouag

1R3png (B0l hiza) Elicliiilg) JuaLnD JUBLINY)

810T/0€/6 USNOIYL, 810T/1/6 WOl

nodoy] up papnyouy suorjoesues], pajsoduy) - JUSWSILIS [BIOUBUIL]

PLsiq uonejrodsueay, A)uno)) Joowe|fiy,

009

SLI6
0¢clo

0ces
061¢
(4%
[01¢
001¢

| REY%
cTey
00¢€

INd L#:LS-10 81/01/01 -91ed

sosuadxd [e10],
AepnQ [eynde) 18101,
saseyoin [ende) [e10],
sIayjays/eseudts doig sng
saseyoing [eude)
RepnQ reyde)
SigJSueli] [e10],
amypuadxy 21mnin,j I0J 2AI9SY
pun,j [BI2UAL) 0} IJSULI]
SIQJSuBIl]
SJIAIRS PUR S[RLIAIBIA [BIO],
Bulurel] 29 joABI]
Funare
Q0URUIIUIBIA SHSGIM
uoddng sAneLSTUILPY
SAOIAIRS [BUOISSAJOI]
SIOIAIAS PUR S[RLIAIRIA]
sasuadxg

§90IN0S3Y [BI0L
pun,| [219Ua0) WolL] IaJsuel]
YIIeN 0] Ieured VIOMN
fende)) Surjiop
$22IN0S3Y



sseg|¢

810z Ioqusldag :91ep 0] §S0I801d UB[J JIOM IUWL3eUR VIOMN

IiT N apiaoad ‘suoido ysuel; uo _ =5
Joured o3 sjusas Fuijpdoig , "S9[RA01q
‘108 _— pue s1sipAd1q am | 3e3s | peyl wodsueay 0] 3un{oo] s1apL
19goIO—A( 10§ 195 BUISTIAPY | L 1981109 ‘SISI[IAILG IOUBISIP YIOMN J0] SanIUAUIE PUR SOIIAIDS
| -8uo] pue -110ys Aq fear1y Juipnpour weadoad
| _ popdeu sanuswE AJIIUsp] e apd /u aig B ysiqeIsy | oI
_|.| — D | = o e A T e ———— S ik
“BURaNOLI D101 ‘SN |
,_ *SIOLLISIP A131]] 01 A[JIME - ‘A3ojouyday saULdS-AYI-PUIYI] nes
_ pappe aaey sisutied as11y], 6103 | ‘UOLIRUIIOfUT S| DU} [B9Y VIOMN | sjuawsoueyus AZojouyoal, | A1
| |
| pasu Sutajosal . d
]10¢T arias 10193UU0) 91 01 o1dads
w aq o1 s1eadde a11sqam pajepdp | wo1sAs uogeuLIOjuT Su0yd |
w - - - B parewone ue juswsdwy | Jr
, satorjod ss[upsyas AepIjoL] S[uLp
| pue soyig Suniodsued], uo | 120 159 pue pooy ‘03egsn[ ‘spewrue
_ Supliom ‘sppwuIUy mﬁEo&mnﬁ.H ‘s9[0401q 10] SPIEPUE]S JIOFUI0D
uo £orjod pazejdwo) Io8uassed juaisisuod doppasg | gt
R ‘ - - “Gzoz £q uoneoo|
. 5208 Aq ‘smoj[e doas 10199uu0) Iofewt Yoro 18
| adeusrs Sunepdn Surpuny jueid arlL . ;
se ‘soseyd uf SSIIUSUIR ISY10 PUE ‘Sojqelotn]
_ ‘sI9][Us popueiq apiacig | OF
o | - — = -
- mu‘mmmﬁoo | , UEMSUOD ST LOoao ) pue sdoys Tofeur 10 2218y | qgr |
| 10T ALAS "91ISqaM 10309UU0)) 3T} |
paterduo) _ 10y 1001 Sutuueld diry e dofess | VT |

91B(] 0] SSaa300g

uoneduro)

jedauy],

Siial] uonoy

peoy

S10¢ Joquualdog :91e( 01 SSda3oag

ueld v—no M E@E@M_N:NE

HONTINTANOD ANV SSHOOV YAUTA HAOUJIAI ¥ TVOD _

NVId NOLLOV HOLDANNOD




asrg|b

810 Jequuoidag :a3ep 01 ssa1301g UR[J YIOM JUsmeSeUR N VIOMN

_ _
_ alIsgam uodalQEArL] uo |
_ suondo voneytodsuety, ur paisry
_ apIng [pARL], Ul SUISIIOAPY

L10g

"tre[d Suned{Tew [EnUUR | nes
31 Ul U081 [2ARI], @pN[oU] | 10193UU0))

‘weasoid Suneyreut

LU0321() JO SISPUOAA U2ADS,
1194} Ul 10109UU0)) 31} opnyoul
01 UOFBI() [PABL, [HIM MIOA

- . o
a1[duro)

. 21S¢PMm Uo |
poaplaoid futaq sdy [patyy suioy |

g10%g

6102

uURINsSuUo))

-asn
01 SI9UIOISTI) 10J SATINIUL PUB
ASeo ST 1B1[] 911SqoM B 9PLAOI]

uefd SupeyIew
Tenuue ui sai89leI}s apnou]

jels
1019910

"SJUMODSTP UOSEas
-JJO I9JJ0 UED JB{[} SUOLORINE
J0]ISIA [BOO] [IM J02UUO0))

as

7 pa19]duIo)) Teag Is1q

L10%
ut Suruurgdeq
‘A[enuuy

droL

"£10% W Jutuurdaq Sarouase dAly

[[e e JJe1s 10] UOISSas Fururen
[enuue ue apao1g -sassed
IOJISIA JO o7es 9y} J0J weldoxd
Jurures) 90IAI9S J9WOISNO

pue 3uTUTRI] IPALID ® YSIqeISH

91

uonpuLojut aqnd ey
§$9a804d ur Sunosrey

L1og
ut guruudaq
‘guro3uQ

Iels
J10139UU0))

"uordod

£unoo-9ay 913 Inoy3noayy
A[snosurynuIls sUOP

st jey} udtedures uorjewrIOfUL
onqnd pue Sugerew gurogug

d<

4103

wwpy
J03199Uu0))

"10309UU0)) a1 10] uonisod
I0)RUIPIOO)) JUIUIIA[OAU]
I[N [eUOoIFoI B pun,g

91¢(1 01 5504301

SSUNTAVMYV AOLIINNOD HLOOUd T IV

uonsjduro)

josae],

| U0 UOLeWIOUT 9Pl U, 9§iq

suoyels aredaa

afiq “wreaford yuawarduay
9HsqoMm

10139UU0D MN YT

ST U0V peo]

0D

NVId NOLIOV HOIDANNOD




s83uegls 810z Jaquisldag :91ep 0] ssa1doid Ue[d YIOM JUPWRSeUBR VIOMN
15113 paydope aq 03 spaau .
ssei8oad uj | 6102 ardlL Auno) [rryurex ojug
UER[d WUSWSEUBIAl PUR VDI welsAs 10100uu0)) oY) puedxy | €
S9IN0I _— 7 ) e
0€ pue 9 AMH uo Suruedder 1071 (0€ ‘0% ‘9 AMH) SIOPLLIOD
1SB0D 0] AS[[BA TIO S[9AS] 9JIAISS
pue setousnbaij aseoiouy | O
f———— —
|
_ 9911IUITOD Su0guQ sdoy Joured “921A19S [B90]
-qns e Sursn noyyum Juiuaddery ) JORUIWWO) | pue 9014185 10109UUC)) UIIMID]
| sowuny h@%mﬁﬁ.ﬂ. OHNHHE.UMOOU m.m"
| ; =1 ‘werdord jorid 103euno) syl |
PoIPWWOod | ajepdn pue 10§ paaedaid spquiatuy puoldal _
i . | moawarApwirenb | ook : . . 1 Wl _
-qns e Juisn Jnoyym pajejdwio) il e [eurdLio ay) a3epdn pue mairal 9D1A13S 10}9AUUOY 10)
. R |01 99)IWWOdqNS DY} AUSAUOY | AUDD | s”lqepwy pajeuip100d dopad( _ \4
ATFATTAA HOIAYES TVNOIDTA FAOIINI € TVOD |
k| a8eusis 10303UUODMN | Sdauaed SSOUDIEME |
_ .mmm&oﬁ Ul . 61028102 | aseatoul pue oyepd[) v wR}sAs pue puelq asealdu] 4z
‘epuage | B S
_ uorsstwuo)) uonelodsuely,
poterduroo - Uu03aI() 91} uo 133 p— ueld JUsUISeuRA

ﬁOﬂdaﬁ@m@uQ T0 I10oM 20§ |

aje( 01 ssauagoag

uonsjduroyy

wdaey,

0] WOSTel'] LOJO YIm JI0OM
‘uonejuasaid yutodiomod

anuw-ot e aredaiy

SUWD] U0y

pea]

91epdn 01 suonejussaid apraoig

a1 Jo uone[duwod uodn
sdnoi8 apmalels pue euordas

NVId NOLLOV HOLOANNOD



28849 810z Jequialdag :a3ep 01 §531801J UB[J YIOM JUSUISSRURIAl V.LOMN

| | | —— weis = |
- =il samieys uo sdiysiosuods ; : SI03BI9UST aNUDAS. -
i pauris 0N i 6oz i 10 SUISTIDAPE JIPISUOD) .mcu.uoﬁlco _ JOJIDUUOY M N 21ud1Isoau] or
_ — T _ "'0g0T | i
UoSIery | Aq S9use 1500 [euonetedo
7 PoHRSEN 008 LOdO [eUOL3aI [EUOLIPPE 10] YOO[
_ 01 Apnis peqielep e ojopdwo) | gb
swinysAs stouied jseo] € e
uo dunpordy sng awiiy (v e | |
0. 2UDpRLy SN W TR e Loz SaBAEY . |
e[ Juowodeury e ur quiuwidaq A01PIULOY) ‘saseoand dofew toyyo pue |
APNIS $SQ00Y JISURL], o ‘dutodu() = g S9OIAIRS JUHNSUOD ‘Sanjiuaiue
ANISGaMm Uy o doys quawdinba sanooad’
§saddorg up/paseduio) | Aputof o3 soutumaoddo aop ooy | yb
_ ALTTIIVLS TVIONVNIA ANV TVNOLLVZINVOIO HSVIYONI ¥ TvOoD |
= = =— — :
I — - Quowddeurw vlup ;
u 19JJeoIay}  pue souruuivw yuswdimby _
P9lIeIS 10N | Sul08u0 610T duipnpoul ‘uoidal ayl 10j ADD

Aqiuswadwy  sardojouraal UL vIEP
[ : duewone urppe e Noo|

S9INOI 10309UUO) MN
yoleul 0] sjusunSn{pe

_ o1ejdute; Surrodai eep a1} wes szoquIew
| suios Jupfew 1nq ‘patejduro)

|

I

Sulsn ‘IeqUIauI YOS WO} B1ep _ d
[euoneiado A[yuour urelqQ VIOMN J0109TIOY JO S30NEL
= : _ UONIS[[0d BIRP JZIpIepuels | J€

Anpiuouwx
8uro3uo ‘L10%

—— e e — - — —

|

*SAUIL JAJSURI) 9JRUIPIO0D 0] {

SABM SSDSTP PUR “UOHRILIOJUL _

| JI0M SPISU IS 10T 104 ssed 1031S1A puE 901A10S _
| adeys 01 (LNIOd sapeose)

_ O} [iim Funaeys) INIOd puv

quajuy se QUD,A SODIALYS JISuRL)

19100 am andoqeip e uedQ

uonaduro)

91e(] 0] 5Soad0.0 ] Sl uonoy NVId NOLLOV HYOLOINNOD

jo8aey,



a8edl|l Q10T Joquialdag :91ep 01 S591304g UB[J YIOM JUPWLSRUR]A VI.OMN

R E _ _ SRuyas n
_  VLOMN pue Ji1s Suruiquioo _
m . o) Emmﬁ.m@.oﬁ 23D | . WIISAS 10399UUODMN _
| 6102 W £1081pY ..WSMMWMMWMMM i nwlﬂuu_-”@. ay3 103 dnoad A1oswape | ob
_ _ .z... ...mco wa_am&u_ﬁmm. ... m w fﬁmmﬂmfo@.@oo

_ _
_ ¥ Uy 359193l S 919L[} |
|

|
!
{
|

a1ep 01 9%w3s UoIssnoOsI(Y

_ | J199s 01 sequ], a3 UM IOM - Al | L e
. (voI VYOI 91 0
‘pardope aae 1 01
1P11ISIJ nosmﬁomwcw,ﬁwﬁnﬂpow HeIp OIS SIOLLIB( 9A[0S2I PUR Saidale]s
Yoourey[LL, pue A1unoy ujoour| opuoid | yuoueSeuew feriusiod SsnosTp
" groz wrarsiduo) 011D | 03 preoq sfousge rourred yoed
' aALoL wolf seanejussaldal susauo) | g¥
(19pes] |  -3uIpUNJ UOTIEUIPIOOD [eUOISal
_ VIO Yim Juruosrery L1032 | -00QIDL) I03 Su1Aqqof Ul 90UeISISSE
101 10§ (V.1LO) UOTIEI0SSY
_ jsuel], 03910 93 O} MO Yoray | JFY
seworjod seyig Suntodsuery, "weyd juswaSeUE

91} UI POpUSUILIO0a] seare o1do)
10§ sawtfod [enIur 4sijqelss
pue ‘[enuewt sainpadord

pue samrjod euordar e doprsqg | b

pue so[npayog AepijoH o
Sunjiom ‘seurtuy Suniodsuei], teoe LOd |
uoforjod paeiduro)

o1eQ 01 5504804 HORYIELIOD SUIOY] UOLIOY peoy NVId NOLLOV HOIDTNNOD

jodae],



282 d]8 810% Joquuialdas :93ep 01 $501301J UR[d JIOoM 1udwedeury V.ILOMN
r _ T - JuatAojdule _ _
_ I3 0 950 9qRPIoHE
i Juisnoy puiyj 01 peSuEyD i
— . I91yEalat]) soakordure 10 sassed diys1epL omooul
BECRSMCTAINERY | BuroBuo ‘g1o8 snq 'disiapl swodtl -MO[ UM S9IN0L Sutdjuaps
. , ~MO[ YIim $9IN0I JO 35BI9A00 | ‘SO1E] PRONPY] (SISPLI 2LWOOU]
FuIsesdoul ‘'saae] peonpay _ MO] A TIDISAS JOIUUOYM N
7 'SEANUAOUL [(RIIURIOL e | A} Jo uonezZl{n aseanuy | (IS
I e Y quawdopasp jo L
UONIpUod ¢ sjuswasosdu _
_ ysueq) oeudosdde |
| LU 0] S103DAIIP |
guiuuejd e20] Yam [
_ et 31euIp100d pue sjesodotd T | [
2uop Furaq A[enaeg | w:awﬁw% ,.mﬁ%ﬂ | URWdo[PADD MU MBIADY e Y .:< _ _
L & ‘pasodoad |
adu syuswdo(paap
MDU UBYM PALJIIOU 3q “sassa00.ad paoadde
_ 071 3SR PUR BAIR 9DIALIS 9} Juatdoleaap pue Jurune(d [220] |
ugum Aouagde [Raof yoea 1 OJUL 10JOBUU0Y Ay Auadaul 03 | |
ml | (e A f:::ﬁa priuon e .._:c:u:u.,._:: [BOO] L}IM Jauieg | DS |
| | | 1
_ Sm.wwm_wnwm *10309UU0))
pa1ae)s 10N Arenuy .S.EWG _oow 91 9PLI 0] MOY] 9]BI)SUOUISD
e 01 ‘SI91UsD I0IUSS Se
| IDUIAAOAU] ons ‘serusge AJTUNWITIOD [B00]
— _ _ MAM | 5) no oI ‘Siseq [enuue Ue uQ | gS
1 T T eI P | NSqOM 10j0aU U0 | |
u o1} uo i 1oy aded v pying | ,.
Jie Nl e 21 urnsuo)  pue ‘weadoad spedy, o) usueay,, _
paladwo) QIOT | S1waAy] puie seapy diig, ~::x§w _ t < it 1:~:E~.uv o :;.:w? | ”_

dle(q 01 ssaa80.0g

uonsjduro)

- - SWa1] UCHOY

.?HH‘HHMANEA ALINANWNOD AINVHNA S TVOD

pedY

1daouod Funestew v oy uepd |
:OSE.SEU_QS: uy aoﬂ.&foa vS

NV1d NOLIOV: mosumzz_ao



— — —

a3ed]|6 g10¢% Joquualdes :o1Bp 01 ssa1d01d ue[d JIOM HRURSBUBIN VIOMN

aprg-e-[eiq op 03
| 21199319 3800 a10Ul 9q Avul
| ‘sdug epru ise[ aje3usoAu] e

uondjduro
91e(] 01 SSvaBoaq muu_.:“ T o SWalj uonoy pro] NVId NOLLDV HOLOANNOD



g‘.-’;ﬂ:;q
&7 ¥ S Tillamook County Transportation District

E\ , “Connecting the community through sustainable transit services”
<
STATEWIDE TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT FUND ADVISORY COMMITTEE
MEMBER APPLICATION
Name
Jeff Hazen
Address

900 Marine Dr.

City State Zip
Astoria OR 97103
Home/Cell Phone Work Phone
503-298-7114 503-861-5399

Occupation (if applicable)
Executive Director — Sunset Empire Transportation District

Community Affiliations / Interests
Vice Chair — ODOT Public Transportation Advisory Committee
Member — Seaside Rotary Club

The STIF Advisory Committee is required to meet at least two times each year. Your
appointment to the committee is for a 2-year term. Meetings are held at the TCTD
Administrative Office from 12:00pm — 1:30pm. Lunch is provided.

Signature Date
?/// 10/10/18

U == R0




Regular Meeting 9/20/18
Tillamook County Transportation District e
Board of Directors Regular Monthly Meeting
Thursday, September 20, 2018 — 6:30PM
Transportation Building

3600 Third Street, Ste. A Tillamook, OR
Meeting Minutes

1. Call to Order: Board Chair Judy Riggs called the meeting to order at 6:32pm
2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call:
Present
TCTD Board of Directors
Judy Riggs, Board Chair
Marty Holm, Vice Chair
Gary Hanenkrat, Treasurer
Jim Huffman, Secretary
Jackie Edwards, Director
Merrianne Hoffman, Director
Melissa Carlson-Swanson, Director

TCTD Staff

Doug Pilant, General Manager

Brent Olson, Superintendent

Tabatha Welch, Accounting Specialist

Helen Mercado-Romero, HR Specialist/Board Clerk

Absent
None.

Guest
Chris Kell

4. Executive Session: Board Chair Judy Riggs called for an Executive Session in regard
to Performance Evaluations. Protocol was announced, and the Executive Session
commenced. Only board members met for the Executive Session. The regular
meeting resumed at 7:41PM.

Motion by Director Holm to award GM Doug Pilant a 6.5% pay raise retroactive to his
annual hire date of January 23, 2018. Motion Seconded by Director Huffman. Board
Chair Judy Riggs called for further discussion; followed by none, she called for the vote.
MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY
By Directors Edwards, Hanenkrat, Hoffman,
Carlson-Swanson and Board
Chair Judy Riggs.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

1



Regular Meeting 9/20/18
REPORTS

5. Information: General Managers Report:

a. Financial Report: GM Doug Pilant reviewed the August 2018 Financial Report.
Director Hanenkrat asked a question about the legal fee expenses for the
brokerage. GM Pilant explained those expenses were incurred to negotiate the
contract between the District and CareOregon and explained these expenses
would be allocated to the brokerage budget. Director Huffman suggested that
all reports for brokerage be separated, including credit card reports.

b. Service Measure Performance Report: GM Pilant reviewed the Service
Measure Performance Report, noting that the District provided 15,098 trips last
month. Volunteer related dial-a-ride trips are down 9.5%, due to a lack of
available volunteers. The District hasn't had any volunteers available the past
8 plus weeks. GM Pilant reported that beginning this year that all passengers,
including care attendants and children are being counted for the National
Transit Database. Therefore, this next year there will be an increase in
ridership. GM Doug Pilant handed-out a corrected version of the Monthly
Performance Report and reported there has been a strong ridership market
between Lincoln County to Portland. Other Services ridership is up 45.2%,
which is credited to the PC Shuttle, which had an overall ridership increase of
305% over the past year.

c. Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance: GM Doug Pilant reviewed the NWOTA
meeting agenda, minutes, finance report with the Board. GM Doug Pilant said
the Coordinating Committee agreed to implement a year-long marketing
campaign to purchase advertisements and submit articles on how to use the
NW Connector to travel to the coast in NW Boomer & Senior Newspaper. The
NW Boomer household distribution is 45,000 and will target senior citizens who
might consider riding the bus to the coast. The Rural Transit Assistance
Program (RTAP) awarded the NW Connector website as #1 in the nation and
awarded NWOTA a $300 prize. Lincoln County will be going live with Swifty in
the next few weeks and we’ll be able to see their buses in real time. NWOTA
is planning to discuss expanding the partnership to Yamhill County.

d. Planning & Development:

i. Cape Kiwanda Master Plan: The PC-Woods Parking Plan Management
Team met on Meeting held on August 28, 2018. A follow-up meeting
with the PC-Woods Parking Management Plan Community Advisory
Committee met the following week. Both GM Doug Pilant and Director
Hoffman attended this meeting.

ii. City of Tillamook Transportation Planning Meeting: Nothing to report.

ii. Cloverdale bus stop: Rachel Hagerty has been meeting with ODOT, the
County Public Works and PUD to discuss a plan to move the County
and PUD maintenance yards to the ODOT maintenance yard in Hebo.
This would free-up property to be used for low income housing in
Cloverdale. This could enable the County to use the Cloverdale grant to
be repurposed to another project in Cloverdale.

iv. Grand Ronde Transit Development Plan: GM Doug Pilant reported the
the Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde submitted a the Tribal Funding
Grant grant to purchase small buses and provide service between Spirit
Mountain, Grand Ronde and Dallas.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marlks report a speaker’s exact words.

2



Regular Meeting 9/20/18

v. Oregon Coast Bike Route Plan: GM Doug Pilant reported that in July
the ODOT Region 2-Area 1 began a planning process to create a new
bike plan for entirety of Highway 101. GM Doug Pilant reported the
District conducted an onboard survey during the 2015 tourist season for
the Intercity Transportation Enhancement Plan and learned about 10%
of Route 5 ridership are bicyclist traveling to and from the coast on any
given day. The new Bike Route Plan will be important to TCTD as it will
identify and communicate to bicyclist the specific locations to access
public transportation and develop facilities that provide services for
bicyclists.

vi. Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF): GM Pilant
reported that its critical the District submit an application at the ODOT
November 1%tdeadline. TCTD has included STIF monies in its FY 2018-
19 Budget to use STIF as local match to purchase replacement and
expansion vehicles. If the District fails to meet this deadline it will be the
following year before these funds can be accessed. The goal will be to
engage the STIF Advisory Committee and get their recommendation to
move forward with matching funds to purchase buses and vans. GM
Doug Pilant said the monies can also be used to develop bus stops.
Staff will be scheduling a STIF planning meeting in October to bring a
proposal to the Board to approve in October and meet the November
deadline.

e. Grant Funding: GM Doug Pilant will submit a revised grant to SDAQ for video
cameras at the Transit Visitor Center to provide a specn‘lc application request.
f. Facility/Property Management:

i. Tillamook Family Counseling and TCTD WI|| share the cost of new

signage for the street monument sign and the building.
g. Miscellaneous:

i. GM Doug Pilant reported that NW Rides is fully staffed and trained. The
DHS Volunteer program has some issues that still need to be resolved.
NW Rides has 2 new providers, Willamette Valley Transport and Metro
West.

ii. Sunset Empire Transportation District (SETD): GM Doug Pilant has
been discussing the possibility of allowing SETD the opportunity to
piggyback onto the District's Ecolane user’s license. This access would
provide SETD staff with full access to Ecolane to manage their
paratransit, dial-a-ride and NEMT operations. SETD is the lowest cost
transportation provider in Clatsop County and giving them access could
save the NW Rides brokerage a lot money.

iii. GM Pilant reported that the CEO of CareOregon, Mimi Haley, visited the
brokerage and said she was very impressed with progress Cathy and
the NW Rides team had made the first 8 weeks of operation. She said
Cathy and her staff have accomplished metrics they expected would
take 4 to 6 months. Next steps are to make sure we are able to complete
the brokerage reports and submit them to CareOregon in a timely
manner.

iv. GM Pilant requested moving November board meeting. Board meeting
will be held on November 29, 2018. Notice should be posted for that day.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

3



Regular Meeting 9/20/18
v. A RFP for a revised Strategic Plan Assessment has been distributed.

The original plan was only effective for 3-5 years. A request was made
for GM Pilant to send out copies via email to the Board. Director Holm
requested the original plan be distributed to the board members who
haven't seen it.

vi. State Timber Revenue Class Action Lawsuit: GM Pilant reported the
Commissioners hosted a meeting last week to provide an update on the
Timber Class Action Lawsuit. They are planning to go to Court in mid-
2019. The State of Oregon has lost 19 of 20 motions and the only
decision the Jury will be asked make is to determine the present value
of money lost beginning in 2001. The estimated Lawsuit is currently
valued at $1.4 billion cost if which $360 million could come to Tillamook
County.

vii. A new Wellness Center Policy and Facility Preventative Maintenance
Plan have been included in the Consent Calendar for approval tonight.

CONSENT CALENDAR
Some typos were pointed out:
- p. 40 Property Maintenance Checklist: should be “dollies”, not “dolly’s”
- p. 41 Property Maintenance Checklist: should be “temporary”, not “temporty”
and should be “Shut-off” of water.
- p. 35 Board Minutes, should be “we” instead of “he”, p. 37 should be “TCCA”,
and Director Holm was NOT present at the meeting.

6. Motion: Approval of Minutes of August 23, 2018 Board Meeting.

DISCUSSION ITEMS
7. Staff Comments/Concerns
GM Doug Pilant: Thank you.
Superintendent Brent Olson: Positive comments on staff and was glad to see Marty
back.
Accounting Specialist Tabatha Welch: Happy to see Marty back.
HR Specialist/Board Clerk Helen Mercado-Romero: Exciting for the new position.

8. Board of Directors Comments/Concerns
Jim Huffman — comments regarding Timber class action suit.
Merrianne Hoffman — None.
Judy Riggs — none
Marty Holm — Thanked everyone.
Jackie Edwards — None.
Gary Hanenkrat — None.
Melissa Carlson-Swanson — None.

UPCOMING EVENTS
None.

Adjournment: Board Chair Riggs adjourned the meeting at 8:59pm.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

4



Regular Meeting 9/20/18
These minutes approved this 25th day of October 2018.

ATTEST:

Judy Riggs, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

5



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

IN THE MATTER OF ADOPTING )
THE TCTD INTERCITY TRANSIT )
ENHANCEMENT PLAN ) RESOLUTION NO. 18-23

WHEREAS, in January 2017, Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD)
finalized the TCTD Intercity Transit Enhancement Plan (the "IC Plan"), attached hereto
as Exhibit A, to improve intercity connections to/from/within Tillamook County and
increase opportunities for service with Greyhound and Amtrak: and

WHEREAS, in developing the IC Plan, TCTD coordinated with each of its service
partners in a series of meetings, resulting in two technical memoranda that identified
near-term recommendations as well as service additions contingent on securing
additional funding; and

WHEREAS, on January 2, 2018, TCTD began implementation of the IC Plan’s
recommendations by increasing the number of connections in Cannon Beach and
extending service from Grand Ronde to Salem; and

WHEREAS, the IC Plan stil has relevant service enhancement
recommendations to be considered such as improving connections in Lincoln City and
increasing service to Greyhound and Amtrak in Portland; and

WHEREAS, with the passage of House Bill 2017 in 2017, the Oregon Legislature
established the Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF) to expand public
transportation services throughout Oregon through distribution of STIF Formula Funds;
and

WHEREAS, the STIF Formula Funds are distributed to Qualified Entities, of
which TCTD is Tillamook County's designated Qualified Entity; and

WHEREAS, to apply for such funds, TCTD must submit a STIF Plan that may
include projects from locally adopted plans: and

WHEREAS, TCTD wishes to include the IC Plan in its STIF Plan application as a
locally adopted plan in order to continue to implement aspects of the IC Plan that were
identified therein as being contingent on securing additional funding; and

WHEREAS, TCTD has determined that, with the inclusion of projects from the IC

Plan in its STIF Plan application, TCTD may be eligible for up to $959,400 of STIF
Formula Funds over the next three fiscal years; and

45039-27477 18-23 TCTD Intercity Enhancement Plan.DOCV10/6/2018



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation
District Board of Directors that:

TCTD adopts the TCTD Intercity Transit Enhancement Plan.
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 18" day of October 2018.

ATTEST:

By: By:
Judy Riggs, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

45039-27477 18-23 TCTD Intercity Enhancement Plan.DOCV10/6/2018



EXHIBIT A

TCTD INTERCITY TRANSIT ENHANCEMENT PLAN

45039-27477 18-23 TCTD Intercity Enhancement Plan.DOCV10/6/2018



[ oA . , ) ‘ )

A KITTELSON & ASSOCIATES, INC.
TRANSPORTATIONENGINEERING /PLANNING
|\.\ \:,! 610 SW Alder Sireet, Suite 700, Portland, OR 97205 503.228.5230 503.273.8169

TCTD INTERCITY TRANSIT ENHANCEMENT PLAN

Date: January 13, 2017 Project #: 20111
To: Doug Pilant, TCTD

From: Susan Wright, PE, Paul Ryus, and Anais Malinge

Project: intercity Transit Enhancement Plan

Subject: Recommended Enhancements

OBJECTIVE

The objective of the TCTD Intercity Transit Enhancement Plan is to improve intercity connections
to/from/within Tillamook County and increase opportunities for interlining service with Greyhound
and Amtrak, resulting in increased ridership for TCTD and its partners.

INTRODUCTION

The Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD) developed an Intercity Transit Service
Enhancement Plan to improve its connections to coordinating service partners, including
Greyhound and Amtrak (in Portland and Salem), Sunset Empire Transportation District (in Cannon
Beach), Lincoln County Transit Service District {in Lincoln City), Salem Area Mass Transit District (in
Grand Ronde), and Yamhill County Transit Area (in Grand Ronde). This effort builds off the July
2016 Transit Development Plan which proposed near- and mid-term service recommendations to
improve transit service. To develop the intercity Transit Service Enhancement Plan, TCTD
coordinated with each of its’ service partners in a series of meetings to further vet concepts from
the TDP, develop additional concepts, and identify ways to enhance intercity service and
connections. This coordination effort resulted in near-term recommendations for Routes 3, 5, and 6
(Coastal Connector) for schedule modifications as well as service additions that could be
implemented as soon as summer of 2017 with additional funding. Pending funding for these
recommendations, complimentary schedule modifications would also be implemented for Routes 1,
2, and 4 to maximize connection opportunities between TCTD routes as well as with their partner
agencies.

BACKGROUND

TCTD's intercity routes include Route 3 (Tillamook — Manzanita/Cannon Beach), Route 4 (Tillamook -
Lincoln City), Route 5 (Tillamook — Portland), and Route 6 (Coastal Connector). Based on the 2016

FILENAME: C:|USERS|SWRIGHTIDOCUMENTS|TCTD INTERCITY TRANSIT ENHANCEMENT PLAN.DOCX



Intercity Transit Enhancement Plan Project # 20111
January 13, 2017 Page 2

TDP, a customer survey specific to intercity connections conducted on Routes 5 and 6, and a
worksession with TCTD staff, several opportunities to enhance intercity connections were identified
for each of the intercity routes. These are described in Technical Memorandum #1 along with route
descriptions, performance and financial characteristics, and demographic information.

The opportunities identified in Technical Memorandum #1 were discussed with two separate
working groups; North County and South County. These meetings resulted in refinements and
additional opportunities to be considered. These opportunities were assessed in Technical
Memorandum #2 which includes descriptions of the alternatives for each route, detailed potential
schedules, and an evaluation of each alternative to determine its consistency with ODOT’s criteria
for evaluating intercity transit grants and its projected performance and financial characteristics.
The criteria applied in Technical Memorandum #2 include:

ODOT Grant Criteria
= New or improved special connection. Provides additional connection to social services or

destinations and origins either not currently or poorly served.

= New or improved temporal connection. Evaluates existing travel time of each run relative to
proposed travel time per alternative. Evaluate based on percent change.

= Close a gap in the intercity network.

= Demonstrated need. The alternative addresses a need or opportunity identified through the
TDP process, Technical Memorandum #1, Customer Survey, or Working Group meetings.

» Improve service to low income areas. Low income persons within 1/2 mile of existing route
alignment relative to proposed route alignment. Evaluate based on percent change.

= Increase potential for interline agreement with Greyhound or Amtrak.

® Improve access to employment. Employment within 1/2 mile of existing route alignment
relative to proposed route alignment. Evaluate based on percent change.

* Type of trip benefiting. Evaluates whether the alternative benefits work, non-work, tourism,
intercity, and interstate trips.

Performance and Financial Characteristics

®  Cycle Time. Includes round trip time and layover.
® Frequency. Number of existing versus number of proposed daily trips by origin/destination.
= Ridership. Estimated change based on the proposed alternative.

= Service Revenue. Based on existing fare revenue per passenger and change in estimated
ridership.

= Service Miles. Calculated based on the change in services miles from existing trips.

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



Intercity Transit Enhancement Plan Project #20111
January 13, 2017 Page 3

= Administration Cost. Calculated based on existing admin costs per passenger and change in
estimated ridership.

= Operating Cost. Calculated based on existing operating cost to service miles ratio and proposed
service miles.

= (Capital Cost. An estimate of the capital cost to provide the additional service.

=  Total Annual Costs. An estimate of the increase in annual costs to operate the route with the
proposed changes.

= Cost per Mile. An estimate of cost per mile of the route with the proposed changes.

» Cost per Ride. An estimate of the cost per ride of the route with the proposed changes and
assuming the estimated ridership increase.

= Revenue as Percentage of Cost (Farebox Return). An estimate of the farebox return of the
route with the proposed changes and assuming the estimated ridership increase.

The assessments in Technical Memorandum #2 were discussed in one additional meeting with the
North County Working Group and two additional meetings with the South County working Group.

North County Working Group

The North County Working Group met two times to identify and review the assessments of service
enhancements in the northern portion of the County that would improve coordination with SETD
and provide additional interline opportunities with Greyhound and Amtrak in Portland. The meeting
participants included representatives from the following organization:

o Sunset Empire Transportation District (SETD)
o City of Manzanita
o City of Cannon Beach

South County Working Group

The South County Working Group met three times to identify and review the assessments of service
enhancements in the southern portion of the County that would improve coordination of SKT, YCT,
and LCTSD services, and provide additional interline opportunities with Greyhound and Amtrak in
Salem. The meeting participants included representatives from the following organization:

Confederated Tribes of Siletz

Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde

Lincoln City Transportation Service District (LCTSD)
Yambhill County Transit (YCT)

Salem-Keizer Transit (SKT)

o O O 0O O

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



Intercity Transit Enhancement Plan Project # 20111
January 16, 2017 Page 4

SERVICE RECOMMENDATIONS

This section identifies the recommended alternatives to enhance intercity connections based on
input from the Working Groups.

The service enhancement recommendations are categorized as three different types of
recommendations, as follows:

) schedule change; & additional service

There is more than one recommendation for Route 3 and Route 5. The Route 3 recommendations
are complimentary and are recommended to be implemented together. The recommendations for
Route 5 are two potential alternatives depending upon funding. If funding is not obtained for
Alternative 5B, Alternative 5A is recommended.

Potential schedules for these recommendations are included in the Appendix of Technical
Memorandum #2.

Route 1 —Tillamook Town Loop

@ Modify schedule so that all trips depart at :05 and arrive at :00 to facilitate Route 3/SETD
connections in Cannon Beach.

@ Extend service later in the evening, to allow connections from intercity routes arriving in
Tillamook after 6:00 p.m.

Route 2 —Tillamook — Oceanside/Netarts

@ Modify schedule so that all trips depart at :15 and arrive at :00 to match changes to Route 1.

Route 3 - Tillamook — Manzanita/Cannon Beach

@} [3A] Modify Route 3 schedule to provide more reliable connections in Cannon Beach and
Tillamook.

@ [3C] Extend all trips (a total of six per day) to Cannon Beach. The SETD Route 20 midday trip to
Manzanita could be eliminated and used to provide an extra round trip between Seaside and
Cannon Beach.

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



Intercity Transit Enhancement Plan Project # 20111
January 16, 2017 Page 5

Route 4 — Tillamook — Lincoln City

@ [4A] Provide a faster trip between Tillamook and Lincoln City by eliminating the diversion into
Pacific City on all trips except the first northbound and last southbound trip (to serve work trips
originating in Pacific City). Coordinate the schedule for transfers to Route 6. Provide several
roundtrips each day from Lincoln City to Pacific City.

Feasibility of this recommendation will depend upon funding for other route recommendations and
the availability of a bus.

Route 5 —Tillamook - Portland

@ [5B] Provide three round trips per day to Portland (morning, midday, and late
afternoon/evening) and modify the scheduled times to increase the number of interline
opportunities with Greyhound and Amtrak and increase the practicality of Route 5 for more
types of trips (provides more hours in Portland for a daytrip from Tillamook as well as a same
day return trip for trips from Portland to Tillamook).

Feasibility of this recommendation will depend upon funding. If additional funding is not feasible,
implement Alternative 5A.

® [5A] Reschedule the midday trip to Portland to late afternoon/evening, allowing the route to
serve more types of trips between Tillamook and Portland. Schedule a longer layover in
Portland to increase the number of potential connections with Greyhound and Amtrak.

Route 6 — Coastal Connector

& [6G] Extend all three daily trips to Salem to provide interline opportunities with Amtrak and
Greyhound throughout the day. Implement the same schedule 7 days per week. Two to three
weekday SKT 2X trip could be eliminated due to trips provided by TCTD allowing this to be
roughly cost neutral but with funding shifted from SKT to TCTD.

Table 1 shows the evaluation matrix for each recommended service enhancement. Each
recommendation was evaluated by evaluation criteria and compared to other alternatives
documented in Technical Memorandum #2. The criteria utilize a three category rating system
identifying if the alternative has a negative impact on the criteria, no impact, or a positive impact (-,
0, +). Some criteria have a Yes or No response or have a stated answer.

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



Intercity Transit Enhancement Plan Project #20111
January 13, 2017 Page 6

ATTACHMENTS

Technical Memorandum #1 - Existing Conditions and Opportunities

Technical Memorandum #2 - Opportunities Assessment and Prioritized Recommendations

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



Intercity Transit Enkancement Plon
January 13, 2017

Prmject # 20111
fage

Table 1: Service Enhancement Evaluation Matrix

Entend al trips o Ganen Bedch

an

Bypass Pacific Civy most trips, Provids 1C-PC

Raundrips

sA

Rnscheduls r:d‘dda\i wip astate
afternoonfevening trip

Thres rawnd trigs per day,

&G

Thres through tips per day from Lincoln Cing
1o Salem with schedule similar to weekend
schedule

All Route 3 trips (6/day) serve Cannon
Beach, up from 2/day at present. SETD's 1
trip/day ta i inued.

Detailed
deseription

All trips bypass Pacific City to pravide fastar
travel times to/from Lincoln City, except the
first NB and last SB trip {to serve work trips

in Pacific City). Provide 2 midday

implement clockface schedule.

trips per day from Lincoln City to Pacific City.

Schedule changes to serve a greater
variety of trips to/from Portland and
intrease cannection oppartunities with

Greyhound/Amtrak

Adds a third reund trip and increases
scheduled time for connectians with

Greyhound and Amtrak.

All three trips per day go all the way to Salem
and serve Amtrak/Greyhound and Salem
Transit Center on a schedule similar to the
weekend schedule. Eliminates 2-3 daily SKT 2X
Trips.

New/improved Improved connections between

©On mast trips riders to/from Pacific

Frovides thrae daily one-seat trips
in each direction between Lincoln
City and Salern. One transfer

! idi . ity need 0
I (R o Ll [ el : gl
cennection? r point. ¥ between Lincaln City and Salem
and two to Greyhound/Amtrak.
: Redi i !
New/improved Connects TCTD riders directly Reducas travel time between N Provides 3 trips per day u‘EEslearVy m?mmg m’,"s -
. = Provides later return from time in Lincoln City, gets riders to
temporal + Cannon Beach 6 times per day + Tillamaok and Lincoln City by + + Provides fater return from + | y e
fon? without a transfer appraximately 20%. Portiandithag currelt'schedule: Partland than currently Salern by 8:30 am, similar to
connaction - existing conditions.
@ . Would reduce number of direct trips Provides 3 daily one-seat trips
0ses gap in to/from Pacific City/Tillamaak to 1 B
5 ) = .
Intercity g time per day. Additional trips would 0 0 from Unux;\i;\; ‘: Sale on
natwark? be provided to/from Lincoln City vs:
Desiré expressedin [r.‘tENI.e‘.NS Deviation to Pacific City raised as an
for a Canon Beach trip artiving issue in the TOP, increasing travet
e i i ™M d later trips t d i
somarsrnes | | nTmeottremions” | | gt | | SR | Mesmdppee || e
need? Jobsand p 4 connecting to Route 6 and LCTSO i ! &l Y erstog :
increasing cancer treatment ad:
trips in future to Astoria. -
Work Raute 3 would be better able to Reduces travel time for trips to/from Alows more time in Portland for Allows more time in Portland {if Notransfers required from Salem
Type of tripls} & " e oert inter paints south of Pacific City- Provides a variety of trips, allows mare needed) for a variety of trips, ta Lincaln City, three times per day
. serve a variety of work and non- 4 - . All . ) Al . = m All N .
benefitting? non- e ity more midday trips in corridor north of intercity/interstate connection allows more inteccityfinterstate and provides direct trip toffrom
work L ps Pacific City. opportunities. cannection opportunities Greyhound/Amtrak.

Patential interline Increases connectians in increasas connection in }B da_lly A a“.d. Srevfiound
with Greyhound Na No Yes Btiand: Yes portland Yes interline opportunities (currently
& Amtrak? ) zero) due to required transfers

= B imes i .
tmproves Service K ene‘r prauliimes Fuuthgm beifior Better serves trips to Portland Better servas trips to Portland
to Low Income + Maore travel options - corridor, less convenient travel from il N o h + p .
. . region for education, madical, region for education, medical.
Areas? Pacific City + Mare travel options in carridor
Provides early morning and .
Reduces commute time for the
i i d ter return f) Partland ma
s || oyeeiogrmnton || gl G e |+ | Srimiones || s fouanay |
to Employment? 7 ':‘i’":;g OIS trip access to Pacific City. p ?
Snitknd, Gragun

Kittelson & Assodiates, Inc.



intercity Transit Enhoncement Pian

Praject ¥ 20:
fonuary 13, 2017 raject # 20101

Poges

Table 2: Financial and Performance Evaluation

Changen #7200 2 . ) * om 0% Changein © : " RouteCost “HowteCost .\~ FRoute . /. . " Routs
CycleTime _ Adabanaﬁrmqum:y e - Q : Admin Costs i er Mile perRide “  Revenusssa%hot . Adminasa’of |
e} . tround trips perday) | maal} iy {annual} Bl <l SLopsaR) L (eaR) oo Cost fwdaktl Y . Costiwal)
3 65 4 J 30% 3 15874 43,442 $ 24201 $ 98,556 $ 250,000 § 122,757 l $ 282 | § 1087 12.9% 185%
4A 30 1] { 0% § . - -7,018 $ - $(13,897) s - $ (13,897)" 1 $ 258 $ 2522 7.6% 234%
A 30 [ 5% $ 6088 0 $ 2961 S - $ 250,000 $ 2,961 5 276 | § 2514 40.8% 10.9%
S8 30 1 40% $ 48,704 37,800 $ 23,690 $ 83,768 $ 250,000 $107457 | § 275 | § 2514 40.8% 19.8%
0'to Grand Ronde
66 1s° +3 to Salem 30% $ 2982 80,027 5 11,173 $157,769 $ - $ 168,943 $ 227 | § 549 36% 1329

13avings o be allocated to providing service to/from Lincoln City and Pacific City
2 Change in cycle time for trips to Salem only Travel time from Lincoln City ta Grand Ronde unchanged

farinon & Anncates inc Hortiasg, Sragun



For the Board Meeting of October 18, 2018
Agenda ltem # 10

MEMO TO: TCTD BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FROM: DOUG PILANT, GENERAL MANAGER DW
SUBJECT: STIF FORMULA FUND PLAN

Issue

Shall the TCTD Board of Directors adopt the STIF Advisory Committee’s proposed 2019
to 2021 STIF Plan?

Background and Findings

1. With the passage of House Bill 2017, Keep Oregon Moving, the Oregon
Legislature established the Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF) to
expand public transportation services throughout Oregon.

2. The STIF Formula Fund revenues are distributed to Qualified Entities based on
payroll taxes collected within their respective boundaries, with a minimum amount
of $100,000 per year to each Qualified Entity.

3. STIF Formula funds may be used for public transportation purposes that support
the planning, deployment, operation and administration of STIF public
transportation services. These funds are not limited to, creating new transit
services, maintaining or continuing systems and services, creating plans to
improve service, and to meet federal grant match requirements to purchase buses
and other transit facilities such as bus stops and shelters.

4. Tillamook County Transportation District is Tillamook County’s designated
Qualified Entity.

5. The Oregon Department of Revenue estimates that TCTD will receive at least
$126,000 in FY 2018-19, see Attachment A. ODOT has requested that Qualified
Entities submit STIF Plan budgets up to 130% of what is expected. Table 1
provides an estimate of STIF Formula Funds the District can expect to receive.

Table 1: Estimated Tillamook County STIF Revenues

Estimate Estimate 130%
FY 2019 $126,000 $163,800
FY 2020 $287,000 $373,100
FY 2021 $325,000 $422 500
Total $738,000 $959,400

6. Qualified Entities are required to appoint an advisory committee that consists of
at least 5 members who represent the diverse interests of the Qualified Entities’
geographic service area. The advisory committee’s role is to review proposed



For the Board Meeting of October 18, 2018
Agenda ltem # 10

projects, prioritize them, and make recommendations to their respective Qualified
Entities governing board of directors.

Qualified Entities are required to submit a STIF Plan. These Plans will be used
as the Qualified Entity's application to apply for Formula Funds. They must be
written to cover a span of at least 1 biennium and up to 2 biennia. The earliest
possible start date for the first STIF solicitation cycle is July 1, 2018 thru June
2021. STIF Plans may include projects that are from locally adopted plans.
Below is a list of the District’s 4 adopted plans that span the STIF planning cycle.

a. Adopted TCTD Plans:
i. Coordinated Human Services Public Transportation Plan
ii. Intercity Transit Service Enhancement Plan
fi. TCTD Long-Range Transit Development Plan
iv. NW Connector Management Plan

Each of the District’'s adopted plans listed below contain relevant priorities and
service improvement strategies.

b. Coordinated Human Services Public Transportation Plan: The District's
Coordinated Plan defines specific unmet needs and identifies strategies
that address unmet needs. These strategies include a bus pass program,
expanding fixed route and dial-a-ride services including the investment of
technology and the purchase of buses to facilitate the delivery of services.
A summary of unmet needs and strategies has been included as
Attachment B.

c. Intercity Transit Enhancement Plan: This planning process was conducted
to establish strategies to improve connections to the Amtrak/Greyhound
services in Portland and Salem. The Plan includes a strategy to add one
additional early AM trip to Portland. The Plan also includes recommended
strategies to improve connections in Tillamook and to destinations such as
Oceanside, Cannon Beach and Lincoln City. The Plan’s recommended
enhancements have been included as Attachment C.

d. NW Connector Management Plan: TCTD is a charter member of the NW
Oregon Transit Alliance (NWOTA).  Other members include Sunset
Transportation Empire District (SETD), Columbia County Rider (CCR),
Lincoln County Transportation District (LCTD) and Benton Rural Transit
(BRT). NWOTA meets monthly to coordinate and market each agency's
services as a regional transit service called the NW Connector. In FY
2015-16 NWOTA conducted a planning process to establish a NW
Connector Management Plan that includes strategies to create a more
seamless experience for riders traveling throughout the NW Oregon
region. Once such strategy is for all agencies to operate service on the
same holidays, see Attachment D.



For the Board Meeting of October 18, 2018
Agenda ltem # 10

e. Long Range Transit Development Plan: In FY 2014-15, TCTD conducted
a planning process to establish a long-range transit development plan
(LRTDP). The District's LRTDP includes several service improvement
recommendations. The Plan's Technical Memorandum #5: Future Service
Opportunities has been included as Attachment E. This memo includes
bus fleet replacement, bus stops, proposed service improvements to the
Port of Tillamook Bay, mid-day service to fill gaps on Routes 2 and 3,
additional TownLoop service and additional service to Pacific City via

Sand Lake Road.

In July and August of 2018, the TCTD Board of Directors formally appointed five
members to the District's STIF Advisory Committee. On October 3, 2018 the
Committee met to review the proposed projects and prioritized them in the order
of importance. The Committee’s recommended STIF project spending plan is
outlined in Table 1. A more detailed explanation of the projects has been

included as Attachment A.

Table 1: Advisory Committee recommended STIF Plan and Budget

Total by

FY 2019 | FY 2020 | FY 2021 Project
1 | Buses/Vans 97,586 87,000 40,500 | 225,086
2 | STIF Planning 25,000 0 25,000 45,000
3 | Holiday Service 15,000 16,000 17,000 63,000
4 | CARE Bus Pass 5,000 5,000 5,000 15,000
5 | FT DAR Driver Benefits 21,214 31,000 32,000 84,214
6 | Fixed Route Enhance 234,100 303,000 | 527,100
Total 163,800 | 373,100| 422,500| 959,400

a. Priority # 1: Fleet Replacement and Expansion: TCTD must purchase

expansion buses to expand service and must purchase replacement
buses to maintain existing services. TCTD has 2 grants to purchase 5
new buses and will be seeking grant funding to purchase additional
replacement and expansion buses and vans.

b. Priority # 2. STIF Planning: The TCTD Long Range Transit Development

Plan proposes several service enhancement aiternatives. In 2019, up to
$25,000 of STIF monies will be used to conduct a detailed evaluation of
the service enhancement alternatives to select the alternative that
provides the greatest benefit to the District. The Advisory Committee
recommends setting aside an additional $25,000 in FY 2021 to develop a
STIF Plan for the next biennium.

c. Priority # 3: Holiday Service: Implement holiday service on the same

holidays as the other NWOTA partners. The NWOTA partners feel
strongly about operating on holidays to provide residents with



10.

For the Board Meeting of October 18, 2018
Agenda item # 10

transportation to and from their jobs as well as transporting passengers
who are fraveling throughout the region.

. Priority # 4: CARE Bus Program: Expand the CARE Discount Bus

Program by providing $5,000 per year to provide bus passes to low-
income families or individuals.

. Priority # 5. Enhance Dial-A-Ride Service: As STIF funding becomes

available, this project funds the benefits to create 2 fulltime driver positions
that will be assigned to the north and southern geographic areas of the
District.

Priority # 6: Enhance Fixed Route Service: As more STIF funds become
available in FY 2019-2020, this project will fund a service enhancement
that provides public transportation to the Port of Tillamook Bay (POTB). In
2019 the District will conduct a planning process to select what service
alternative will be in the District’s best interest.

In August 2018, ODOT issued its “Notice of Solicitation” to consider STIF
projects. This Notice closes on November 1, 2018. Pending approval of the
TCTD STIF Plan the District would begin receiving STIF Formula Funds in April

Recommendation

Staff recommends the TCTD Board of Directors adopt the STIF Advisory Committee's
proposed 2019-21 STIF Plan and authorizes the General Manager to submit a STIF
Application on the District’s behalf.



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

ADOPTING THE 2019-2021 STIF PLAN )
AND AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL )
MANAGER TO SUBMIT APPLICATION )

)

FOR STIF FORMULA FUNDS RESOLUTION NO. 18-24

WHEREAS, with the passage of House Bill 2017 in 2017, the Oregon Legislature
established the Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF) to finance
investments and improvements in public transportation services, as described in ORS
184.751 et seq. and OAR Chapter 732, Division 040; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to ORS 184.758(1)(a), 90 percent of STIF moneys shall be
allocated to Qualified Entities in shares determined under ORS 184.758(2), known as
STIF Formula Funds under OAR 732-040-0005(30); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to ORS 184.758(4), to be eligible to receive STIF Formula
Funds, a Qualified Entity shall prepare and submit a public transportation improvement
plan, known as a STIF Plan under OAR 732-040-0005(32), to the Oregon
Transportation Commission; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to ORS 184.758(5), such STIF Plan must include, at a
minimum, the following:

(a) For each proposed project, the amount of moneys from the percentage
distribution that would be allocated to the project to fund the following:

(A) Increased frequency of bus service schedules in communities with a
high percentage of low-income households;

(B) Procurement of buses that are powered by natural gas or electricity for
use in areas with a population of 200,000 or more;

(C) Implementation of programs to reduce fares for public transportation in
communities with a high percentage of low-income households;

(D) Expansion of bus routes and bus services to reach communities with a
high percentage of low-income households;

(E) Improvement in the frequency and reliability of service connections

between communities inside and outside of the qualified entity’s service
area; and

45039-27477 18-24 TCTD STIF Plan.DOCV10/12/2018



(F) Coordination between public transportation service providers to reduce
fragmentation in the provision of transportation services;

(b) For the current fiscal year, a summary of any plans and project proposals
approved by an advisory commitiee under ORS 184.761; and

(c) If a qualified entity was a recipient of a percentage distribution in the
preceding fiscal year, the amount of moneys received from the distribution that
were allocated to a project for the purposes described under paragraph (a) of this
subsection; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to ORS 184.761, an advisory committee appointed by the
governing body of each Qualified Entity shall advise and assist the governing body in
prioritizing plans or projects to be funded from the STIF Formula Funds; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to ORS 184.752(2)(c), Tillamook County Transportation
District (TCTD) is a Qualified Entity eligible for STIF Formula Funds on account of its
status as a transportation district organized under ORS 267.510 to 267.650; and

WHEREAS, TCTD has developed a STIF Pian known as the 2019-2021 STIF
Plan, attached hereto as Exhibit A, which proposes the use of STIF Formula Funds for
public transportation projects in fiscal years 2019, 2020, and 2021; and

WHEREAS, the 2019-2021 STIF Plan contains the elements required by ORS
184.758(5); and

WHEREAS, the TCTD STIF Advisory Committee, duly appointed by the TCTD
Board of Directors, has advised and assisted TCTD in prioritizing plans and projects to
be funded from STIF Formula Funds; and

WHEREAS, the 2019-2021 STIF Plan includes projects previously identified in
TCTD's other local transportation plans, progress on which has been contingent on the
receipt of additional funding; and

WHEREAS, the 2019-2021 STIF Plan seeks up to $949,500 of newly available
STIF Formula Funds; and

WHEREAS, the TCTD Board of Directors has considered the 2019-2021 STIF
Plan, and finds it in the best interest of the District to adopt it.

45039-27477 18-24 TCTD STIF Plan.DOCV10/12/2018



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation
District Board of Directors that:

the Board adopts the 2019-2021 STIF Plan, and authorizes the General Manager
to submit TCTD'’s application for STIF Formula Funds, together with all required
documentation, to the Oregon Department of Transportation.

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 18" day of October 2018.

ATTEST:

By: By:
Judy Riggs, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

45039-27477 18-24 TCTD STIF Plan.DOCV10/12/2018



EXHIBIT A

2019-2021 STIF PLAN

45039-27477 18-24 TCTD STIF Plan.DOCV10/12/2018



STIF Plan Budget

Total by

FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021 Project
Buses/Vans 97,586 87,000 40,500 225,086
STIF Planning 25,000 0 25,000 50,000
Holiday Service 15,000 16,000 17,000 48,000
CARE Bus Passes 5,000 5,000 5,000 15,000
Dial-A-Ride 21,214 31,000 32,000 84,214
Service Enhancement 234,100 303,000 537,100
Total 163,800 373,100 422,500 959,400




For the Board Meeting of October 18, 2018
Agenda ltem # 10

TCTD STIF PLAN & BUDGET

Priority # 1: Fleet Replacement and Expansion: TCTD must purchase
replacement buses to maintain existing services. The District must also
purchase expansion buses before introducing new services. TCTD has a grant
to purchase 4 replacement buses and another grant to purchase 1 expansion
replacement buses to maintain existing services. The District must also
purchase expansion buses before introducing new services. TCTD has a grant
to purchase 4 replacement buses and another grant to purchase 1 expansion
bus. Table 2 provides an overview of the District’s vehicle replacement plan
through FY 2021. Staff recommends the District allocate $97,586 in STIF funds
in 2019 to provide the local match to purchase these 5 buses. Staff also
recommends allocating $90,000 in FY 2020 to purchase 2 replacement buses
and 1 expansion bus, and 3 replacement vans. Finally, staff recommends
allocating $40,500 to purchase a replacement dial-a-ride van and 1 expansion
bus.

Table 2: TCTD Vehicle Purchase Plan

Vehicle Project Grant
Typel# Cost Amount | FY 2019 | FY 2020 | FY 2021

Replacement | Cat B/2 370,000 | 332,001 37,999

Replacement | Cat C/2 310,000 | 278,163 | 31,837

Expansion Cat C/1 185,000 | 157,250 | 27,750

Replacement | Cat B/1 190,000 | 161,500 28,500
Expansion Cat C/1 185,000 | 157,250 27,750
Replacement | Cat E/3 225,000 | 191,250 33,750
Replacement | Cat D/1 80,000 | 68,000 12,000
Expansion Cat B/1 190,000 | 161,500 28,500
Total 97,586 | 90,000 | 40,500

Priority # 2. STIF Service Improvement Plan: Tillamook County has a very small
employment base when compared to other geographic areas of Oregon. As a
result, TCTD must invest its STIF monies into service enhancements that
generate a strong ridership growth to remain competitive for the ODOT Small
City Rural Assistance grant program. Staff recommends allocating STIF monies
to conduct an analysis on which service improvements to implement in 2020-
2021.

Priority # 3. NW Connector Service Enhancement: TCTD does not operate on
the same holidays its NWOTA partners. The NW Connector Management Plan’s
goal is to for all partners to operate on the same holidays so that all riders have a
seamless experience when throughout the region. Table 3 provides an overview
of the holidays that NWOTA Partners do not operate. For example, both Benton
and Lincoln Counties operate all holidays except Thanksgiving and Christmas.
Table 3 illustrates the 6 holidays TCTD does not operate. The majority of




For the Board Meeting of October 18, 2018
Agenda ltem # 10

NWOTA partners believe operating on these holidays will ensure people relying
upon public transportation have transportation to and from their jobs. Staff
recommends TCTD use up to $15,000 STIF monies to expand the District's
holiday service by operating on all holidays except Thanksgiving, Christmas and
New Years Day.

Table 3: NW Connector Holiday Service by NWOTA Members

New Memorial | Independ | Labor Thanks- | Christ-
Years ence giving mas
TCTD X X X X X X
SETD X X X
CCR X X X
LCT X X X
BRT X X X

Priority # 4: Reduced Fare to Low Income Families: Qualified Entities may use
STIF Formula money to support fare reduction programs that benefit low income
families or individuals. The Coordinated Human Services Plan identifies reduced
fare as a strategy to make public transportation accessible to low income
families, individuals or workers. Staff recommends expanding the Care Discount
Bus Program to include up to $5,000 per year to provide bus passes to low
income families or individuals.

Priority # 5: Service Improvement Plan: The TCTD Long Range Transit
Development Plan (LRTDP) and the TCTD Coordinated Human Services Plan
includes service improvement strategies that can be implemented as STIF
funding becomes available. The STIF funds could be used to fund on of the
following or combination of recommended service improvements outlined in
Table 4.

a. Task 1: Dial-A-Ride Service Enhancement: TCTD has not been able to
sustain its dial-a-ride driver workforce. Historically, TCTD volunteers
provided dial-a-ride transportation services in the rural northern and
southern geographic areas of Tillamook County. There is significant
demand for dial-a-ride service in both of these areas. TCTD does provide
non-emergency medical transportation services within these areas with
part-time and substitute drivers. The District’s investment in new
scheduling and dispatching technology has created the opportunity for
TCTD to adopt a base plus mileage fare policy implement a county-wide
dial-a-ride service. Staff recommends using STIF formula funds to pay the
benefits for 2 fulltime positions while the District uses Medicaid and fare
revenue to fund the driver wages and vehicle expenses.

b. Task 2: Fixed Route Service Improvement Opportunities: Allocate up to
$275,000 to implement fixed route service improvements that expands
service to the Port of Tillamook Bay (POTB). This could be accomplished




z abed

uosHedwOo D IBDA-19AQIBIA

810z dog nuy)

810z deg niyL

8L0g dog nuy L

810¢ dog iy L

%LLL  [s09'LL Z6P'8EL  188'099 %9'0L |1Z0°L 8/9'0L 169'6 %c8 |8Sl'E L8L LY £29°8¢ %L1~ zese 89¢€°1Z2  068°€ZT $90IAIBS LI B0l
%694~ |89L'E- PEG'GL 10481 %981~ |65~ 8G¢C JA%S %0°GC  |96¢C Syt 081°L %0'99- |1L18- 154 Al S82IAIBS IBYI0 1810 L
%86 el £06'cl 19921 %L Ve (01514 90¢ %099 |1S¥ veLl £89 %l'tl- |60G- /81 969 uonelsdQ sng [esds
%0'€L~ |OLP'P- 0€9°L 0r0'9 %67l |€8- 14 Ll %V LE- |9GL- Lve pASi4 %195 |c0€- 314 £es steddu |
S80IAISS BUIO
%485 |0617 €9 9L9°'LLL 921’801 %ELG  [GGL lLeze cLv'L %39 [€66'C 1892 889"t %Cct  [8L9°L Lze'or €0.'8€ INEIETITREETE
AR |6E576E 8€5'6E L= I0/AIQ# |21LS JAR:] 0 I0/NIG#  |9G9°) 959°1L 0 i0/AIQ#  |60S°2 6052 0 spuoy puelg X0
%065 |LSP'¥e 02669 97" LY %805 |64¢ 8¢8 619 %.'66 |PEG'L zl0'e 9e5'L %L'€SL |898'y 1%0'8 6.l uees X09
%80~  |908- 851'39 79999 %Py |- 288 €26 %E'9- |16} £66°C 0sL'e %ZT'9L- |6GL'G- G9/'62 ¥2S'se puejod 50
NN
%96 686'G¢ Zi0'.6¢  e20'iLe %eCl |87 VEY'¥ LP6E %E0  |¥8 c9l'le 8/9°/2 %S'8- |E18'C Liv'0e oge'ee N0Y paxid 8207 [B10 L
%E0 652 616'GL 099°G. %0 54 0504 010t %0'8C 988 GG0'v 691°¢ %GL |01 S86°9 0889 Aud ujooun +0
%872 |[lL8L'02 8. LLL  /66'06 %9'Le  |9SE £V9°L 182°L %10~ |¢l- 8/6°6 0S0°0L %9'8- |00Z'L- 1BL°CL LBB6'CL BjUBZUBIN €0
%LEL |69l L¥G'6E €LL'vE %G'6lL |86 008 20s %49~ |09L- wz'e Lov'ez %Sel- |09¢- gLe'e €29C spisueadQ/suelsN Z0
%E"0 18t G..'89 76569 %9°0- |- owL'L 8rlL'L %Ly |08 88Y'LL 8G0°CL %0 vL- [8SE‘L- 8ze'8 989'6 doo umoy 10
oy paieiAsg
%E'e-  [90.'8- 0Ee'vSe  9E0'€9C %l'P- |29l 092'¢ 26T A A €98’y L10°S %€ 0~ [LLSG- ¢lLZ’0SL 827051 ova el
T&W@m- Osrvi-  €/8'01 £97'G2 %8'98- (BvE- €5 0ov %S¢6- (8L9- 0s 899 %166~ |LLLTLL- c9 6LL°LL 188]UNjoA
%G'GlL  |086'€Z 60€'8LL  6ZE'PSL %GV Ly £99'C 154 Tyl |94C yiz'e 8€6°1L %6'ET |L€S°LT 608'crL  zLZ'SLL S8piy MN
%6°Lc- |96L'8L-  BF0'S9 4 2AN] %G'Le- (98¢ Lol 2281 %C’S |8l 6652 LLV'E %8°69- |9€6'9L- LPe'L 112'%T apid-v-eid
SJAISS aprd-v-1eld
aouataylg | soualayid 1500 12101 1500 [BI0L @ousIalig | soualaylq  S4NOH SINOH | sousiayiq | souasalid sibusseq  sibussed Soualaili] | @ouUalayl] SNUBASY  SNUBABY uny/amnoy
juaoiad Junowy Jjusalad | junowy ELIINEETSY aoIneg | Juedlad junowy juedled | junowy ale4 ase
61/81 8L/L) 6L/81 8L/LL 6L/81 8L/LL 61/8L 8L/LL

6L/81L Ad O3 8L/LLAA

1ou3s1 uonepodsuel] Ajunon yoouwe| |




%Y €86'1€ 6997269 788099 BERICEN
9GS $ %002 j§oid snid = SI1S0D) PESYIBAQO
vy § s1ey AunoH yoeog %0~ (bv8's) £L0'LYE 158'0) s1500 J8ug

%9°€C pPEaYIBAQ SNid sng jlews %46 $so'ee [ReieNeln4 LB5'ZBE $)1s0D paseq AunoH
LLog 3 ajey Alnoy ueAluy %2 0" (222) [elor A FA zer'Lzi sis09) peseq abeajy
%Z'9 sjsoQ eng snld 1oid pE3LISAG BNy %0°0L vbe'LE ¥§Z'022 0L0'EE afeaun
LWve  $ a1ey ApnoH (enoy oo eousleiq  @ousleyd 5L/8) 8L/LL uonduosaq
uonenaEe ajey >t:OI %01 snid snid uope[naed ajpuu Jad 150D jusdlied junowy 6L/8L A0} 8LILLAS
150D uopeole) uonesadQ sng jeloadg 81.0¢ des ubnoayy GLA uosuedwoy)
¢ abey
%98~ [0S0 0e's 08'S %G Ll |%6E- %0°08 %6°EE %Z'C [N 3 [} %L [2L0 91'69 €789 SBONISS JAUID [E10L |
%Rz~ |9l 0 8z°0 yO'L %0°6G- | %6 € %L %99 %9°ES 02 ] It %lz |eCt 5209 1065 S80IAIBS JBUIQ [EI0L
%88 |98 0 10 z01 %SG %L b %E L %G5S %98y 9l &% €€ %L1 |SOL- 1709 7519 uonesadp sng [e1oeds
%g'9e-  |ov'e- 89°0 101 %908 %S %z L %8'8 %Z'ELL Ll zzL St %SL |07 b8 LEVG ssadduy
S8DIAIES JeYI0
%boe-  [L0C- GZ'S 928 %t vEr | %ETL- %G'€Z %Q°GE %E8 X0 e z¢ %8r  |00°C 80°LL ar'el [SEEIEE
i0/AIQ# i0/AIQ# FA=NA 10/AIQ# W0/AIQ# %E'9 %E9 %00 0/AIa# i0/AIO% z2e i0/AIO# 10/AIa# i0/AIO# £5°92 I0/AIT# 8puoy puel) X02L
%9z |SS0 9z 10z %T6G (%St %ZTL %l'L % Ze 60 L 9c %r's |60t L9'6L £5°GL wajes X09
%301~ |0Z)- 80°01 [:TAINA %9GL-  |%Eg- %0'GY %E'ES %6'L- L0 [ ¥E %ae |srz LSz 922 pueod 60
e
%l '8~ oL'o oLl oc'L %S 9L~ %0°¢- %2 0L %ETL %4 0L~ 80 £9 oL %p - 891~ 6699 ,9'89 3NoY pejeireq [B10 )
%.'02" S¥'0- el 12 %21 %10 %26 %16 %0'€Z 0 6'€ L'e %S '€ +9°¢C- 8c'cl £6VL D uodurt vo
%62 |10 8Tl 68°1 %3'SZ-  |%6'E" %Ll %Gl %Z'Te" - 1'g gL %ge |99z 5089 04°0L elUeZUB €0
%E'L- (800 £0°1 Ll %E'CT- %L %8S %LL %6'L2" oL g 8 %6V |86 1969 ¥Z'69 8pISURBIQ/SUEBISN Z0
%86~ |80°0- zL0 08°0 %Z VL~ |%0°E %6'LL %6°EL %l 7 ¥'0r 1oL S0l %60  [S50 6119 $9'09 doo umo 10
BnoyY pejeiAeg
%0% og’L 68°0€E 69'62 %LE %8’} %L 65 %ELS %b0- 00 €l [% %6'0 150 €9°29 90°29 yva ey
%96 0GSL- 2L '8l %L 86 %Eer- %90 %6ty %L Er L0 60 L %SLE2 SLvbL 8€'80C £9°€9 1aajun|cA
%8 Z0'S 05v8 8¥'6S % L %S %L 08 Y%Ll %0'9~ (X0 80 60 %61 EF'E- 98’99 8204 sapid MN
%E 1L 00°2- 282 28’6 %E 19" Y6 L1 %E 1L %262 %1 Ve 9'0 S'C 61 %¥ 0 gz 6¥29 GL'T9 |apid-v-elq
SIS SpId-v-1elq
HiQ Wadssd | HIQ unowy aleg aleq 113 usdied | YIg unowy oney oney HIQ WBlBad | JIg unowy AnoH/ INoH/ 1id JUsoJad | #iq Junowy  ejey AUnoH  eiey AInoH uny/anoy
abesony abesany xogased xogele4 1Bussey 1Busseq
61/81 8LiLL 6L/l 8L/LL 6L/8lL sLILL 61/81L gL/LL
gL0z dos nuyL 8102 dog nuL 8L0Z dog niyL 810z dag nuyL

uosledwon ssuBWIOLIBd 8jeq 0} JeaA

6L/8L AdOYGLILLAL
j014351q uonepodsues ] Ajuno) yoowe(ji |




Tillamook County Transportation District

MONTHLY PERFORMANCE REPORT September 2018
RIDERSHIP BY SERVICE TYPE SEP SEP YTD YTD YTD %

2018 2017 FY 1819 FY 17-18 Change
Dial-A-Ride Service
Tillamook County 749 770 2,564 2,471 3.8%
NW Rides 793 628 2,119 1,938 9.3%
Volunteer 0 197 50 668 -92.5%
Dial-A-Ride Total 1,542 1,595 4,733 5,077 -6.8%
Deviated Fixed Route Service
Rt 1. Town Loop 3,460 3,814 11,488 12,058 -4.7%
Rt 2: Netarts/Oceanside 686 816 2,241 2,401 -6.7%
Rt 3. Manzanita/Cannon Beach 2,695 3,160 9,978 10,050 -0.7%
Rt 4: Lincoln City 1,289 945 4,055 3,169 28.0%
Local Fixed Rt Total 8,130 8,735 27,762 27,678 0.3%
Inter City Service
Rt 5: Portland 857 928 2,953 3,150 -6.3%
Rt 60X: Salem 877 453 3,072 1,538 99.7%
Rt 70X: Grand Ronde 486 0 1,656 0 #DIV/O!
Inter City Total 2,220 1,381 7,681 4,688 63.8%
Other Services
Tripper Routes 142 232 341 497 -31.4%
Special Bus Operations 260 209 1,134 683 66.0%
Other Services Total 402 441 1,475 1,180 25.0%
TOTAL ALL SERVICES 12,294 12,152 41,651 38,623 7.8%
ONE-WAY TRIPS BY USER GROUP

Fixed YTD YTD YTD %
USER GROUP Route DAR FY 18-19 [ FY 17-18 | Change
General (18 years to 60 years of age) 6,414 247 22,920 20,885 9.7%
Senior/Disabled 3,450 1,234 15,824 14,831 6.7%
Child/Youth (less than 18 years of age) 888 62 2,907 2,908 0.0%
Total 10,752 1,542 41,651 38,623 7.8%
OTHER RIDER CATEGORIES Fixed YTD YTD YTD %

Route DAR FY 18-19 [ FY 17-18 | Change
Ride Connection 42 195 256 -23.8%
Tillamook Bay Community College 207 [ 348 171 103.5%
NWOTA Visitor Pass 134 [ 663 376 76.3%
Northwest Rides Y] 698 1,944 1,938 0.3%
Helping Hands Shuttle g 68 182 220 -17.3%

10/9/2018

09-18 RIDERSHIP REPORT .xlsx



NWCONNECTOR

Coordinating Committee Meeting
October 12, 2018
Tillamaok County Transpertation Disirict
3600 37 St
Tillamook, OR
10:00 am—2:00 pin

Teleconference Information
866/7557677
Pin # 005939
Agenda
R Introductions. Weleome to Guest Doug Pilant
10:05a 1. Introductions. Welcome to Guests g
2. Consent Calendar (Action Items)

10:05— 4 September 14, 2018 Meeting Minutes (Attached) Doug Pilant
10:15a % September 2018 Financial Report

% Ridership Tracking (September 2018)
10:15— | 3. Open Trip Planner Thomas Craig
10:45a +% Discussion All
10:45— . 1
11:00a | 4 NW Connector Holiday Schedule Doug Pilant/All
11:00— . . . Jeff
11:30a 5. North Coast Tourism Studio/Transportation Hazen/Mary

6. NWOTA Standing Items

% IGA All
11:30— % NWConnector Newsletter, NW Oregon Events Mary McArthur
12:00p % Potential addition of Bike and Ride Information on Mary McArthur

Website

% Signage Update Doug Pilant
12:00— | 7. Lunch
12:30p
1220 8. NW Standing Items (Continued)

2:00p 9. Other Business and Member Updates

Attachments:

September 14, 2018 Meeting Minutes

NWOTA meetings are open to the public and accommodations will be provided to persons with
disabilities. If a sign language interpreter is needed, please call Mary McArthur at 503.228.5565 at least 48 hours
prior to the meeting.

WwWwW. nwconnector. net

r@ lﬁ' SUNSET EMPIRE

TRANSPORTATION
Betontony  OC Ridas oz
TRANSPORTATION w




NW Oregon Transit Alliance (NWOTA)
Coordinating Committee Meeting Minutes
September 14, 2018
Tillamook County Transportation District
Tillamook, OR

1. Introductions: Doug Pilant, Coordinating Committee Chair, opened the meeting. Meeting attendees included:

— Cynda Bruce—Lincoln County Transportation

Paul Lewicki—Sunset Empire Transit District

Doug Pilant~—Tillamook County Transportation

Arla Miller—ODOT

Excused: Mark Bernard, Jeff Hazen, Lee Lazaro, Todd Wood

|

2. Consent Calendar: Unanimously approved. (Consensus)

+ August 10, 2018 Meeting Minutes—No corrections.

4 August 2018 Financial Reports—Doug reviewed a revised August 2018 report that includes partner match
contributions to date. TCTD went ahead and paid their eptire match at the front end and will send out a
memo giving the other partners the option to do so if they want/can do so. Partners approved an October
Travel Glossy insert in The Boomer for $475. TCTD annual administrative expenses for the vear were also
prepaid.

#+ Ridership Tracking—Change of reporting to a FY, wﬂl mean that only Y2 year of the Coastal Connector
will included in last year. CCR’s reductions in service will impact numbers this upcoming year. Partners
will review the assumptions for the performance calculations. Marywill send out the assumptions. The
operating data will also be organized by theé Connector routes, as in the current reporting form.

3. NWConnector Transit Access Study
Ken and Ryan reported. Surveyor is looking at Columbia Cotufity stops. R#4n’s shop is working on design.
Schedule has been pushed beyond the original end date of Dec/Jan. Looking at a February ending date.
Preferably would like to replace the Neotzu stop in Lincoln County. Cynda will come up with a better optmn a
stop that is ready to go otherthan the design components. Upcommg deliverables: Cost estimates and review
of de51gn package in December, individual stop designs will be reviewed incrementally. Scheduling of the
surveying was delayed dite to a contractmg issue, so theschedule for getting stop designs to each partner is
belng amended. Doug reported that there is a lot in Pacific City across from a couple of the proposed stop that
is vacant and for sale. TCTD is considering purchasing that lot for a park and ride, and if that happens, it
would make more sense to have the new stop located there instead. Doug, Ken and Ryan will discuss the
Pacific City stop off line. Cynda also asked for some help on bus stop signs, and Ken will follow up with her.

4. NWOTA Standing ftems

4 IGA—TCTD’s Board passed the IGA with two clerical edits: #4 Coordinating Fiscal Entity should read
Tillamook County Transportation District, and 11B Duration should be June 30, 2019. Doug noted that it

<., is important to get the IGA approved by all partners, because there may be an opportunity to add Yamhill

" as a partner, and the NWOTA legal paperwork needs to be in order. Yamhillis also looking adding transit
technology enhancements, which, if they were part of NWOTA and were to use Swiftly, the technology
could be used system-wide.

4 NW Connector Newsletter, NW Oregon Events—Suggestion on a story would be how NWConnector
system works: How connections are organized—arrival/departure windows are created around
neighboring systems. Wait and recovery time is built in to catch connecting buses. Riders can track buses
in real time on their mobile device bus app. If bus gets too far off schedule (more than 1 minute early or 4
minutes late), the bus won’t show up on the app. Riders can call their local agency, they can still see the
bus and let you know where it is. If there is heavy traffic or an accident, buses can get behind. Another
story could be how to travel with luggage and with a bike.

Other potential stories, from the July NWOTA Board meeting: Doug’s board chair will be taking transit to
Yachats and will keep a diary, which can be converted into a NW Connector story, barriers identified in
Cascadia Report, and an overview of the Oregon Coast Bike Plan would be another good topic. Bike Rack
information. Maxy will write up some items for review at the September board meeting.

1|Page



<+ Potential Addition of Bike and Ride Information on Website—Continues to be a work in progress. Mary
will contact Sports Works on instructions. Jeff will send Mary SETD’s bicycle information for drafting a
NWOTA policy. October agenda item.

4 Signage—Doug provided an updated shelter posture. Only a couple of edits are still needed. Partners
agreed that the design is good and ready to go. Doug also handed out two more examples of the signs, one
blue and one green. Only concern raised was whether the green would go with the blue poles and shelters.
Doug will send out to Todd, Jeff and Lee for their feedback.

4 Management Plan Update—Mary went over the proposed amendments. (See attached)

4 Visitor Passes—May want to look at how visitor passes work, whether they could be used anywhere in the
system, and did not have to be connected with a back—forth to the valley. Considermaking the focus
system travel, rather than travel from the valley combined with travel up and down the coast. Look at
visitor pass usage at a future meeting.

5. Member Updates

4 Sunset Empire—Paul went to the zero-emission transit conferefice i Los Angeles. Huge global
movement to find/use sustainable energy and infrastructure, LA is Jooking at being totally battery-
operated within the next 20 years. Will be a big transition. Need both infrastructure, buses, bagk-up
power generation. Hydrogen cells will refuel in 5 to 10ninutes. Réfueling is another big c0n51derat10n
As fleets get larger, more expensive to use batterles an perbus basis. Hﬂls require a certam amount of
power capacity.

4 Lincoln—Cynda has been working on Drug and Alcohol Review. Waiting to get lab certificates.
Certificates need to be signed by current lab employees, turnover has been a problem. STIF bylaws have
been adopted. Are planning on combining their STIF and Transit Advisory Committees. The District’s
State Audit noted that a Reasonable Modification Policy (which is differentithan Reasonable
Accommodation Policy) for all contractors is required. Cynda will senditout. Just ordered 3 buses.

4 Tillamook—New HR specialist, Helen, who will be working with NWQTA. Experienced in handling HR
matters. Completed Title 6 update and were found in‘complianice.-Summer shuttles were very successful.
Operated one extra day, ridership was up over 500%. Inthe mlddle of the STIF process.

Recorded: Mary McArthar, Col-Pac EDD and NWOTA Staff
| .

I o

4

2|Page



1 988 duBLIBA 29 J8png qLA/M Hodoy qOYg AJYIUoN
%883 LLTh6EEl 00000 LbT €TLSOEl L1VS8S €02E59
%0070 00°000°S 00°000°S 000 000 000
%000 00°000°S 00°000°¢ 000 000 000
%000 00°000°S 00°000°¢ 000 000 000
%8TY 00°05L°39 00°0SL 1L 00°000°€ 000 000
%000 00°05L°89 00°0S.°89 000 000 000
%00°001 000 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 000 000
%TE P LL'TE109 000ST0L  £TLSO0I LT'S8S £T°TES9
%000 00°000°S 00°000°S 000 L991p 000
%STST 00°STH'ST 00°000°0€ 00°SLSY 00°005°T 00°050°1
%000 00°000°¢ 00°000°S 000 L9OTY 000
%T6'1T LLL1S 61 00°000°ST £TTRY'S £€°€80°C £7°Z8b'S
%00°0 00°0SZ°S 00°0ST°s 000 0S'LEY 000
%EE 91 (00°000€2L)  00000Lp1T 00000vC _ 00000% 000 =
%00°001 000 0070001 0070001 000 000
%00°ST (00°000°9€) 00°000°8¥ 00°000°C1 00°000% 000
%00°0 (00°000°L8) 00°000°L8 000 000 000

%ST 20URLIEA 193png [810], [eryoy 198png polag [emoy pousg

HDM—UDm ﬁm“—Or—L HMOV HED.ES_U H—CO.HHSU HED‘ESU

8102/0€/6 Y3NOIYT, 810T/1/6 Wwox]

1odsy uf papnjou] suonoesuel], peysodup) - JUSWAIRIS [BIOURUL]

PLsI uonelrodsusr], A3uno,) Yoowe Ly

0109

SL16
0€l6

0Tcs
061¢
[
101¢
001¢

IT6v
ey
005€

INd LP:LS:T0 81/01/01 =3

sasuadxq [B10],
AenQ rende) re10L
saseyoang fende)) elo
soys/e8eusig doig sng
saseyaIng fende)
AepnQ [eude)
SIgJSuel], [B10]
aampuadxy a1njn,g 10 9AIOSIY
pun,j [eiauag) 0} 19JSuel]
SI9JSuRI],
S9OIAIOS PUE S[BLIAIBIA] [B1O],
Sururei] 29 [sAeBI],
Sunasep
JOUBUIIWEA IS
uoddng eanensiwpy
S20IAIAG [RUOISSJOIJ
SAOIAIIS PUR S]BLISIRIA]
sasuadxg

S20IN0SIY [BIO],
pun [eIouar) wWoly J3jsuel],
YoIBIA U0 Buled VIOMN
[e3de) Sunyiom
$90IN0S3Y



s8uwg]|¢ Q10T Ioquialdag :91ep 01 ssa1801d UB[J YIOM IPUIRSRUE V.LOMN

| apiaoad ‘suondo isuray uo o
Joured 03 sjuLAa FUIRADIG *sopaio1q
‘g1o8 n— pue s3stpAdlq yum s | asy) 1odsuenl 03 Suoo] s1apua
J8qo3o0)—Amp 105 395 SUISHISAPY B10% | yauuon ‘SIS1[0Ad1 Q0UBISIP YV.IOMN J0J SOIJIUIWE PUE SAVNAIIS |
-Buo[ pue -110ys Aq _ [oaes) Surpnpout weigoud |
| POpeou senuawe AJusp] e [ - opry/uayig e ysijqeisg | O |
ﬁ _
_ L Sunsyon SMoaIeP ‘SN _
ﬁ "SIOLSIP A9 01 A3ImE | *ABojouyoel SeUIdS-ayI-puIyaq nes
_ pappe aaey sisuaed asrgy, 6103 | ‘uonBeWIIoOJUI ST] AW} [BY VIOMN syupmaDuEius ASotouyna], | g
_
poou Surajosax . .
102 . 10199UU0)) 31} 01 91j10ads
| 8q o1 sreadde aysqam parepdn 8 _ S ura3sAs uoneuLIojur suoyd
— _ porewoine ue yuourerdwiy | Hgu
,, somotjod se[npayos AepIio _ " SuLp
pue soqig Suniodsuei], uo | = 1" pUE ‘pooy ‘oSessn| ‘sreurnue

‘ unjiom ‘speuiiuy guruiodsuel],

‘satok:
w0 korjod perordiios $9[0401q 10J SPIEPUE]S LIOJUIOD

1a3usssed Juasisuoo dopasa( | (F
0 mwmlw Aq ‘smoT[e . 1 B 5203 4q uoneao
I dois 10100utt07) 10fRTI YovD 1B
s3euds Junepdn _ wﬁmc& ﬁwﬁm ALOL SonIUs IR I9Y}0 WEN .amm?mﬁwﬁu.ﬁ
_ se soseqd ur ‘SI9][oUS papuelq 9plaoid | DI
“3urpuny soueyuy

|

ssaidoxd uy W

. Apmg ss900Y Jsuel], sjopdwo) uosTery
610C ’ ol M PO[[eISUI 9 0] SaIUouWIe
1 s1e[du0) 3 UEYOSUOD SITH | - LOodo pue sdojs Jofeur uo 9218y | Hr
/10% _ _ ALgS *91ISgeM I0109UUO0)) JY}
patsrduiop _ | 101001 Butuued duny e doeasg | VT

HONHINTIANOD ANV SSHODOV dHAIA HAOUJI 1 'IVOD

uonapduro)

1 01 ssaufoug bl SWaYL UoHDY NV1d NOLLOY HOLOINNOO

810%T J2quualdag :9)1e( 0] Ssai130ag

ue[q Y0\ Jududseue
D7) MAN 48RaH800-182




adedgl|¥

810% Ioquialdag :93ep 0] s501801J UEB[J MIOM IUSWEFRUBIA VIOMN

ASGIM UOFAIO[PARL], UO
suondQ uoneiodsuel], ut pasry |
IPINY [PALL], Ul JUISHIOAPY |

z . |._y|

a1epduro)

9)1SqoM U0 |
popraoad Juraq sduy [par aWOY _

4102 _

‘uejd SuneyTew [enuue
911 ur u08aI() [SABL], 9pPNOU]L

peis
I0199UU0))

‘weagord Supeyrew

(10331 JO SISPUOAL USADS,,
119} UI J01I2UTI0)) S} 9pnoul
01 U039I0) [SABIL, YIM YIOA

A<

8108

610%

e nsuo)

‘@811

01 SI9UIOISTI) I0] SAIIITIUL pue |

Aseo ST et} 91ISqoM B apPIA0IJ

He

uepd Sunejiew
[enUUE Ul S91391BIIS opn[ou]

yeis
J0199UU0)

*SJUNOJSTP UOSBIS
-JJO I3]J0 UED JeYj] SUOIIORIIIE
JOJISTA [BOO] T[IIM JO9UUO))

pore[duio) 12X 1SIL

410t
ut Furuurdaq
‘A[enuuy |

aroL

"410% ul Sutuurgaq satous3e oAl

[Te 1e JJe1s J0J uolissas Jururery
[enuue ue spaoid ‘sassed
JONSIA JO afes a3 10§ wrerdoxd
Fururen 921195 19W0ISND

pue SulUTeI] IDALIP B YSI[qRIST

o 1

|
]

uonewojut dijgnd iy
ssa130ad ur Junsrep

1oz
ui uraurdaq
‘guro3uQ

peis
10193UU0)

“uoL3ad

Aunoos-aa1y 343 I0YSnoxyy
A[snoauenus auop

ST 3} uSredwes uoTIBULIOFUL
oriqnd pue Juneyrew Suroup

qz

PIoq uo 7

—

e 01 ssoadoag

4103

suouels aredad

uonarduro)

1wsaey,

g ‘weadoad Juswardurg
‘apsgem

10339UU0) MN 3}

U0 UOLBULIOIUT 3PLL U, 91q

SUIdY] UONOY

urupy
J10193UU0))

B

pea

"I0399UU0)) 943 10} uorjisod
JI0JRUIPICO)) UIUWIIA[OAU]
IT[qn{ [euoldal e pung

ve

meZsb::S(, ZO,FU,HZZCQ LLONOUd T TVOD

NVId NOILOV HOL)ANNOD




sdeg|$§ g1oT Jequialdsg :93ep 03 sse1So1g ue[d JI0M JusweSeue V.LOMN
o e 1s1y paxdope o 01 spaau _ ;
sso1goxd ug 6102 AIdL Ajuno) frqure ojur
UE]d JUSURSEURA pUY <|wH| _ | weIsAs 10p90uuo) ay} puedxy | g€
== = 7 |
S9INO0I ¢ <
o€ pue 9 AMH uo Sutuaddery S LT "(0€ ‘0z ‘9 AMP]) s10p1LI0D
) 15800 0] AS[[BA U0 S[9AJ] 9OIAISS
pue ssousnbaly asearouy | DE
991IUWIUI0D Su0guo sdoy soumpreg "9OIAI0S [BI0]
-qus e 3utsn noyiwm Surueddery ’ JOIPUUWO]) | pue 9IAISS J0]IIUUO)) UIAIMII]
SOUIL} J9JSURBI] JBUIPIOO) | gL
. | “wesgoad 3onid 10303un0) 9y | _
| 90D | Zaswuwnm.z WMN - 10y paxedaad s[qeiau) [RUOIHAT .
-qns e guisn nogum pajadwony | I t ST urdiio ayy aepdn pue ma1aal DI1AIDS 10JD2UU0)) 10,
q ! [Mm P319] Qo qIm 4102 L1 {3 ajepdn p J
. | : 0] IPIUWOIGNS [} DUIAUOD) | AUDD | s9quiawm pajeutplood dopasq | Ve
%M@EA@Q @O;Mmm TVNOTOTY HAOUJIINI € TVOD
| ] - a8eudis 10109UUODMN sowmae | L ssauaIBME :
wm@._wcm& 4l _ A et “ 9SEIIDUL PUE ; oyepd[) _ v _ WI9lsAs pUE pue.l( aseaInu] az
m = | ! : o3 =
) | “epuafe | . _n
uorssIuuio)) uornerodsuely,
pole[durod Zvoall u039I() 91 U0 398 ueq WURWLZBURIA
UO0T1RIUa$9Id U0 HI0M SUOS 0] WOSTRYT OO UM MI10M ALOL a1} Jo uonejduroo uodn
uoneiuasad jutodiomod sdnois epmaje)s pue [BUOL3al
uIw-o1 e aredaig 91epdn 01 suorjelussaid apraolyg | O

uonsduwo)

k(] 03 ssaadoag SWIf Uo1y pey] NVId NOLLDYV HO.LDANNOD

jogany,



a5ed|o

810% 1equiaides :o3ep 01 ssaaSoid

ue[d JIop JuewaSeuRN VIOMN

JeIs

<

~:sseddod g up/pazejduwio) "

s s191[eys uo sdiysiosuods — siojerouss anumAal _
palelg 10N 7 broz 10 UISYIIAPE 19PISUO)) hcuuwzwmm 1032UU0Y MN 21EBUSIAU] ; o¥
R - I | | ] —_—
- B o [ [ ‘0T0T
7 _ uoSTery | Aq S9rUOYYe 1500 [euonelado
PIHEIS BN b LOdO [eU0I3a1 [RUONIPPE 10] 0O
_ _ 01 £pnjs patelap e apdwo) | gb
| |
swaysds suoujaud 3svop € (v _ ._
U0 dUB[ORIL] SN auily [ 105 | . i
131 _ 1 . % [N - . E,c: ! | SIABY {
_ UR[IUSWASeURIY e utguruurdaq 103Ut | ‘saseyand tofeur daipo pue |
ApMG S22V JISURLL, . ‘Burodu(Q) _ | SAOIAIRS FUNNSUOD ‘SOIUDILE |
ASGOMJEOL o | dors ‘quawdmba sanooad

ALITIIVLS TVIONVNI4 ANV TVNOLLVZINVOHIO ASVAIINI ¥ TvOoD

- &purof o) sonumtoddo oy oo v

e TR A S P

S LR L

- 91e(1 01 5048044

uogojduro)
Ppdae],

SUAL UOIIOY

| 19Jeatayl  pue sourudymeun juswdmbe
po1reis 10N | 3ulo8uo (610g .w:%z_oﬁ UOIFAL I} 10] _ UOO
Aq juawsdwuy  sardo[ould9] UONOI[[Od BIRP
L = | T T L o (T R
S91T0I I0I09UUODAMN o1ejdwey Surpiodal elep oy} .
(ojew o} sjusunisnlpe i ow% %awwnwmm gursn MSQEQE yoes Eobwuq%@ . JEIS mhoﬂﬁwnm
awos 3unjeur jng ‘pajerdwo) » ’ [euonierado A[qjuoul urelqQ _ VIOMN 10103HT0] JO S0HIET
_ UOTIID[[0J BIRP ZIpIepuels | g€
| | ‘Saul) dajsury QJBUIPIOOI 0) |
7 | SABM SSNISIP PUR ‘UOT WO
JI0M Spaall [[1S 102 109 ssed 10)SIA puR 99IA1RS

1

9IRS 0} (LNIOJ SOprase) | |

oL} Yym Buniaels) INIOd pue | !
ARLULY S€ 21S SADIAISS tm:ﬁuu _ _
910 s ondoeip e uadQ | € |

e

NVTId NOILOV HOLOUNNOD



ssegls g10T Jequisldag :o1ep 01 5521301 UBR[J YIOAM 1useseueAl V.LOMN

_ _ ] ~ sSupeeuwt | _
.~ VIOMNpue mﬁ.._m duiuiquos. , _
- 103 [enuslod ayj je oo } - .
I 3 T gapumo) _ e weg | WR1SAS 10393UUODMN .
o1Bp 01 98L1S UOISSTOSI( 6102 £IGRIADY 1010UIOOMN T .Elu.:a‘u w ay3 103 dnoad Liosupe | o
__ - ...:"w uo gunedonied i i G i wa._..wm.mmwwmw.mmmmmoo
_ - Qi3soojur stodetpy |
| * J1998 03 $3qUT, 3Y) UM HIOM - 6 =
| (VoI "VOI 943 03
"‘perdope aary |
Jounsiq uoneyrodsuely, AJunoy — yeip wcwmmwm SISLLIEQ 9AJOSA1 pue sardojens
YOOUIB[[LL, Pu®e A1UNo)) Uujooury bl Juswiageuew [ennuajod sSnosIp |
gToz w 9197dwo) 011DT) | o) pieoq s Lousge ourred yora

dALOL wogy seanjeuasatdal susauo) | gb

(1opes] | -Surpurny uonBUIPIOOD [EUOLIDT
VIO yim Suruostery L1og -0 (L1DL) 103 SurAqqo[ u1 aouelsisse
LT 10] (V.10) Uonenossy
nsuel], 108210 913 03 ino yoeayy | AP
‘uefd JuswRdeUR W

91[} UI papuUsUItIodal seare 01doy
130T 1od a0j sototjod [eyTUI Yst[qelso
pue ‘fenuews seanpasord

| pue sepijod reuorde e dopsreq | ab

setorjod say1g 3unaodsuedy,
pue sanpatos Aeprjoy uo
Sunjiom ‘speuniuy guniodsuery,
uo4orjod pajerdwo)

v Yoduro;
o1eq 03 ssoutioad s SWI] UOHOY PeaT  NVId NOLIOV HOLOANNOD

(¢ ¥



s38eg|g

810¢ Ioquiaides :93ep 01 ssa1301d ue[d JIOM IUWLSeUR V.IOMN

‘uopejduio)

Qe 01 SSIIZ0ag SUWIY UONOY

j1esae],

N Jussojduis
119y} 0] 9S00 I[GRPIOIIE 7
duisnoy puiy 01 peduayeyo
_ Jajjeaaet seakojdws 103 sassed 7 duysaapr awmooul
_ auop futaq Ajjenand mn_omnuw “mﬁ%m suq é_ﬂm..@E,WmEooE _ -MO[ M meﬁwg W:.p@ﬁ:mwm
-MO[ 1M S9ITI01 JO ISEBIDA0D 'Sole] PINpPIY :SIAPLI ALODU|
FUISEAIDUL ‘Saae] PAonpay| MmO[ Aq UWDISAS 103129UTOD MN
7 1S8ALUBOUL [BOUSIO,] 93 jo uonezijnn aseanuy | @<
- “quetudopasp jo AR R aa D ST
uonipuod v sjusuwasosdurr
Jsueq gyendoadde
IMEUL 0} S10302.1P m
| | Furuuepd [Ro0] Im . .
fotren ajeuIpIooa pue spesodoad S g _ . _
_ 2UOD Butaq A[[enied mﬂzow,:w ,xm cm wowdoEadp moumotnay M1 .:< " n
_ : - ‘pasodoad g |
[ | ade sjuswdopaap
MIU UM PO TOU D ‘sa55000.d [Ra0Idde
0} Sk PUE LAk 901AI9S DY) | Jupwdoppasp pur Furuueid (o] |
i uade [Lao] [oed 18 | OJUl I0)3ULOY) ) ajvadajul 0] | _
- T $1019911p duinuerd peIuo) e ~ suouipsun{ [eoo[ yum 18Ul | DS
SdotLIed plobEliti(ug]
O1IEIS 10 » 10199TH0) 9Y1 9PL1 01 MO 9JBIISUOWIP
POREISAON frehuty .“Mwﬂ”ww”%h.um 01 ‘SI9]Uad I0IU3S SB
ang [ors ‘serouade AJUNUIUIOD [BI0] _
| B N - - s 03 1N0 [0l ‘siSeq [enuue ue uQ | gS
| T9NIS(BM 10JOaUU0)) |
. ay uo .oy aded v pring _
pararduiop Yoz S AR oA R A juwipsuo)  puw Aw:w.._mc.a Speay, o3 SR, |
RIDIAI $,A1unop BWOUOG 0} JR[IWS |
_ . 1dsouod gunexaew v 1oy ueyd
o e R e el S S Sl AN e s TR RO T S Tl
7 ALTTIEVATT ALINQIWINOD ADONVHNA S TVOD

peoy NVId NOLLOV HOIDANNOD



93e g6 Q107 Joquialdog :a1ep 01 ssal1301d UB[J NIOM TUSWRSERUBA V.IOMN

sphy-e-[elq op 03
_ A1109]JS 300 dioui 9q AWt
e [ B e e ) G

uopapduro)

918(] 0] $SIIT0a] SUIDY Uonoy pea] NVId NOLLDY HOLIDANNOD

198ae],



‘!._
; Sl SpeRd N I L e R
B 4 fan Tillamook County Transportation District
& 4 2 “Connecting the community through sustainable transit services”
STATEWIDE TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT FUND ADVISORY COMMITTEE
MEMBER APPLICATION

Name
Jeff Hazen

Address

900 Marine Dr.

City State Zip
Astoria OR 97103
Home/Cell Phone Work Phone
503-298-7114 503-861-5399

Occupation (if applicable)
Executive Director — Sunset Empire Transportation District

Community Affiliations / Interests
Vice Chair — ODOT Public Transportation Advisory Committee
Member — Seaside Rotary Club

The STIF Advisory Commitiee is required to meet at least two times each year. Your
appointment to the committee is for a 2-year term. Meetings are held at the TCTD
Administrative Office from 12:00pm — 1:30pm. Lunch is provided,

Date

Signature
?// 10/10/18

A TILLAMODOK OR 271

A
MM TILLAMODOHWEUS SO

V(3038158233 Fax (3031215

-

@]
o))
()
L)
S]]




Regular Meeting 9/20/18
Tillamook County Transportation District T
Board of Directors Regular Monthly Meeting
Thursday, September 20, 2018 — 6:30PM
Transportation Building

3600 Third Street, Ste. A Tillamook, OR
Meeting Minutes

1. Call to Order: Board Chair Judy Riggs called the mesting to order at 6:32pm
2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Calk:
Present
TCTD Board of Directors
Judy Riggs, Board Chair
Marty Holm, Vice Chair
Gary Hanenkrat, Treasurer
Jim Huffman, Secretary
Jackie Edwards, Director
Merrianne Hoffman, Director
Melissa Carlson-Swanson, Director

TCTD Staff

Doug Pilant, General Manager

Brent Olson, Superintendent

Tabatha Welch, Accounting Specialist

Helen Mercado-Romero, HR Specialist/Board Clerk

Absent
None.

Guest
Chris Kell

4. Executive Session: Board Chair Judy Riggs called for an Executive Session in regard
to Performance Evaluations. Protocol was announced, and the Executive Session
commenced. Only board members met for the Executive Session. The regular
meeting resumed at 7:41PM.

Motion by Director Holm to award GM Doug Pilant a 6.5% pay raise retroactive to his
annual hire date of January 23, 2018. Motion Seconded by Director Huffman. Board
Chair Judy Riggs called for further discussion; followed by none, she called for the vote.
MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY
By Directors Edwards, Hanenkrat, Hoffman,
Carlson-Swanson and Board
Chair Judy Riggs.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize stalements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

1



Regular Meeting 9/20/18
REPORTS

5. Information: General Managers Report:

a. Financial Report: GM Doug Pilant reviewed the August 2018 Financial Report.
Director Hanenkrat asked a question about the legal fee expenses for the
brokerage. GM Pilant explained those expenses were incurred to negotiate the
contract between the District and CareOregon and explained these expenses
would be allocated to the brokerage budget. Director Huffman suggested that
all reports for brokerage be separated, including credit card reports.

b. Service Measure Performance Report: GM Pilant reviewed the Service
Measure Performance Report, noting that the District provided 15,098 trips last
month. Volunteer related dial-a-ride trips are down 9.5%, due to a lack of
available volunteers. The District hasn't had any volunteers available the past
8 plus weeks. GM Pilant reported that beginning this year that all passengers,
including care attendants and children are being counted for the National
Transit Database. Therefore, this next year there will be an increase in
ridership. GM Doug Pilant handed-out a corrected version of the Monthly
Performance Report and reported there has been a strong ridership market
between Lincoln County to Portland. Other Services ridership is up 45.2%,
which is credited to the PC Shuttle, which had an overall ridership increase of
305% over the past year.

c. Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance: GM Doug Pilant reviewed the NWOTA
meeting agenda, minutes, finance report with the Board. GM Doug Pilant said
the Coordinating Committee agreed to implement a year-long marketing
campaign to purchase advertisements and submit articles on how to use the
NW Connector to travel to the coast in NW Boomer & Senior Newspaper. The
NW Boomer household distribution is 45,000 and will target senior citizens who
might consider riding the bus to the coast. The Rural Transit Assistance
Program (RTAP) awarded the NW Connector website as #1 in the nation and
awarded NWOTA a $300 prize. Lincoln County will be going live with Swifty in
the next few weeks and we'll be able to see their buses in real time. NWOTA
is planning to discuss expanding the partnership to Yamhill County.

d. Planning & Development:

i. Cape Kiwanda Master Plan: The PC-Woods Parking Plan Management
Team met on Meeting held on August 28, 2018. A follow-up meeting
with the PC-Woods Parking Management Plan Community Advisory
Committee met the following week. Both GM Doug Pilant and Director
Hoffman attended this meeting.

ii. City of Tillamook Transportation Planning Meeting: Nothing to report.

iii. Cloverdale bus stop: Rachel Hagerty has been meeting with ODOT, the
County Public Works and PUD to discuss a plan to move the County
and PUD maintenance yards to the ODOT maintenance yard in Hebo.
This would free-up property to be used for low income housing in
Cloverdale. This could enable the County to use the Cloverdale grant to
be repurposed to another project in Cloverdale.

iv. Grand Ronde Transit Development Plan: GM Doug Pilant reported the
the Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde submitted a the Tribal Funding
Grant grant to purchase small buses and provide service between Spirit

Mountain, Grand Ronde and Dallas.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

2



Regular Meeting 9/20/18

v. Oregon Coast Bike Route Plan: GM Doug Pilant reported that in July
the ODOT Region 2-Area 1 began a planning process to create a new
bike plan for entirety of Highway 101. GM Doug Pilant reported the
District conducted an onboard survey during the 2015 tourist season for
the Intercity Transportation Enhancement Plan and learned about 10%
of Route 5 ridership are bicyclist traveling to and from the coast on any
given day. The new Bike Route Plan will be importantto TCTD as it will
identify and communicate to bicyclist the specific locations to access
public transportation and develop facilities that provide services for
bicyclists.

vi. Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF): GM Pilant
reported that its critical the District submit an application at the ODOT
November 1t deadline. TCTD has included STIF monies in its FY 2018-
19 Budget to use STIF as local match to purchase replacement and
expansion vehicles. If the District fails to meet this deadline it will be the
following year before these funds can be accessed. The goal will be to
engage the STIF Advisory Committee and get their recommendation to
move forward with matching funds to purchase buses and vans. GM
Doug Pilant said the monies can also be used to develop bus stops.
Staff will be scheduling a STIF planning meeting in October to bring a
proposal to the Board to approve in October and meet the November
deadline.

e. Grant Funding: GM Doug Pilant will submit a revised grant to SDAQO for video
cameras at the Transit Visitor Center to provide a specific application request.
f. Facility/Property Management:

i. Tillamook Family Counseling and TCTD will share the cost of new

signage for the street monument sign and the building.
g. Miscellaneous:

i. GM Doug Pilant reported that NW Rides is fully staffed and trained. The
DHS Volunteer program has some issues that still need to be resolved.
NW Rides has 2 new providers, Willamette Valley Transport and Metro
West.

ii. Sunset Empire Transportation District (SETD): GM Doug Pilant has
been discussing the possibility of allowing SETD the opportunity to
piggyback onto the District's Ecolane user’s license. This access would
provide SETD staff with full access to Ecolane to manage their
paratransit, dial-a-ride and NEMT operations. SETD is the lowest cost
transportation provider in Clatsop County and giving them access could
save the NW Rides brokerage a lot money.

ifi. GM Pilant reported that the CEO of CareOregon, Mimi Haley, visited the
brokerage and said she was very impressed with progress Cathy and
the NW Rides team had made the first 8 weeks of operation. She said
Cathy and her staff have accomplished metrics they expected would
take 4 to 6 months. Next steps are to make sure we are able to complete
the brokerage reports and submit them to CareOregon in a timely
manner.

iv. GM Pilant requested moving November board meeting. Board meeting
will be held on November 29, 2018. Notice should be posted for that day.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quolation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

3



Regular Meeting 9/20/18
v. A RFP for a revised Strategic Plan Assessment has been distributed.

The original plan was only effective for 3-5 years. A request was made
for GM Pilant to send out copies via email to the Board. Director Holm
requested the original plan be distributed to the board members who
haven't seenit.

vi. State Timber Revenue Class Action Lawsuit: GM Pilant reported the
Commissioners hosted a meeting last week to provide an update on the
Timber Class Action Lawsuit. They are planning to go to Court in mid-
2019. The State of Oregon has lost 19 of 20 motions and the only
decision the Jury will be asked make is to determine the present value
of money lost beginning in 2001. The estimated Lawsuit is currently
valued at $1.4 billion cost if which $360 million could come to Tillamook
County.

vii. A new Wellness Center Policy and Facility Preventative Maintenance
Plan have been included in the Consent Calendar for approval tonight.

CONSENT CALENDAR
Some typos were pointed out:
- p. 40 Property Maintenance Checklist: should be “dollies”, not “doily’s”
- p. 41 Property Maintenance Checklist: should be “temporary”, not “temporty”
and should be “Shut-off” of water.
- p. 35 Board Minutes, should be “we” instead of “he”, p. 37 should be “TCCA”,
and Director Holm was NOT present at the meeting.

6. Motion: Approval of Minutes of August 23, 2018 Board Meeting.

DISCUSSION ITEMS
7. Staff Comments/Concerns
GM Doug Pilant: Thank you.
Superintendent Brent Olson: Positive comments on staff and was glad to see Marty
back.
Accounting Specialist Tabatha Welch: Happy to see Marty back.
HR Specialist/Board Clerk Helen Mercado-Romero: Exciting for the new position.

8. Board of Directors Comments/Concerns
Jim Huffman — comments regarding Timber class action suit.
Merrianne Hoffman — None.
Judy Riggs - none
Marty Holm — Thanked everyone.
Jackie Edwards — None.
Gary Hanenkrat — None.
Melissa Carlson-Swanson — None.

UPCOMING EVENTS
None.

Adjournment: Board Chair Riggs adjourned the meeting at 8:59pm.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting, Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

4



Regular Meeting 9/20/18
These minutes approved this 25th day of October 2018.

ATTEST:

Judy Riggs, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

B



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

IN THE MATTER OF ADOPTING )
THE TCTD INTERCITY TRANSIT )
ENHANCEMENT PLAN ) RESOLUTION NO. 18-23

WHEREAS, in January 2017, Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD)
finalized the TCTD Intercity Transit Enhancement Plan (the "IC Plan"), attached hereto
as Exhibit A, to improve intercity connections to/from/within Tillamook County and
increase opportunities for service with Greyhound and Amtrak; and

WHEREAS, in developing the IC Plan, TCTD coordinated with each of its service
partners in a series of meetings, resulting in two technical memoranda that identified
near-term recommendations as well as service additions contingent on securing
additional funding; and

WHEREAS, on January 2, 2018, TCTD began implementation of the IC Plan's
recommendations by increasing the number of connections in Cannon Beach and
extending service from Grand Ronde to Salem; and

WHEREAS, the IC Plan stil has relevant service enhancement
recommendations to be considered such as improving connections in Lincoln City and
increasing service to Greyhound and Amtrak in Portland; and

WHEREAS, with the passage of House Bill 2017 in 2017, the Oregon Legislature
established the Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF) to expand public
transportation services throughout Oregon through distribution of STIF Formula Funds;
and

WHEREAS, the STIF Formula Funds are distributed to Qualified Entities, of
which TCTD is Tillamook County’s designated Qualified Entity; and

WHEREAS, to apply for such funds, TCTD must submit a STIF Plan that may
include projects from locally adopted plans; and

WHEREAS, TCTD wishes to include the IC Plan in its STIF Plan application as a
locally adopted plan in order to continue to implement aspects of the IC Plan that were
identified therein as being contingent on securing additional funding; and

WHEREAS, TCTD has determined that, with the inclusion of projects from the IC

Plan in its STIF Plan application, TCTD may be eligible for up to $959,400 of STIF
Formula Funds over the next three fiscal years; and

45039-27477 18-23 TCTD Intercity Enhancement Plan.DOCVY10/6/2018



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation
District Board of Directors that:

TCTD adopts the TCTD Intercity Transit Enhancement Plan.
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 18" day of October 2018.

ATTEST:

By: By:
Judy Riggs, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

45039-27477 18-23 TCTD Intercity Enhancement Plan.DOCV10/6/2018



EXHIBIT A

TCTD INTERCITY TRANSIT ENHANCEMENT PLAN

45039-27477 18-23 TCTD Intercity Enhancement Plan.DOCV10/6/2018



| “

L7 KITTELSON & ASSOCIATES, INC.
'].'<\ TRANSPORTATIONENGINEERING/PLANNING
I\ N 610 SW Alder Street, Suite 700, Portland, OR 97205 503,228.5230 503.273.8169

TCTD INTERCITY TRANSIT ENHANCEMENT PLAN

Date: January 13, 2017 Project #: 20111
To: Doug Pilant, TCTD

From: Susan Wright, PE, Paul Ryus, and Anais Malinge

Project: Intercity Transit Enhancement Plan

Subject: Recommended Enhancements

OBJECTIVE

The objective of the TCTD Intercity Transit Enhancement Plan is to improve intercity connections
to/from/within Tillamook County and increase opportunities for interlining service with Greyhound
and Amtrak, resulting in increased ridership for TCTD and its partners.

INTRODUCTION

The Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD) developed an Intercity Transit Service
Enhancement Plan to improve its connections to coordinating service partners, including
Greyhound and Amtrak (in Portland and Salem), Sunset Empire Transportation District {in Cannon
Beach), Lincoin County Transit Service District (in Lincoln City), Salem Area Mass Transit District (in
Grand Ronde), and Yamhill County Transit Area (in Grand Ronde). This effort builds off the July
2016 Transit Development Plan which proposed near- and mid-term service recommendations to
improve transit service. To develop the intercity Transit Service Enhancement Plan, TCTD
coordinated with each of its’ service partners in a series of meetings to further vet concepts from
the TDP, develop additional concepts, and identify ways to enhance intercity service and
connections. This coordination effort resulted in near-term recommendations for Routes 3,5, and 6
(Coastal Connector) for schedule modifications as well as service additions that could be
implemented as soon as summer of 2017 with additional funding. Pending funding for these
recommendations, complimentary schedule modifications would also be implemented for Routes 1,
2, and 4 to maximize connection opportunities between TCTD routes as well as with their partner
agencies.

BACKGROUND

TCTD’s intercity routes include Route 3 (Tillamook — Manzanita/Cannon Beach), Route 4 (Tillamook -
Lincoln City), Route 5 (Tillamook — Portiand), and Route 6 (Coastal Connector). Based on the 2016

FILENAME: C:|\USERS|SWRIGHT|DOCUMENTS|TCTD INTERCITY TRANSIT ENHANCEMENT PLAN.DOCX



Intercity Transit Enhancement Plan Project #20111
January 13, 2017 Page 2

TDP, a customer survey specific to intercity connections conducted on Routes 5 and 6, and a
worksession with TCTD staff, several opportunities to enhance intercity connections were identified
for each of the intercity routes. These are described in Technical Memorandum #1 along with route
descriptions, performance and financial characteristics, and demographic information.

The opportunities identified in Technical Memorandum #1 were discussed with two separate
working groups; North County and South County. These meetings resulted in refinements and
additional opportunities to be considered. These opportunities were assessed in Technical
Memorandum #2 which includes descriptions of the alternatives for each route, detailed potential
schedules, and an evaluation of each alternative to determine its consistency with ODOT’s criteria
for evaluating intercity transit grants and its projected performance and financial characteristics.
The criteria applied in Technical Memorandum #2 include:

ODOT Grant Criteria
= New or improved special connection. Provides additional connection to social services or

destinations and origins either not currently or poorly served.

= New or improved temporal connection. Evaluates existing travel time of each run relative to
proposed travel time per alternative. Evaluate based on percent change.

& Close a gap in the intercity network.

® Demonstrated need. The alternative addresses a need or opportunity identified through the
TDP process, Technical Memorandum #1, Customer Survey, or Working Group meetings.

= Improve service to low income areas. Low income persons within 1/2 mile of existing route
alignment relative to proposed route alignment. Evaluate based on percent change.

= Increase potential for interline agreement with Greyhound or Amtrak.

= Improve access to employment. Employment within 1/2 mile of existing route alignment
relative to proposed route alignment. Evaluate based on percent change.

= Type of trip benefiting. Evaluates whether the alternative benefits work, non-work, tourism,
intercity, and interstate trips.

Performance and Financial Characteristics

= Cycle Time. Includes round trip time and layover.
® Frequency. Number of existing versus number of proposed daily trips by origin/destination.
= Ridership. Estimated change based on the proposed alternative.

= Service Revenue. Based on existing fare revenue per passenger and change in estimated
ridership.

= Service Miles. Calculated based on the change in services miles from existing trips.

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



Intercity Transit Enhancement Plan Project #20111
January 13, 2017 Page 3

» Administration Cost. Calculated based on existing admin costs per passenger and change in
estimated ridership.

= Operating Cost. Calculated based on existing operating cost to service miles ratio and proposed
service miles.

= Capital Cost. An estimate of the capital cost to provide the additional service.

»  Total Annual Costs. An estimate of the increase in annual costs to operate the route with the
proposed changes.

=  Cost per Mile. An estimate of cost per mile of the route with the proposed changes.

= Cost per Ride. An estimate of the cost per ride of the route with the proposed changes and
assuming the estimated ridership increase.

= Revenue as Percentage of Cost (Farebox Return). An estimate of the farebox return of the
route with the proposed changes and assuming the estimated ridership increase.

The assessments in Technical Memorandum #2 were discussed in one additional meeting with the
North County Working Group and two additional meetings with the South County working Group.

North County Working Group

The North County Working Group met two times to identify and review the assessments of service
enhancements in the northern portion of the County that would improve coordination with SETD
and provide additional interline opportunities with Greyhound and Amtrak in Portland. The meeting
participants included representatives from the following organization:

o Sunset Empire Transportation District (SETD)
o City of Manzanita
o City of Cannon Beach

South County Working Group

The South County Working Group met three times to identify and review the assessments of service
enhancements in the southern portion of the County that would improve coordination of SKT, YCT,
and LCTSD services, and provide additional interline opportunities with Greyhound and Amtrak in
Salem. The meeting participants included representatives from the following organization:

Confederated Tribes of Siletz

Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde

Lincoln City Transportation Service District (LCTSD)
Yamhill County Transit (YCT)

Salem-Keizer Transit (SKT)

O O O O O

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



Intercity Transit Enhancement Plan Project # 20111
January 16, 2017 Page 4

SERVICE RECOMMENDATIONS

This section identifies the recommended alternatives to enhance intercity connections based on
input from the Working Groups.

The service enhancement recommendations are categorized as three different types of
recommendations, as follows:

TN

L) schedule change; 'Q' Additional service

There is more than one recommendation for Route 3 and Route 5. The Route 3 recommendations
are complimentary and are recommended to be implemented together. The recommendations for
Route 5 are two potential alternatives depending upon funding. If funding is not obtained for
Alternative 5B, Alternative 5A is recommended.

Potential schedules for these recommendations are included in the Appendix of Technical
Memorandum #2.

Route 1 —Tillamook Town Loop

@ Modify schedule so that all trips depart at :05 and arrive at :00 to facilitate Route 3/SETD
connectionsin Cannon Beach.

= Extend service later in the evening, to allow connections from intercity routes arriving in
Tillamook after 6:00 p.m.

Route 2 — Tillamook — Oceanside/Netarts

@ Modify schedule so that all trips depart at :15 and arrive at :00 to match changes to Route 1.

Route 3 - Tillamook — Manzanita/Cannon Beach

@ [3A] Modify Route 3 schedule to provide more reliable connections in Cannon Beach and
Tillamook.

& [3C] Extend all trips (a total of six per day) to Cannon Beach. The SETD Route 20 midday trip to
Manzanita could be eliminated and used to provide an extra round trip between Seaside and
Cannon Beach.

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



Intercity Transit Enhancement Plan Project # 20111
January 16, 2017 Page 5

Route 4 — Tillamook — Lincoln City

@ [4A] Provide a faster trip between Tillamook and Lincoln City by eliminating the diversion into
Pacific City on all trips except the first northbound and last southbound trip (to serve work trips
originating in Pacific City). Coordinate the schedule for transfers to Route 6. Provide several
roundtrips each day from Lincoln City to Pacific City.

Feasibility of this recommendation will depend upon funding for other route recommendations and
the availability of a bus.

Route 5 — Tillamook - Portland

@ [5B] Provide three round trips per day to Portland (morning, midday, and late
afternoon/evening) and modify the scheduled times to increase the number of interline
opportunities with Greyhound and Amtrak and increase the practicality of Route 5 for more
types of trips (provides more hours in Portland for a daytrip from Tillamook as well as a same
day return trip for trips from Portland to Tillamook).

Feasibility of this recommendation will depend upon funding. If additional funding is not feasible,
implement Alternative 5A.

® [5A] Reschedule the midday trip to Portland to late afternoon/evening, allowing the route to
serve more types of trips between Tillamook and Portland. Schedule a longer layover in
Portland to increase the number of potential connections with Greyhound and Amtrak.

Route 6 — Coastal Connector

@ [6G] Extend all three daily trips to Salem to provide interline opportunities with Amtrak and
Greyhound throughout the day. Implement the same schedule 7 days per week. Two to three
weekday SKT 2X trip could be eliminated due to trips provided by TCTD allowing this to be
roughly cost neutral but with funding shifted from SKT to TCTD.

Table 1 shows the evaluation matrix for each recommended service enhancement. Each
recommendation was evaluated by evaluation criteria and compared to other alternatives
documented in Technical Memorandum #2. The criteria utilize a three category rating system
identifying if the alternative has a negative impact on the criteria, no impact, or a positive impact -
0, +). Some criteria have a Yes or No response or have a stated answer.

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



Intercity Transit Enhancement Plan Project # 20111
January 13, 2017 Page 6

ATTACHMENTS

Technical Memorandum #1 - Existing Conditions and Opportunities

Technical Memorandum #2 - Opportunities Assessment and Prioritized Recommendations

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



Project # 20111

Intereity Transit Enhoncement Plan
Page 7

Inauory 13, 2017

Table 1: Service Enhancement Evaluation Matrix

54 6

Threa through trips per diy from Lincoln Cty
to Salermn with schedule similar to weekand
schedule

Reschedule midday oip a3 laie
im._mwc.ﬂftvr.nln] trip

Wypasa Pacific City most trips, Provide LC.PC
Roundtrigs

Extend aif trips to Cannan Baach Thiee round trips per diy:

All Route 3 trips (6/day) serve Cannon

All trips bypass Pacific City to provide faster
travel times to/from Lincoln City, except the

Schedule changes to serve a greater

Al three trips per day go all the way to Salem
and serve Amtrak/Greyhound and Salem

Kittelson & Associotes, inc.

iled N ¥ B h 3
deDse:llpltEion Beach, up fram 2/day at present, SETD's 1 first NB and last 38 trip {to serve work trips variety of trips te/from Portland and Adds a third round trip and Increases Transit Center on a schedule simitar to the
trip/day to ita di inued. jginating in Pacific City), Provide 2 midday increase connection apportunities with heduled time for jons with schedule, 2-3 daity SKT X
Implement ctockface schedule. trips per day from Lincoln City to Pacific City, Greyhound/Amtrak Greyhaund and Amtratk. Trips.
Provides three daily one-seut Uips
New/improved Improved cannections between n most trips riders to/from Pacific Ié: ea::dd;;elzt:rg:\et‘:vr::nlencoln
spatial + TCTD and SETD by providing - City need to use stop at US 101 or 0 0 + Eu?’em[ R te . . f’
tonnection? consistent transfer point. transfer in Lincoln City het:uee: Lin?:aln Cit: ar:;eSale
m
and two to Greyhound/Amtrak.
New/impraved Connects TCTD riders directly Reduces travel time between - Provides 3 trips per day. ",EE“FES .ea\‘.‘v moTning lm.nsfzr
- N Provides later raturn from N time in Lincoln City, gets riders to
temporal + Cannon Beach 6 times per day + Tillamook and Lincoln City by i L Provides ater return from * s
N . N Portland than current schedule. Salern by 9:30 am, similar to
conneaction? without a transfer approximately 20%. Paortland than currently existing conditians.
o N Woaould reduce number of direct trips Provides 3 dail t tri
e g i toffrom Pacific City/Tillamack to 1 o 0 o e o
n Em% time per day. Additional trips would w" k‘: 03aamen
netwarl be provided to/from Lincoln City eeldays.
I Desire expressed in interviews . — .
- Deviation to Pacific City raised as an
for a Cannon Beach trip arriving - . .
d in Tillamook by 9 am to serve issue inthe TDP, increasing trave! Later trip from Portland Mare and [ater trips ta Portland Desire expressed for fewer
DE"W"S;;“E = jobs and provide access to tes time, impacting convenlence of Yes raguested es reguested p= weekday transfers to get to Sal
feg § P connecting to Route 6 and LCTSD 4 9 - Y EELESt s Em:
increasing cancer treatment
= . routes
trips in future to Astoria-
Wark R Raduces travet time For trips to/fram Allows more time in Partiand for Aflows more time (n Portland (¥ No transters raquired from Salum
, aute 3 would be better able ta i e " A B = %
Type of trip(s) & serve a variety of wark and non- Inter | pointssouth of Pacific City. Provides Al a variety of trips, allows more Al needed) for a variety of trips, Al to Lincoln Clty, three times per day
benefitting? non- w:’k trins, n city | more midday trips in corridor north of intercity/Interstate connection allows more intercity/interstate and provides direct trip te/from
waork P Pacific City. oppartunities. connection opportinities Greyhound/Amtrak.

Pufennal interline Increases connections in Increases connection in ,18 =y At rak an.d.Greynuunu
with Greyhound No No Yes oortland Yas portland Yas interline opportunities {currently
& Amtrak? ) zero) due to required transfers,

i i i thern half of
Improves Service Bem?r trajel timEs.n .sou Egreils Better serves trips to Portland Better serves trips to Portland
to Low Income + More trave! optians +- carridor, less convenient travel from 0 N N + N
pacific City region for aducation, medical. ragion for aducation, medlcal. i .
Areas? acl + More travel optians in carridor
Provides early morning and f
di te ti
Improves Access early evening trips In both - 2] gomm petine for B Later return from Portland may Later return from Partland may
I ? + dicections, serving job-related * fongest distance trips. Preserves wark * benefit work trips > benefit work trips Y
ta Employment? g r.ripsg trip access to Pacific City. L 5
Poreiend, Omgne



Intercity Transit Enhancement Plan Praject 4 20111
tonvary 13, 2017 a Puge 1

Table 2: Financial and Performance Evaluation

Changsin ; Changein Change in Changs i Changs in Change in ; Route Cost * Route Cost Route L4 . % * Route
Cy:le.‘l'm Additional Frequancy Ridarship ServicoRevanue  ~  Service Mifes | Admin Costs Operating €08t © Capital Cast per Mils perRids ~ Remnueasa%of  Adminas 2% of
{min} {round trips pec day} . (snual) {annual) fannuaf {annua) .. fsnnual} . (one-time} (we e} (k) . Cost (wialt) Cost fwl all}

3C 65 4 30% 5 15874 43,442 $ 24201 § 98,556 $ 250,000 $122757 | $ 282 | § 1087 ,

A -30 o 0% $ = 7,018 s - ${13,897) S i $ (13.897)" $ 258 $ 2522 l 7.6% 23.4%

54 0 0 5% $ 6088 1] $ 2961 $ . $ 250,000 $ 2,961 $ 276 $ 2514 40.8% 19.8%

B 30 1 0% $ 48,704 37,800 $ 23,690 § 83,768 $ 250,000 $107457 | § 276 | $ 2514 40.8% 19.8%
0 to Grand Ronde

66 ns’ +3 to Salem 30% $ 2,982 80,027 $ 11173 $157,769 s - 5168943 | § 227 | $ 549 3.6% 133%

15avings to be allocated to providing service to/from Lincaln City and Pacific City.

2 Change in cycle time far trips ta Salam only Travel time from Lincoln City to Grand Ronde unchanged.

Vithwlinn & Armciane, e
fwlinn & Armcine, e Farriinif, fregan



For the Board Meeting of October 18, 2018
Agenda ltem # 10

MEMO TO: TCTD BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FROM: DOUG PILANT, GENERAL MANAGER DMZ{’
SUBJECT: STIF FORMULA FUND PLAN

Issue

Shall the TCTD Board of Directors adopt the STIF Advisory Committee’s proposed 2019
to 2021 STIF Plan?

Background and Findings

1.

With the passage of House Bill 2017, Keep Oregon Moving, the Oregon
Legislature established the Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF) to
expand public transportation services throughout Oregon.

The STIF Formula Fund revenues are distributed to Qualified Entities based on
payroll taxes collected within their respective boundaries, with a minimum amount
of $100,000 per year to each Qualified Entity.

STIF Formula funds may be used for public transportation purposes that support
the planning, deployment, operation and administration of STIF public
transportation services. These funds are not limited to, creating new transit
services, maintaining or continuing systems and services, creating plans to
improve service, and to meet federal grant match requirements to purchase buses
and other transit facilities such as bus stops and shelters.

Tillamook County Transportation District is Tillamook County’s designated
Qualified Entity.

The Oregon Department of Revenue estimates that TCTD will receive at least
$126,000 in FY 2018-19, see Attachment A. ODOT has requested that Qualified
Entities submit STIF Plan budgets up to 130% of what is expected. Table 1
provides an estimate of STIF Formula Funds the District can expect to receive.

Table 1. Estimated Tillamook County STIF Revenues

Estimate Estimate 130%
FY 2019 $126,000 $163,800
FY 2020 $287,000 $373,100
FY 2021 $325,000 $422,500
Total $738,000 $959,400

Qualified Entities are required to appoint an advisory committee that consists of
at least 5 members who represent the diverse interests of the Qualified Entities’
geographic service area. The advisory committee’s role is to review proposed



For the Board Meeting of October 18, 2018
Agenda Iltem # 10

projects, prioritize them, and make recommendations to their respective Qualified
Entities governing board of directors.

Qualified Entities are required to submit a STIF Plan. These Plans will be used
as the Qualified Entity's application to apply for Formula Funds. They must be
written to cover a span of at least 1 biennium and up to 2 biennia. The earliest
possible start date for the first STIF solicitation cycle is July 1, 2018 thru June
2021. STIF Plans may include projects that are from locally adopted plans.
Below is a list of the District’s 4 adopted plans that span the STIF planning cycle.

a. Adopted TCTD Plans:
i. Coordinated Human Services Public Transportation Plan
i. Intercity Transit Service Enhancement Plan
ii. ' TCTD Long-Range Transit Development Plan
iv. NW Connector Management Plan

Each of the District's adopted plans listed below contain relevant priorities and
service improvement strategies.

b. Coordinated Human Services Public Transportation Plan: The District’s
Coordinated Plan defines specific unmet needs and identifies strategies
that address unmet needs. These strategies include a bus pass program,
expanding fixed route and dial-a-ride services including the investment of
technology and the purchase of buses to facilitate the delivery of services.
A summary of unmet needs and strategies has been included as
Attachment B.

c. Intercity Transit Enhancement Plan: This planning process was conducted
to establish strategies to improve connections to the Amtrak/Greyhound
services in Portland and Salem. The Plan includes a strategy to add one
additional early AM trip to Portland. The Plan also includes recommended
strategies to improve connections in Tillamook and to destinations such as
Oceanside, Cannon Beach and Lincoln City. The Plan’s recommended
enhancements have been included as Attachment C.

d. NW Connector Management Plan: TCTD is a charter member of the NW
Oregon Transit Alliance (NWOTA). Other members include Sunset
Transportation Empire District (SETD), Columbia County Rider (CCR),
Lincoln County Transportation District (LCTD) and Benton Rural Transit
(BRT). NWOTA meets monthly to coordinate and market each agency’s
services as a regional transit service called the NW Connector. In FY
2015-16 NWQOTA conducted a planning process to establish a NW
Connector Management Plan that includes strategies to create a more
seamless experience for riders traveling throughout the NW Oregon
region. Once such strategy is for all agencies to operate service on the
same holidays, see Attachment D.



For the Board Meeting of October 18, 2018
Agenda ltem # 10

e. Long Range Transit Development Plan: In FY 2014-15, TCTD conducted
a planning process to establish a long-range transit development plan
(LRTDP). The District's LRTDP includes several service improvement
recommendations. The Plan’s Technical Memorandum #5: Future Service
Opportunities has been included as Attachment E. This memo includes
bus fleet replacement, bus stops, proposed service improvements to the
Port of Tillamook Bay, mid-day service to fill gaps on Routes 2 and 3,
additional TownLoop service and additional service to Pacific City via

Sand Lake Road.

In July and August of 2018, the TCTD Board of Directors formally appointed five
members to the District's STIF Advisory Committee. On October 3, 2018 the
Committee met to review the proposed projects and prioritized them in the order
of importance. The Committee’s recommended STIF project spending plan is
outlined in Table 1. A more detailed explanation of the projects has been

included as Attachment A.

Table 1: Advisory Committee recommended STIF Plan and Budget

Total by
FY 2019 | FY 2020 | FY 2021 Project
1 | Buses/Vans 97,586 87,000 40,500 | 225,086
2 | STIF Planning 25,000 0 25,000 45,000
3 | Holiday Service 15,000 16,000 17,000 63,000
4 | CARE Bus Pass 5,000 5,000 5,000 15,000
5 | FT DAR Driver Benefits 21,214 31,000 32,000 84,214
6 | Fixed Route Enhance 234100 | 303,000 | 527,100
| | Total 163,800 | 373,100 | 422,500| 959,400

a. Priority # 1: Fleet Replacement and Expansion: TCTD must purchase

expansion buses to expand service and must purchase replacement
buses to maintain existing services. TCTD has 2 grants to purchase 5
new buses and will be seeking grant funding to purchase additional
replacement and expansion buses and vans.

b. Priority # 2: STIF Planning: The TCTD Long Range Transit Development

Plan proposes several service enhancement alternatives. In 2019, up to
$25,000 of STIF monies will be used to conduct a detailed evaluation of
the service enhancement alternatives to select the alternative that
provides the greatest benefit to the District. The Advisory Committee
recommends setting aside an additional $25,000 in FY 2021 to develop a
STIF Plan for the next biennium.

c. Priority # 3: Holiday Service: Implement holiday service on the same

holidays as the other NWOTA partners. The NWOTA partners feel
strongly about operating on holidays to provide residents with




10.

For the Board Meeting of October 18, 2018
Agenda Item # 10

transportation to and from their jobs as well as transporting passengers
who are traveling throughout the region.

. Priority # 4: CARE Bus Program: Expand the CARE Discount Bus

Program by providing $5,000 per year to provide bus passes to low-
income families or individuals.

. Priority # 5: Enhance Dial-A-Ride Service: As STIF funding becomes

available, this project funds the benefits to create 2 fulltime driver positions
that will be assigned to the north and southern geographic areas of the
District.

Priority # 6: Enhance Fixed Route Service: As more STIF funds become
available in FY 2019-2020, this project will fund a service enhancement
that provides public transportation to the Port of Tillamook Bay (POTB). In
2019 the District will conduct a planning process to select what service
alternative will be in the District’s best interest.

In August 2018, ODOT issued its “Notice of Solicitation” to consider STIF
projects. This Notice closes on November 1, 2018. Pending approval of the
TCTD STIF Plan the District would begin receiving STIF Formula Funds in April

Recommendation

Staff recommends the TCTD Board of Directors adopt the STIF Advisory Committee’s
proposed 2019-21 STIF Plan and authorizes the General Manager to submit a STIF
Application on the District’s behalf.



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

ADOPTING THE 2019-2021 STIF PLAN )
AND AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL )
MANAGER TO SUBMIT APPLICATION )

)

FOR STIF FORMULA FUNDS RESOLUTION NO. 18-24

WHEREAS, with the passage of House Bill 2017 in 2017, the Oregon Legislature
established the Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF) to finance
investments and improvements in public transportation services, as described in ORS
184.751 et seq. and OAR Chapter 732, Division 040; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to ORS 184.758(1)(a), 90 percent of STIF moneys shall be
allocated to Qualified Entities in shares determined under ORS 184.758(2), known as
STIF Formula Funds under OAR 732-040-0005(30); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to ORS 184.758(4), to be eligible to receive STIF Formula
Funds, a Qualified Entity shall prepare and submit a public transportation improvement
plan, known as a STIF Plan under OAR 732-040-0005(32)," to the Oregon
Transportation Commission; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to ORS 184.758(5), such STIF Plan must include, at a
minimum, the following:

(a) For each proposed project, the amount of moneys from the percentage
distribution that would be allocated to the project to fund the following:

(A) Increased frequency of bus service schedules in communities with a
high percentage of low-income households;

(B) Procurement of buses that are powered by natural gas or electricity for
use in areas with a population of 200,000 or more;

(C) Implementation of programs to reduce fares for public transportation in
communities with a high percentage of low-income households;

(D) Expansion of bus routes and bus services to reach communities with a
high percentage of low-income households;

(E) Improvement in the frequency and reliability of service connections

between communities inside and outside of the qualified entity’s service
area; and

45039-27477 18-24 TCTD STIF Plan.DOCV10/12/2018



(F) Coordination between public transportation service providers to reduce
fragmentation in the provision of transportation services;

(b) For the current fiscal year, a summary of any plans and project proposals
approved by an advisory committee under ORS 184.761; and

(c) If a qualified entity was a recipient of a percentage distribution in the
preceding fiscal year, the amount of moneys received from the distribution that
were allocated to a project for the purposes described under paragraph (a) of this
subsection; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to ORS 184.761, an advisory committee appointed by the
governing body of each Qualified Entity shall advise and assist the governing body in
prioritizing plans or projects to be funded from the STIF Formula Funds; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to ORS 184.752(2)(c), Tillamook County Transportation
District (TCTD) is a Qualified Entity eligible for STIF Formula Funds on account of its
status as a transportation district organized under ORS 267.510 to 267.650; and

WHEREAS, TCTD has developed a STIF Plan known as the 2019-2021 STIF
Plan, attached hereto as Exhibit A, which proposes the use of STIF Formula Funds for
public transportation projects in fiscal years 2019, 2020, and 2021; and

WHEREAS, the 2019-2021 STIF Plan contains the elements required by ORS
184.758(5); and

WHEREAS, the TCTD STIF Advisory Committee, duly appointed by the TCTD
Board of Directors, has advised and assisted TCTD in prioritizing plans and projects to
be funded from STIF Formula Funds; and

WHEREAS, the 2019-2021 STIF Plan includes projects previously identified in
TCTD’s other local transportation plans, progress on which has been contingent on the
receipt of additional funding; and

WHEREAS, the 2019-2021 STIF Plan seeks up to $949,500 of newly available
STIF Formula Funds; and

WHEREAS, the TCTD Board of Directors has considered the 2019-2021 STIF
Plan, and finds it in the best interest of the District to adopt it.

45039-27477 18-24 TCTD STIF Plan.DOCV10/12/2018



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation
District Board of Directors that:

the Board adopts the 2019-2021 STIF Plan, and authorizes the General Manager
to submit TCTD’s application for STIF Formula Funds, together with all required
documentation, to the Oregon Department of Transportation.

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 18" day of October 2018.

ATTEST:

By: By:
Judy Riggs, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

45039-27477 18-24 TCTD STIF Plan.DOCV10/12/2018



EXHIBIT A

2019-2021 STIF PLAN

45039-27477 18-24 TCTD STIF Plan.DOCV10/12/2018



STIF Plan Budget

Total by

FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021 Project
Buses/Vans 97,586 87,000 40,500 225,086
STIF Planning 25,000 0 25,000 50,000
Holiday Service 15,000 16,000 17,000 48,000
CARE Bus Passes 5,000 5,000 5,000 15,000
Dial-A-Ride 21,214 31,000 32,000 84,214
Service Enhancement 234,100 303,000 537,100
Total 163,800 373,100 422,500 959,400




TCTD STIF PLAN & BUDGET

For the Board Meeting of October 18, 2018

Agenda ltem # 10

Priority # 1: Fleet Replacement and Expansion: TCTD must purchase

replacement buses to maintain existing services. The District must also

purchase expansion buses before introducing new services. TCTD has a grant
to purchase 4 replacement buses and another grant to purchase 1 expansion

replacement buses to maintain existing services. The District must also

purchase expansion buses before introducing new services. TCTD has a grant
to purchase 4 replacement buses and another grant to purchase 1 expansion
bus. Table 2 provides an overview of the District’s vehicle replacement plan
through FY 2021. Staff recommends the District allocate $97,586 in STIF funds

in 2019 to provide the local match to purchase these 5 buses. Staff also

recommends allocating $90,000 in FY 2020 to purchase 2 replacement buses
and 1 expansion bus, and 3 replacement vans. Finally, staff recommends
allocating $40,500 to purchase a replacement dial-a-ride van and 1 expansion

bus.

Table 2: TCTD Vehicle Purchase Plan

Vehicle Project | Grant

Type/# Cost | Amount | FY 2019 | FY 2020 | FY 2021
Replacement | Cat B/2 370,000 | 332,001 37,999
Replacement | Cat C/2 310,000 | 278,163 | 31,837
Expansion Cat C/1 185,000 | 157,250 | 27,750
Replacement | Cat B/1 190,000 | 161,500 28,500
Expansion Cat C/1 185,000 | 157,250 27,750
Replacement | Cat E/3 225,000 | 191,250 33,750
Replacement | Cat D/1 80,000 | 68,000 12,000
Expansion Cat B/1 190,000 | 161,500 28,500
Total 97,686 | 90,000 | 40,500

Priority #2: STIF Service Improvement Plan: Tillamook County has a very small
employment base when compared to other geographic areas of Oregon. As a
result, TCTD must invest its STIF monies into service enhancements that
generate a strong ridership growth to remain competitive for the ODOT Small
City Rural Assistance grant program. Staff recommends allocating STIF monies
to conduct an analysis on which service improvements to implement in 2020-
2021.

Priority # 3: NW Connector Service Enhancement: TCTD does not operate on
the same holidays its NWOTA partners. The NW Connector Management Plan’s
goal is to for all partners to operate on the same holidays so that all riders have a
seamless experience when throughout the region. Table 3 provides an overview
of the holidays that NWOTA Partners do not operate. For example, both Benton
and Lincoln Counties operate all holidays except Thanksgiving and Christmas.
Table 3 illustrates the 6 holidays TCTD does not operate. The majority of




For the Board Meeting of October 18, 2018
Agenda ltem # 10

NWOTA partners believe operating on these holidays will ensure people relying
upon public transportation have transportation to and from their jobs. Staff
recommends TCTD use up to $15,000 STIF monies to expand the District's
holiday service by operating on all holidays except Thanksgiving, Christmas and
New Years Day.

Table 3: NW Connector Holiday Service by NWOTA Members

New Memorial | Independ | Labor Thanks- Christ-
Years ence giving mas
TCTD X X X X X X
SETD X X X
CCR X X X
LCT X X X
BRT X X | X

Priority # 4: Reduced Fare to Low Income Families: Qualified Entities may use
STIF Formula money to support fare reduction programs that benefit low income
families or individuals. The Coordinated Human Services Plan identifies reduced
fare as a strategy to make public transportation accessible to low income
families, individuals or workers. Staff recommends expanding the Care Discount
Bus Program to include up to $5,000 per year to provide bus passes to low
income families or individuals.

Priority # 5: Service Improvement Plan: The TCTD Long Range Transit
Development Plan (LRTDP) and the TCTD Coordinated Human Services Plan
includes service improvement strategies that can be implemented as STIF
funding becomes available. The STIF funds could be used to fund on of the
following or combination of recommended service improvements outlined in
Table 4.

a. Task 1: Dial-A-Ride Service Enhancement: TCTD has not been able to
sustain its dial-a-ride driver workforce. Historically, TCTD volunteers
provided dial-a-ride transportation services in the rural northern and
southern geographic areas of Tillamook County. There is significant
demand for dial-a-ride service in both of these areas. TCTD does provide
non-emergency medical transportation services within these areas with
part-time and substitute drivers. The District's investment in new
scheduling and dispatching technology has created the opportunity for
TCTD to adopt a base plus mileage fare policy implement a county-wide
dial-a-ride service. Staff recommends using STIF formula funds to pay the
benefits for 2 fulltime positions while the District uses Medicaid and fare
revenue to fund the driver wages and vehicle expenses.

b. Task 2: Fixed Route Service Improvement Opportunities: Allocate up to
$275,000 to implement fixed route service improvements that expands
service to the Port of Tillamook Bay (POTB). This could be accomplished




For the Board Meeting of October 18, 2018
Agenda ltem # 10

by implementing the District's LRTDP Route 1 Alternative B or the Route 4

Alternative B. Route 1 could be structured to provide hourly service to the
POTB while a new Route 4B could be structured to serve the POTB on
both the inbound and outbound trips. The costs for both of these service
enhancements will be approximately the same and would only become
possible if adequate STIF formula funds materialize.

Table 4: Service Improvement Opportunities

Route Alternative New Area Served Annual
Total

Dial-A-Ride | Coordinated Plan | Create 2 full time positions $30,000
Route 1 Alternative A None — 2 X's frequency $280,000
Route 1 Alternative B Reverse route and Serve POTB | $280,000
Route 2/3 Alternative A Fill mid-day service gaps $300,000
Route 2/3 Alternative B Implemented 1-2-2018 -0-
Route 4 Alternative A Serve POTB -0-
Route 4 Alternative B Sand Lake Rd/Tier Del Mar $275,000
Route 4 Alternative Ca Serve POTB -0-
Route 4 Alternative Cb Serve POTB -0-
Route 4 Alternative Cc None — Additional trip to LC $30,000
Route 4 Alternative D None — 2 X's frequency $300,000 |




NELSON
NYGAARD

MEMORANDUM

To: Doug Pilant, TCTD

From:  Oren Eshel and Jamey Dempster, Nelson\Nygaard
Date: October 1, 2018

Subject: Demand-Response Fare Policy Review and Analysis

INTRODUCTION

Background

Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD) currently provides general public demand-
response or Dial-A-Ride (DAR) service within the following three zones in Tillamook County (see
Figure 4 for a general illustration of these zones).

= Zone 1: Central County — Hobsonville Point (S. of Garibaldi) to Sand Lake Road (N. of
Hemlock)

= Zone 2: North County — Clatsop County Line to Hobsonville Point (S. of Garibaldi)
*  Zone 3: South County - Sand Lake Road to Lincoln County Line

In Central County, general public demand-response service is provided by TCTD drivers. In North
and South County, trips have historically been fulfilled by volunteers. TCTD has not been able to
sustain its volunteer workforce and must seek other strategies to provide Tillamook County
residents living in the North and South Zones with dial-a-ride services.

TCTD also provides non-emergency medical transportation (NEMT) trips to Medicaid-eligible
clients through the NW Rides Brokerage. TCTD is reimbursed for the cost of providing these trips
through a negotiated rate structure. NEMT trips occur within Tillamook County and between the
county and Clatsop County, Lincoln County, and the Portland area. NW Rides trips make up 98%
of the intra-county demand-response trips that cross the existing fare zones and 38% of the intra-
county demand-response trips that occur within each zone. NEMT trips are shown in Figure 4.

A very small number of general public demand-response trips are provided across zone
boundaries (cross-zone)—just eight in May 2018. Ridership trends for NEMT trips indicate that
there is likely significant latent demand among the general public for travel across the existing
demand-response zone boundaries.

The demand-response service program annual operating budget is approxdmately $900,000, with
operating revenues (fares and other per-trip reimbursements) of about $542,000 per year, or .
59%. TCTD covers the remaining costs through a mix of local funds, and state and federal funding
programs.

621 SW MORRISON ST, SUITE 1250  PORTLAND, OR 97205  503-227-3443  FAX 503-228-2320
www.neliomygaard.com



Pemand-Response Fare Policy Review and Analysis
Tillamook County Transportation District

Purpose of Fare Policy Analysis

TCTD is looking to develop a fare policy to better reflect the cost of providing a broad range of
demand-response trips across Tillamook County and allow it to transition away from demand-
response zones to a countywide Dial-A-Ride system. This updated DAR policy would support the
following strategies articulated in TCTD’s Coordinated Public Transit-Human Services

Transportation Plan:

Increase DAR services (p. 61)

Market NW Rides as a county-wide transportation service and Dial-A- Ride services as a
single zone system to eliminate customer confusion. (p. 61)

Expand NW Rides to accommodate private pay clients in addition to Medicaid clients. (p.
61)

Simplify fare structure. Evaluate a zone fare structure. (p. 65)

This analysis is intended to help TCTD understand the financial feasibility of modifying its fare
policies to support greater flexibility in delivering DAR trips. It is organized into the following
sections:

Existing Demand-Response Fare Policy Review
Existing Demand-Response Trip Analysis
Potential Demand-Response Fare Models (Peers)
Fare Policy Analysis

Conclusions

! http://www.nworegontransit.org/wp-content /uploads /2017 /05 /ctp_tcid 201461021 .pdf

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 2



Tiamook County Transportation District

Demand-Response Fare Policy Review and Analysis

EXISTING TCTD DEMAND-RESPONSIVE FARES AND POLICY

Figure 1 summarizes TCTD’s existing demand-response fare and reimbursement types:

* Private - within existing zones. Trips are paid out-of-pocket by individuals.

= Private - across existing zones. Trips are paid out-of-pocket by individuals.

= Transfer. A demand-response trip is used to access fixed-route service; these are the
same cost as a private DAR trip within zones.

= Helping Hands. This social service organization reimburses TCTD for shuttle trips
between the transit center in Tillamook and the Helping Hands facility at the Port of

Tillamook Bay.

= NW Rides. This organization brokers NEMT rides and reimburses TCTD for trips on a

per ride basis.

Figure 1 TCTD Demand Response Fare Types

Type/ Funding Source |

Private (within fare
zones)

= Includes full adult fare ($3), seniors (60+) or

Description

people with a disability ($1.50), and youth
($1.50)

Analysis Questions

= Analyze impact of fare policy
changes on revenues

Private (across existing
fare zones)

$12.50 flat fare on a case-by-case basis, not
differentiated between adult and any other
fare category.

Very few trips are currently provided.

= Analyze impact of fare policy
changes on potential costs and
required subsidy

Transfer

Transfer to/from fixed-route service. No
charge for a DAR trip that is used to connect
to/from a fixed-route.

Helping Hands

2x/day shuttle to Port of Tillamook Bay.
TCTD is reimbursed $25 / trip, or $50/day

First 10 miles free. NW Rides brokerage billed
for trip with longest mileage

Monday through Friday
NW Rides $25/pickup if ambulatory. $30 ifin a v Use trip patterns as basis for
wheelchair assessing fare models for private

trips

Nefson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 3




Demund-Response Fare Policy Review and Analysis
Tillamook County Transpartation District

Figure 2 compares TCTD fares to other agencies.

Figure 2 Comparison of TCTD Fares to Other Agencies

Local Fixed-Route Discounted Fare I intercity Service l ADA | Dial-A-Ride
Single Ridef

Tillamaok County Transp. District (TCTD) ! $1.50 $1.50 $40 - $30 | $1.50-$6.00 - - $1.50 - $3.00 -
Basin Transit Service 2 $1.50 $3.00 $54 $0.75 $27 - - - $3.00 -
Cascades East Transit (CET) 3 $1.50 $2.50 $30 $0.75 $15 $3.75 $6.25 $100 $2.50 =
Clallam Transit System ¢ $1.00 $3.00 336 $0.50 $18 $1.50 $3.00 $54 $2.00
Lincoln County Transp. Service District § $1.00 - - - - $7.00 - - $1.00 -
Napa Valley Transp. Authority & $1.60 $6.50 $53 $0.80 $14 | $3.25-$5.50 | $6.50 | $65-$120 | $3.20- $6.40 -
Sunset Empire Transp. District (SETD) 7 $1.00 $3.00 $30 $1.00 $20 | $5.00-$8.00 . - $2.00
Yamhill County (YCTA)® $1.25 $2.50 $35 - - $1.25 $2.50 $35 $1.75 $40

Motes: (1} TCTD Huew. nwioregontransit ora/passes-tetd/ and hifp:/wwrw nworegontransit org/diakavide-otdl, TCTD charges $15 for 2 one-way trip to Portland, and §20 for a round trip, Diel-A-Ridz trips zre

53.00 or $1.50 for seniors or paople with a disability. A 10-ride Dial-A-Ridz punch card is available for $30 or $15, {2] Basin Transit, htto Iwwrw basintransi comvroutestates shiml (3] CET

hipicascadeseastiransit comfares. Mulfi-zone system for intercity fares. 4] Cla¥am Transit, hitg-/Awww.clallamiransit com/Fares-Passes, 43,75 per mile far Diak-A-Ride trips Bayond a ¥-mile distance from fixed-raute
service: {5] Lincoin Caunty, $1 per zane for intercity routes, with 9 zones, hifo-{iwww co lincoln.orus/transitip ace/fare-schediie - (5] Nepa Valley, hito fAwww ridethevine com/fares-passes. (7} SETD,

htip:ffarwrw. nworeqoniransit.orghwp-contentiuploads/201 BI06F are-Policv-Outraach.odf, SETD revised fares an 7/ 12018, lowiering lacal day passes from $5.00 to $3.00 and monthly passes fram 345 1o $30. Genera}

public Diai-A-Ride one-way fare is $8.00 far 0-10 miles and 312.00 for 11-20 mites.

Netson\Nygaard Consulting Assaciates Inc. | 4



Demand-Response Fare Policy Review and Analysis
Tiitamook County Transportation District

EXISTING DEMAND-RESPONSE TRIP ANALYSIS —

The analysis in this section is based on data for demand-response trips that TCTD exported from its
EcoLane software for May 2018. Trip endpoints were geocoded and displayed on an interactive map,
which can be accessed at https://transportation-surveys.shinyapps.io/tillamook od/.

Trip Purpose

Figure 3 lists demand-response trips by funding category and trip purpose.

Figure 3 Demand-Response Trips by Funding Category and Trip Purpose, May 2018

! Private Trips ‘ NW Rides Trips Transfer Trips
Trip Purpose
% of trips ‘ Count % of trips % of trips | Count % of trips
Physical 597 71% 429 38% 32 100% 1,058 52%
Mental 243 29% 67 6% 0 0% 310 15%
Dental 4 0% 155 14% 0 0% 159 8%
Pharmacy 0 0% 61 5% 0 0% 61 3%
Dialysis 0 0% 36 3% 0 0% 36 2%
Methadone 0 0% 45 4% 0 0% 45 2%
Medical 0 0% 98 9% 0 0% 98 5%
Oncology 0 0% 64 6% 0 0% 64 3%
Bid 0 0% 61 5% 0 0% 61 3%
Therapy 0 0% 63 6% 0 0% 63 3%
Optometrist 0 0% 39 3% 0 0% 39 2%
General 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 41 2% |
Total 844 100% 1,118 100% 32 100% 2,035 100% ]

Note: Total trips includes 41 Helping Hands trips, which are classified as General.

NefsomMygaard Consulting Associatae Inc. | 5



DeMan&-Response Eare Policy Review and Analysis
Tillamook County Transpertation District

Travel Patierns

Figure 1 shows that most private (non-Medicaid) DAR trips are within zones, with the strongest intra-
zone demand in Central County, followed by South County. The few private trips that crossed zones were
between North and Central County.

Figure 4 Existing Demand-Response Zones and Non-Medicaid Dial-A-Ride Trips, May 2018

Satirce: Ecolane Data, May 2018

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 6




Demand-Response Fure Policy Review and Analysis
Tiltamook County Transportation District

Figure 5 shows NW Rides trips, for which TCTD is reimbursed on a per trip basis. These trips are both
within and between TCTD’s existing demand-response zones in Tillamook County, and extend to Lincoln
County, Clatsop County, and the Portland area (Washington and Multnomah Counties).

Figure 5 NW Rides (Medicaid) Demand-Response Trips, May 2018

1 =) Catrlamat
| L TASTgRIA '
PR 1 LONGVIEW
f 4T Clatsbarbs h
v (] :
b el !
5 ! :
! r."' S b
.:} o % { VWenediand
; .". Vs?mm.‘;a Eaint HI‘%}"*“‘
Pk A
P Ridgefisid
AT Ry

VANGOUVER

y .

Meddtamaiila

Woeedhurm

ez
SALEM
L ST Gallag
Source! EcoLane Data, May 2018 :

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates inc. | 7



ﬁ-manﬂe‘sp‘ﬁsg#me Pelicy Review and Analysis
Tilamaok Caunty Transportation District

Figure 6 illustrates transfer trips, where passengers ride DAR for access between a TCTD fixed-route service bus stop and their origin or
destination. These trips were only provided in North and Central County based on the May 2018 data that was analyzed.

Figure 6 Existing Fare Zones and Dial-A-Ride to Fixed-Route Transfer Trips, May 2018
North County Central County

Source. EcoLane Data, May 2018,

Nefson\Nygaard Cansulling Associates Inc. | 8




Demand-Response Fare Policy Review and Analysis
Tillamook County Transpartation District

Travel Distances

Figure 7 summarizes the distance of different types of demand-response trips provided by TCTD.
Understanding the length of trips is useful is analyzing alternative fare structures, including those where a
portion of the fare is based on the distance traveled.

»  Looking at all DAR trips, the majority are short (nearly 2/3 are less than 10 miles); approximately
11% are 50 miles or more, all of which are NW Rides trips.

= Among cross-zone trips within Tillamook County, just 1% of trips are less than 10 miles,
approximately half are between 10 and 20 miles, and slightly less than half are between 20 and 35
miles. Nearly all cross-zone trips are currently NEMT trips.

n  Among intra-zone trips, most are short (over 70% are less than five miles), approximately 22%
are between five and 10 miles, and 6% are longer than 10 miles.

= Transfers to fixed-route are mostly less than five miles, and all are less than 10 miles

Figure 7 Demand-Response Trips within Tillamook County by Distance, May 2018

All Cross- NW Rides NW Rides

Zone Trips All Intra-Zone Cross-Zone Cross-Zone
within Trips within Trips within Trips within
Titlamook Tillamook Tillamook Tillamook Transfers to

All DAR Trips County County County County Fixed-Route.

Caeoy | £ | fomi | P | Tow | * | T | * | Tow | * | Tow | *| Tow
0-<2.5 miles 635 | 30.2% 0 0.0% 633 43.3% 0 0.0% 303 546% | 3 | 94%
2.5-<5 miles 416 | 19.8% 0 0.0% 414 28.3% 0 0.0% 1" 211% | 21 | 65.6%
5-<10 miles 329 | 15.6% 4 1.1% 323 221% 4 1.2% 118 21.3% | 8 | 25.0%
10-<15miles | 169 8.0% 92 | 26.2% 77 5.3% 92 | 26.8% 17 31% 0 | 0.0%
15-<20 miles | 107 5.1% 86 | 24.5% 16 1.1% 84 | 24.5% 0 0.0% 0 | 0.0%
20-<25 miles 39 1.9% 39 | 11.1% 0 0.0% 34 9.9% 0 0.0% 0 | 00%
25-<30 miles | 135 6.4% 122 | 34.8% 0 0.0% 121 | 35.3% 0 0.0% 0 | 0.0%
30-<35 miles 8 0.4% 8 23% 0 0.0% 8 2.3% 0 0.0% 0 | 0.0%
35-<50 miles 30 1.4% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 | 0.0%
50+ miles 235 | 11.2% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 | 0.0%
Total 2,103 | 100% | 351 | 100% | 1,463 | 100% | 343 | 100% 585 100% | 32 | 100%

Note: Based on diract distance. Source: EcoLane Data, May 2018.

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 9



Bemand-Response Fare Palicy Review and Analysis
Tillamook County Transportation District

Origin-Destination Paiterns

Figure 8 and Figure 9 summarize overall demand-responsive travel patterns provided by TCTD, including
both private and NW Rides trips. Looking at Figure 9, over half of trips are within Central County.
Approximately 30% of trips are either within North County or between North County and Central County.

Figure 8 Overall Demand-Response Travel Patterns, # of Trips, May 2018

2 uTlc No “ a2tS0D g aio 0 N

§ one £ 2 0 D 0 D * O 0

Central 1,066 173 19 25 25 38 2 1,348
North 141 315 0 6 18 6 0 486
South 18 0 82 22 0 4 2 128
Multnomah County 22 6 22 0 0 0 0 50
Clatsop County 18 18 2 0 2 0 0 40
Washington County 35 4 3 0 0 2 0 44
Lincoln County 2 0 3 0 0 0 0 5
Trips From 1,302 516 131 53 45 50 4 2,101

Figure 9 Overall Demand-Response Travel Patterns, % of Trips, May 2018

To Zone » Multriomah | Clatsop | Washington Lincoln
W From Zone Central | North | South County | County | County County
Central 52% 8% 1% 0% . 1% 2% 0% 65%
North 7% 15% 0% 0% 1% 0% 0% 23%
South 1% 0% 4% 0% 0% 0% 0% 5%
Multnomah County 1% 0% 1% 0% 0% 0% 0% 2%
Clatsop County 1% 1% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 2%
Washington County 2% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 2%
Lincoln County 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Trips From 64% 25% 6% 0% 2% 2% 0% 100%

Figure 10 provides travel patterns for private trips, both number (#) and percentage (%). Nearly three-
quarters of trips are within Central County, 21% are within North County, and just 6% are in South
County. Existing private trips between these zones are very small due to limited existing capacity to offer
these trips; based on the demand for Medicaid trips, it is likely not due to lack of demand.

Figure 10 Private Demand-Response Travel Patterns, # and % of Trips, May 2018

# of Trips % of Trips

' S il =
ghes zon:°-z°"e')' Central | North | South T._';gs : Cegtral _"'thh South T?gs
Central 604 4 0 608 2% 0% 0% 72%
North 4 178 0 182 0% 21% 0% 22%
South 0 0 52 52 0% 0% 6% 6%
Multnomah County 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0% 0%
Trips From | 608 182 52 842 72% 22% 6% 100%

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Assaciates Inc. | 10



Demand-Response Fare Policy Review and Analysis
Tiltarmook County Transportation Qistrict

POTENTIAL DEMAND-RESPONSE FARE MODELS

Peer Examples

Figure 11 summarizes a review of other transit districts/agencies that offer general public demand-
response service. This review was conducted to inform potential fare models that TCTD can use in
considering whether to update its fare policy. The potential fare models from these examples can be
summarized in three categories:

= Flat multi-zone demand-responsive fare, e.g., existing TCTD case-by-case policy with
$12.50 flat charge for cross-zone trips

= Base pickup fee with per-mile charge, beyond the number of miles included with the base
fare. This is the most typical model for transit agencies reviewed for this study, with multiple
variations on cost and base distance included.

= Fixed-route feeder, where the passenger uses demand-response service to access a fixed-route,
which serves most of the trip distance.

Figure 11

Review of Demand-Response Service Models

Summary of General

Public Demand-
Response Fare

Peer Agency
TCTD (Existing)

Demand-Response Service/Fare Model

General public dial-a-ride, three fare zones but primarily only intra-zone.
$3 one-way fare, any distance in zone. Discounted fare of $1.50.
$12.50 minimum fare for cross-zone trip on case-by-case basis.

Madel(s)

Flat fare (limited
availability)
Transfer to fixed-route

Cascades East
Transit

General public Dial-A-Ride within small cities (ADA paratransit enly in
Bend), with some flex-routes introduced/under consideration in small
cities.

Coordinated transfers between general public Dial-A-Ride in small cities
and intercity routes.

Multi-zone fare system for intercity trips.

$6.25 multizone day pass, discounted to $5 for seniors and persons with
disabilities

Transfer to fixed-route

Sunset Empire
Transportation District
(SETD)

General public Dial-A-Ride within two service areas

$8 base one-way fare (0-10 miles); this works out to $1.25 per mile for a
10 mlie trip

Additional $4 one-way fare beyond base service area (11-20 miles); this
works out to 80 cents per mile for a 15-mile trip and 60 cents per mile for a
20-mile trip.

Base fare plus
additional charge
based on distance

Clallam Transit (WA)

General public Dial-A-Ride, in rural areas north of Sequim (north of

Highway 101 from the Old Olympic Highway intersection east to Blake

Avenue in Sequim; this is approximately a 10-mile distance). Transfers to

fixed-route may be required,

— $2 regular fare or $1.50 for youth, seniors, and persons with disabiliies;
this is consider a $1 or $0.50 base fare plus a $1 surcharge.

For ADA Paratransit service, additional $3.75 per mile outside ¥%-mile

fixed-route service area

Base fare for general
public within limited
zone

Distance-based for
ADA Paratransit
beyond ¥-mile service
area

Meison\Nygaard Consulting Associates inc. | 11




Peer Agency

Demand-Response Fare Policy Review and Analysis
Tillamook County Transportation District

Demand-Response Service/Fare Model

Summary of General
Public Demand-
Response Fare

Model(s)

Ride in Kane, Kane
County, IL

= General public Dial-A-Ride

= $4 base one-way fare (0-10 milgs)

= +$1.50 per mile beyand

= Average $7.50 per trip on fixed route

= Average $4.22 per mile on fixed route (bus and taxi providers)

= The fixed, or per-trip, cost is based on regional taxi flag-pull costs, i.e.,
base cost on the meter at start.

* Number of trips may be limited based on funding availability (County and
local municipality contributions)

= Base fare plus
additional charge
based on distance

RideKC Freedom,
Kansas City, MO

v General public Dial-A-Ride

= $5 base (0-5 miles)

= Additional $2 per mite beyond

= Monthly cap of 60 subsidized one-way trips

= Base fare plus
additional charge
based on distance

OCTA Access,
Orange County, CA

= General public taxi vouchers
v $3.60 base (0-5 miles)
= Any additional costs beyond five miles are paid by customer

= Base fare plus
additional charge
based on distance

Valley Metro,
Phoenix, AZ

Service contract to reimburse taxi providers (not fares)
= $2.73 per mile ( no base charge) - OR -
= $4.88 base (0 miles) + $2.44 per mile

= Accessible vans have a higher base charge. (Note: these are not the fares
to the customer)

N/A

TNC/Taxi Subsidy Lyft: N/A
Case Study » $4 minimum
= $0.45 base charge + $0.95 per mile + $0.11 per minute
= Example 2-mile trip = $4.
Taxi Cab (example)
® No minimum.
= $2.25 for a flag drop + $2.20 per mile
= Example 2 mile trip = $6.65
= Aflat subsidy of $2.50 for these services would leave the user paying
between $1.50 and $4.15. A percent subsidy of 50% up to $4 would leave
the user paying between $2 and.$3.30
Links:

«  hitp./Awww.nworegontransit.org/dial-a-ride-tetd/

»  httpJicascadeseastiransit.com/fares/; http://cascadeseasttransit.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/07/ApoovedRecreationFare-

NotificationtoRiders.pdf

o hitp./lweew. iworegontransit.org/ideassist-dial-a-ride-setd/

o  hitp://www.clallamiransit.com/Fares-Passes

e http/iridekc.ora/mobility-services/rideke-freedom-ondemand

»  hitps:/www.octa.net/Getting-Around/Bus/Access-Service/Overview!

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 12




Demand-Respense Fare Policy Review and Analysis
Tiliamoek County Transportation District

FARE POLICY ANALYSIS

This section describes analysis of fare models for TCTD’s countywide DAR service that would replace the
existing zones. The existing zones generally impose somewhat arbitrary boundaries on travel that don’t
reflect actual trips and can inequitably spread the trip costs across customers. The analysis estimates the
customer fare, farebox recovery, and TCTD subsidy required for sample trips, existing trips, and
conceptual resource scenarios (e.g., number of vehicle-hours provided to expand DAR service).

Potential Fare Models

Several potential fare options were tested using sample trips of 10, 15, and 25 miles. Based on the peer
review summarized in the previous section and initial review with TCTD, the models tested were:

= Existing: Flat, multi-zone fare of $12.50 (no limit on distance). This is the existing fare

= Scenarios 1-4: Base charge, including a 5 or 10 mile distance, and an additional
$0.50 or $1.00 cost per mile beyond the base miles. In order to replace zones without
impacting short demand-response trip costs, the base charge should cover most demand-
response trips within the existing zones.

— Base fare: TCTD has plans to move from the current general public DAR fare of $3 to a fare
of $4, and from a discounted fare of $1.50 for youth, seniors, and persons with disabilities to
a discounted fare of $2. Since the majority of existing private Dial-A-Ride passengers pay a
discounted fare, this analysis assumes a $2 fare. (The average fare would be approximately
$2.25, based on 12% of existing private demand-response trips paying the full fare.)

- Distance included with base fare: 5 and 10 mile variations were tested; as described in
Figure 7 (above) these would cover most of the existing Dial-A-Ride trips

-~ Additional fare per mile: $0.50 and $1.00 variations were tested. $0.50 is roughly
comparable or slightly lower than the mileage-based TCTD cost to operate demand-response
service, although TCTD is currently refining its cost allocation, which may change this value.
These values represent endpoints of a range, and the fare could be set within this range based
on financial and other considerations.

= Fixed-route feeder: an alternative approach to serving long-distance trips is to use DAR to
bring people to fixed-route service. This is particularly effective for long-distance trips and
leverages existing fixed-route bus service. Under current TCTD policy, passengers pay the fixed-
route fare, but are not charged an additional DAR fare for trips that provide access to/from a
fixed-route (as an incentive to use the fixed-route system, which has a lower cost per trip for
TCTD than demand-response service). In May 2018, there were 32 such trips. This is not analyzed
as an option but it can complement potential fare policy changes for some trips.

Analysis of Sample Trips
Figure 12 summarizes the fare paid by the passenger for each of the sample trips under each scenario:

= For arelatively short trip of 10 miles (e.g., Garibaldi-Tillamook), the passenger would pay just
the base fare (e.g., $2) under Options 1 and 2, which include 10 miles in the base fare. Under
Options 3 and 4, only five miles are included, so the passenger would pay $4.50 or $7.00,
respectively. In all cases, the fare would be lower than the existing $12.50 fare, and is likely more
equitable given that this trip is similar or slightly longer than the longest possible current intra-
zone trips.

NelsoniNygaard Constlting Associates Inc. | 13



Demand-Response Fare Policy Review and Analysis
Titamook County Transportation District

= For a moderate-distance 15-mile trip (e.g., Rockaway Beach-Tillamook), the passenger would
pay between $4.90 and $7.40 with a $0.50 charge per mile (scenarios 1 and 2). With a $1 charge
per mile, the cost would be $7.80 to $12.80 (scenarios 3 and 4). The difference between each
range is whether 5 or 10 miles are included in the base fare. Options 1-3 have a lower fare than
existing, while Option 4 is only slightly higher than the existing $12.50 fare.

= Foralonger 25-mile trip (e.g., Manzanita-Tillamook), the passenger would pay between $10.80
and $13.30 with a $0.50 charge per mile (Options 1 and 2). With a $1 charge per mile, the cost
would be $19.60 to $24.60 (Options 3 and 4). Similar to the 15-mile sample trip, the difference
between each range is whether 5 or 10 miles are included in the base fare. Options 1-3 have a
lower fare than existing, while Option 4 is nearly equal.

Figure 12 also shows the TCTD subsidy (operating costs after fares or other reimbursements) for the
sample trips under each option. Costs were estimated treating each trip as an individual trip. (In practice,
TCTD schedules trips so that vehicles are shared by multiple passengers when possible, so actual total
costs should be somewhat lower.) The cost recovery is the most consistent with Option 2 (5 miles included
with $0.50 fare per mile), but with Options 1, 2, and 3 minimize the deviation between shorter and longer
trips, particularly compared to the existing $12.50 flat fare where shorter trips have a higher cost to the
passenger.

Figure 12 Fare Scenarios and Estimated Farebox Recovery for Sample Trips

Length Existing Fare

Option 2 l Option 3

Sample Trips {miles) Metric Blodel Option 1 Option 4
$2 base, 10 miles $2 base, 5 miles $2 base, 10 miles $2 base, 5 miles
Fare Opfion Description $12.50 Flat Fare included, $0.50 per included, $0.50 per included, $1.00 per | included, $1.00 per
additional mile additonal mile additional mile addiional mile
Base Fare $12.50 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00
Miles Included in Base Fare No Limiit 10 5
Additional Fare per Mile $0.00 $1.00 $1.00
- T B

Garibaldi-Tillamook 10 2200 =800

% Subsidy L80% | [ e
Rockaway Beach- . Fae [ 81250 || L s7e0 | ss0
Tillamook %Subsidy | 57% 83% | 3% | . 58%
Manzanita-Tillamook 28 i = e : ~

% Subsidy % Lk % 62 54%

Notes: Based on estimated costs of approximately: Garibaldi-Tillamook - $19 (20 minutes, 10 miles), Rockaway Beach-Tillamook - $29 (30
minutes, 15.8 miles), and Manzanita - Tillamook (53 minutes, 27.6 miles). Costs were estimated using both a fully allocated cost of $58 per
hour, and using costs of $39.71 per hour and $0.60 per mile (2016, escalated to 2018 dollars at 3% annually).

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 14



Demand-Response Fare Policy Review and Analysis
Tillamook County Transportation District

Analysis of Existing Trips

This section looks at TCTD’s existing demand-response trips from May 2018 and compares fare revenues
under Options 1-4 to the current fare policy. Costs are estimated for trips individually, and do not account
for shared trips.

Private Cross-Zone Trips

Figure 13 considers the existing private (non-NW Rides) cross-zone trips that TCTD provided in May
2018. Fare revenues were $100 (26% of the cost) with the $12.50 flat fare. Options 1 and 2 would recover
a lower percentage of the cost (higher TCTD subsidy required), while Options 3 and 4 would recover a
higher share of the cost (lower subsidy required). Option 3 ($1 per-mile beyond 10 miles) comes closest to
matching the existing fare revenues.

Figure 13 Fare Revenue and TCTD Subsidy for Existing Private Cross-Zone Dial-A-Ride Trips, May 2018
Option 1
§2base 10 mies S2base Smiles _ _ '
Fare Scenario| $1250FiatFae | inckded $050per |  included $0.50 per si:’_:’" 1om$. s;g;a 5$?ﬁ;"gﬁ -
additonal mile addiicnal mile e e '
Fare Revenue ‘! _$100 R $63 E@ _$110 | ﬁj
TCTD Cost $391 $391 $391 $391 $391
% Subsidy 74% 84% 79% 72% 82%

Private Trips within Existing Zones

In considering whether to adopt a distance-based demand-response fare policy, TCTD should consider
impacts on private demand-response trips between five and ten miles in length. Based on TCTD EcoLane
data from May 2018, there were 217 such trips. Figure 14 compares the average fare for these trips under
the existing fare policy ($3 regular fare, $1.50 discounted) to Options 1-4. A portion of the increase is
based on the change from a $3 to a $4 regular fare and from a $1.50 to $2.00 discounted fare —
approximately 34% compared to Options 1 and 3. In the two options where only five miles are included in
the base fare, the average fare increases by an additional 60 cents in Option 2 and an additional $1.22 in

Option 4.
Figure 14 Average Fare and TCTD Subsidy for Existing Private Dial-A-Ride Trips within Zones, 5 to 10 miles, May
2018
Option 4
e $4 requlr. §2 discounted, | $4 regule, $2 discounied, | $4 requr. $2 discounied, | $4 regular. §2 discounied, 5
 Fare Scenario 10 miles included, $0.50 | 5 mites included. $0.50 | 10 miles included, $1.00 per|  miles included, $1.00 per
per addional mile per additonal mile addiional mile additioral mile
Average Fare $2.23) E 5283 | [ 5224 T 8345 |
% Change 34% 71% 35% 108%
FareRevenue [, 8360 [0 §483 s | (B e $748
TCTD Cost $3973 $3,973 $3,973 $3973 $3,973
% Subsidy N% 88% 85% 88% 81%

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 15



Demand-Response Fare Policy Review and Analysis
Tilamock County Transportation District

Medicaid Trips (Hypothetical)

Figure 15 estimates fare revenues and farebox recovery for cross-zone NW Rides trips within Tillamook
County from May 2018. These trips are used as the basis for a hypothetical scenario where fare policy and
expanded service enable more cross-zone demand-response trips.

With the existing $12.50 flat fare, TCTD would recover 29% of costs. Option 3 has nearly the same
recovery percentage, while Options 1 and 2 are lower and Option 4 is higher.

Figure 15 Hypothetical Fare Revenue and TCTD Subsidy Assuming Existing Cross-Zone NW Rides Trips within
Tillamook County as Private Trips (Based on May 2018 Data)

bass 10 base, 5
$2 base, 10 miles RIBBEMES | o ot s o | 62.0mse. B 00s iddes

Fare Scenano |  $1250 Flat Fare 'm:;é:&j-:lew %ﬁ :;:ef $1.00 per addiioral mile | $1.00 per addifonal i
Fare Revenue |BRNS4.288) Fﬁw 53266 | 4188 5.886
TCTDCost |  $14,612 $14,612 $14,612 §14,612 $14,612
% Subsidy 71% 83% 78% 1% 60%

NelsoniNygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 16




Demand-Response Fare Policy Review and Analysis
Tillamook County Transportation District

Analysis Based on Potential TCTD Service Enhancements

The analysis in this section analyzes fare revenues assuming several potential levels of TCTD investment
in enhancing demand-response service.

Resource Scenarios

The required TCTD subsidy was estimated based on different resource scenarios, based on number of
annual vehicle hours and cost. These scenarios ranged from:

(A) one vehicle operating four hours per day (1,040 annual vehicle hours)

(B) one vehicle operating eight hours per day (2,080 annual vehicle hours)

(C) two vehicles operating sixteen total hours per day (4,160 annual vehicle hours)

The costs range from $60,000 to $241,000 annually, based on a cost of $58 per vehicle hour (TCTD,

2018). In practice, costs may be less since expanding DAR service can allow more efficient use of drivers
who are already providing NW Rides trips. These drivers are currently part-time and TCTD would incur
an incremental cost of paying benefits by converting these drivers to full-time.

Summary of Results

Figure 16 summarizes the analysis results.

Figure 16

The share of the total cost to expand service that TCTD would need to subsidize is relatively
consistent across the fare options.

~  Option 1 would require TCTD to subsidize between 73% to 82% of the total cost
— Option 4 would require a subsidy of between 37% and 55% of the cost.

Considering Service Scenario C, which would provide an additional 4,160 service hours, the cost
to TCTD would likely range from $177,000 to $196,000 with Option 1, to $88,000 - $132,000 for

Option 4.

Summary of Service Scenarios and TCTD Subsidized Cost

Service | Vehicle' | Annual
Scenario| Hours

Cost Subsidized by TCTD (Total Cost-Fare Revenuejand % of Total

Existing Fare
Model

Option 2

resomas] smomaim | 20 Bt s s s e

A 1040 $60,000 $34,000- 39,000 | $44,000-$49,000 | $39,000-$45,000 | $32,000-$41,000 | $22,000 -$33,000
57%-65% 73%-82% 65% - 75% 53%-68% 37% - 55%

5 2080 $121.000 $69,000-%80,000 | $89,000-$98,000 | $79,000-$90,000 | $65,000-$83,000 | $45,000 - $66,000
57% - 66% 74% -81% 65% - 74% 54% -69% 37% -55%

c 4160 $241,000 $137,000 - $159,000 | $177,000 - $196,000 | $156,000 - $180,000 | $130,000 - $165,000 | $88,000 - $132,000

57% - 66%

73%-81%

65%-75%

54% - 68%

37% - 55%

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates inc. | 17



Demand-Response Fare Policy Review and Analysis
Tillamook County Transportation District

Methodology Details

This section explains the how the above estimates were developed. Two methods were used to estimate
the required TCTD subsidy, one based on an estimate of the farebox recovery and one based on an
assumed productivity. Applicable to both approaches, it was estimated that with a new fare structure, 2%
of new trips would be update 10 miles, 50% would be between 10 and 20 miles, and 48% would be
between 20 and 35 miles. This was based on existing demand-response travel patterns (see Travel
Distances above).

* Method #1: Total Cost and TCTD Subsidy. Figure 17 provides an estimate of the subsidy
(total cost, less fare revenues) that TCTD would need to provide to operate each level of service
with the existing Fare Model and Options 1-4. An average farebox recovery was assumed for each
option, calculated based on the farebox recovery for the three sample trips in Figure 12, weighted
by the share of demand-response trips with the same length as the sample trip. The subsidy was
calculated as the annual cost for each service scenario, multiplied by the average farebox recovery
for each fare option.

* Method #2: Productivity and Average Fare. Figure 18 provides a second estimate of the
subsidy, based on productivity, assumed to be two passengers per vehicle hour. An average fare
for each option was calculated based on the average fare for the three sample trips in Figure 12,
weighted by the share of demand-response trips with the same length as the sample trip. The
subsidy was calculated as the number of vehicle hours for each service scenario, multiplied by a
productivity of two trips per vehicle, multiplied by the average fare for each fare option.

There is some uncertainty in each method. The average farebox recovery was calculated for individual
passengers, and doesn’t account for shared trips when a vehicle may be carrying multiple passengers. It
was also calculated based on the cost for a distinct trip and doesn’t account for time when a vehicle may
be “deadheading,” e.g., traveling without carrying any passengers. The actual productivity may be more or
less than two passengers, although this rate is within the typical range for demand-responsive service (1-4
passengers per revenue hour), and for current TCTD operations. The results of the two methods can be
considered a range. Figure 19 summarizes the share of cost that would be subsidized based on each
method of estimating fare revenues.

NelsoniNygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 18



Demand-Response Fare Policy Review and Analysis
Tillamook Caunty Transportation District

Figure 17 TCTD Subsidy for Expanded Dial-A-Ride Service, Conceptual Service Levels Method #1: Based on Cost
and Assumed TCTD Subsidy

Daily | Annual
Vehicle | Vehicle | Annual
Haurs: Cost

Service
- Scenario

Existing Fare

Hours | Model i i Option 3

$2 base, 10 miles included,
$0.50 per addifional mile

$2 base, 5 miles included, | $2 base, 10 miles included, | $2 base, 5 miles included,
$0.50 per addifonal mile | $1.00 per additonal mle | $1.00 per additional mite

Fare Scenario=> $12.50 Flat Fare

Average TCTD Subsidy=> 81% 75%
A 4 1,040 | $60,000 | ] $49000
B 8 | 2080 | $121000 | =
c 16 | 4160 | $241000

Figure 18 TCTD Subsidy for Expanded Dial-A-Ride Service, Conceptual Service Levels, Method #2: Based on
Assumed Productivity and Average Fare

Cost Subsidized by TCTD (Total Cost - Fare Revenue)

Service

Daily | Annual | Annaal Existing Fare ;
Trips™ | Trips® | Cost Model Option 4 Option 2 [ Option 3 Option4

 Scenario
Average Fare=> $13 38 $10 $13 $18
A 8 2080 | $60,000 |1 ! $34,000 $44,000 $39,000 $32,000 | $22000
B 16 4160 [$121,000 [L___569,000 00 579,000 L $65000 $45,000
C 32 8320 |$241,000 3 ) , 21000

* Based on an assumed productivily of 2 passengers per haur

Figure 19 Share of Costs Subsidized by TCTD, Method #1 and Method #2

Existing Fare

Method Model ion: i Option 3

$12.50 Flat Fare $2 base, 10 miles included, [$2 base, 5 miles included, $0.50| $2 base, 10 miles included, | $2 base, 5 miles included,

’ $0.50 per additional mile per additional mile $1.00 per additional mile $1.00 per additional mile
Method #1 66% 81% 75% 68% 55%
Method #2 57% 73% 65% 54% 37%

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 19



Demand-Response Fare Policy Review and Analysis
Tillamook County Transportation District

SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

This memorandum investigates fare policies that can facilitate a range of demand-response trips across
Tillamook County. The current zone-based demand-response system limits the types of services that
TCTD can feasibly offer because the $12.50 flat fare for private trips between the existing Dial-A-Ride
zones is disproportionately high for some trips, but does not cover enough of TCTD’s costs in other cases.
A fare policy that takes trip distance into account allows TCTD to charge a more equitable fare and allows
it to more equitably cover a share of its costs for different trips within the county.

This memorandum analyzes the fare revenue implications of four potential options for a distance-based
fare, based on both sample trips of different lengths and overall trip patterns TCTD provides today. The
memorandum also considers three conceptual scenarios representing different levels of TCTD investment
in increasing demand-response service capacity. The evaluation is intended to help TCTD balance
expenditures and revenues in a way that meets its goals. Evaluation of a new fare policy can be considered
from both a customer perspective and the agency’s perspective.

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. 120



Demand-Respense Fare Policy Review and Analysis
Tillamook County Transportation District

Customer Perspective

From a customer perspective, key considerations include how much a trip will cost, its cost compared to
what they were paying before, and its cost relative to other potential transportation options. TCTD needs
to consider both passengers using demand-response service for shorter trips within the current zones, and
a potentially expanded market for longer trips (as well as trips within North and South County that are
currently served by volunteers). Affordability is an important factor as TCTD continues to provide a
mobility option for people with limited income.

Figure 20 summarizes the four fare policy options for the sample trips described above (ranging from 10
miles to almost 30 miles). The table shows how fare costs can vary for different trips based on distance.

Takeaways include:

= Most current passengers are traveling within zones and are making relatively short trips (mostly
less than five miles, and nearly all less than ten miles). Including five or ten miles in the base fare
minimizes the impact on existing passengers. Including ten miles in the base fare presents the
least change (Options 1 and 3). Option 2, which charges $0.50 per mile above five miles, has a
smaller impact compared to the $1 per mile fare in Option 4.

= All options reduce fare costs for current cross-zone trips relative to the current fare structure,
except for the longest trips. This is particularly true for moderate-length trips that happen to cross
the existing DAR zone boundaries. Option 2, for example, would charge $4.50 for a 10-mile trip
that would cost $12.50 under the current structure. With Option 2, customers also pay the most
consistent share of TCTD costs for each of the three sample trips.

= A per-mile fare of $0.50 to $1.00 is typical of other agencies that offer a general public demand-
response service, based on the peer comparison. These are bookend values used for this analysis,
but an intermediate value may be appropriate, particularly coupled with options that include 10
miles in the base fare. For longer trips, the $1 per mile cost may not be affordable for some
residents; for example, it would cost $20 to travel between Tillamook and Manzanita in Option 3
and $25 in Option 4, although this is still lower than many private transportation services. Using
demand-response service to transfer to a TCTD fixed-route bus would also remain a more
affordable option.

Figure 20 Fare Options for Sample Trips (Reproduced from Figure 12)

Length Existing Fare

Option 1 I Option 2

Sample Trips (miles) Modetl Option 3 Option 4
$2 base, 10 miles $2 base, 5 miles $2 base, 10 miles $2 base, 5 miles
Fare Option Description $12.50 Flat Fare included, $0.50 per included, $0.50 per included, $1.00 per | included, $1.00 per
additional mile additional mile additional mile additional mite
Base Fare $12.50 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00
Miles Included in Base Fare No Limiit 10 5 10 5
Additional Fare per Mile $0.00 $0.50 $0.50 $1.00 $1.00
" 1 A | 57
Garibaldi-Tillamook 10 Farg - 5200 e $200 20
% Subsidy 135% a0 | 7% | % | b B4%
T TE= = — P = i
Rockaway Beach- o Fare | $1250 || §450 740 7.80 §1280 |
Tillamook wowsiy [ 57%  F 8% | | 75% | % | 5%
1 - 5 5 :
Manzanita-Tillamook 2 i’ 2 1080 350 -
% Subsidy 4 52%

Nelson\Nygaard Consulfing Associates Irc. | 21




Demand-Response Fare Policy Review and Analysis
Tillamock County Transportation District

Agency Perspective

From TCTD’s perspective, the key considerations are how much revenue is generated from fares and
whether the net cost to expand demand-response service is sustainable. The agency perspective also
includes the administrative time and partnerships needed to implement and administer the fare policy,
and how the policy compares to peer agencies. These are important considerations related to financial
sustainability, funding applications, and future growth. Although it is more complex than a flat fare, given
TCTD’s investment in the EcoLane software a per-mile fare should be straightforward to implement and
communicate to TCTD customers.

Figure 21 summarizes the three conceptual service scenarios for each fare policy option. The estimated
costs represent the operating expenses remaining (i.e., net cost or subsidy) after subtracting fare
revenues. On a percentage basis, the net costs are consistent within each fare option, regardless of the
total operating investment. TCTD must determine what is a sustainable investment given its financial
resources, and how much of that service it expects riders to cover through fares. Option 1 generates the
least fare revenue, and thus has the highest remaining cost. Options 2, 3 and 4 illustrate progressively
increasing revenues; with Option 4 TCTD’s remaining costs would be approximately 35 to 55% of the total
cost to provide the service.

Although they do not represent a large volume of trips, depending on the fare model selected TCTD may
need to evaluate whether to limit the distance of a demand-response trip for a transfer to fixed-route
service, currently provided at no charge. This could be five or 10 miles.

Figure 21 Summary of Service Scenarios and TCTD Subsidized Cost (Reproduced from Figure 16)

] Cost Subsidized by TCTD (Total Cost - Fare Revenue} and % of Total

Service | Vehicle | Annuel Existing Fare
Model Option 2

Fa!e'éceﬂar509 Sosrmeae | 20 10Mis ckoen | 52base S mies noiosa | 52 bese 10 mies incded S2bisa. 5 mies ek

S50 per addfiord mide | $0.50 peracdsorai mis | $1.00 pr addibonal mke $1.00 per addiond e

A 1040 $60.000 $34,000-$39,000 | $44,000- $49,000 $39,000 - $45,000 | $32,000 - $41,000 $22,000 - $33,000
, ! ' 57%-65% 73%-82% 65%-75% 53%-68% 37%-55%

3 2080 $121000 $69,000 - $80,000 | $89,000 - $98,000 $79,000-$90,000 | $65,000 - $83,000 $45,000 - $66,000
4 ' 57%-66% 74%-81% 65% -74% 54% - 69% 37%-55%

C 4160 $241.000 $137,000 - $159,000| $177,000 - $196,000 $156,000 - $180,000 | $130,000 - $165,000 $88,000 - $132,000
' ' | 57%-66% 73%-81% 65%-75% 54% -68% 37%-55%

Evaluation and Monitoring

The analysis presented in this memo is intended to provide TCTD with a comparison of alternative fare
scenarios and a budgetary range for the cost to expand demand-response service. After TCTD selects and
implements a new fare policy and service changes are implemented, this analysis could be updated using
new data from EcoLane and the policy refined (e.g., adjustment to the base fare, fare per-mile, and/or
distance included in the base fare) based on passenger demand, operational experience, and agency
financial considerations.

NelsoniNygaard Consulting Assaciates Inc. | 22






v | -ouy sejenossy Bunjnsuoy preebANiUOS|EN

S8|it (g-1 | J0j 007 LS PUB SBIW 04-0 10} 00°9$ St a1} Aem-2u0 3py-y-jeid a1and

[BfBUSS) "8G 0} Gy wiol sassed A|uuows pue po'eS 0) 0S4 Woyy sessed Aep (eoo| Buuamoj ‘gL0z/1// Ue saie) pasinal 0135 Tpa yoealnO-Aoliod-S18 4/90/8 | 0z/SPEO[ANAUSILOD-GMBI0 JISUEUODSIOMU MMM/ GHY
(1135 [/] ‘So5sEd-SaleyWoT suUnayapI WA T-aRY ‘Asliep edep (9] ‘BNpelas-aley/eDediisUe/Sh o UjooUI| 00 MAWY]-ORY 'SSUOZ § Yiim 'sainol Ajiosajui ja) suoz Jad | § ‘Aiunog ujoourt [G] -aoisas

SIN0-PEXI} LWL SIUBISIP BJIU-r/ B pUOASq SdUl Bp1y-y-jeiq J0g 8w Jad G/ 'c¢ ‘SISSE-Sale-4/uio0 JSUBWEED MAM.Ony Nsuel] Wweliel) [¢] 'sese) AInisjut 10f waysAs suoz-yiny ‘SaIe)/II0d JISUEISEsSapeoses)/.any
137 [¢] TGS SejeISsnoiios JsUeJuISeq MMWYaRYy ‘Jisuel} uiseg [Z1 'GL$ 10 0c$ o) a|geyene si pied yound epiy-y-[er] spu-0| v ‘Aljigesip e yjim sjdoad Jo $101uas 10} 051§ 40 00'€S

3le sdi) apiy-y-|eig "duy punol e o} 0z§ pue ‘pueflod o) duj Aem-auc e Joj G1$ sabieys gD TP0TepH-E-[el;bl0 JISUBLUODSI0MU MY GRY PUE [P]0]-S3SSEG/DIO ISUENUODaIOMU MMM/ SARY ‘G101 (1] selon

0v$ §LL$ Ges 0528 AR - - Ge$ 0528 AR (Y LOA) Aunod [iywe
00'2$ = = 00'8$-006$ | 02$ 00'1$ 0g$ 00'€$ 00'1$ £ (@133) yusiq -dsuel] sudwig yesung

- | ov9$-0ces | 021$-G9$ | 0598 | 06°G8-GTE€S | viS 0803 €59 06'9$ 09'1$ o Aoyiny “dsues] Aejlep edeN
- 00'1$ - . 00'/% - - - - 00'1$ 5 JoUIsIq SoIIeg "dsuel | Ajunog ujooun
00'2$ 63 00'e$ 05'1$ 8l$ 05°0% 9e$ 00€$ 00'L$ y WAISAS Wsues | wejle[)

. 05'¢$ 001$ 52'9% L8 Gl$ §2'0$ 0e$ 0528 05'1$ ¢ (130) ¥isue| jse3 sepeose))
- 00¢$ - - - 1z$ 5L0% 5% 00°€$ 05'L$ z 90INIBG Yisues| uiseg
- 00'€$-05'1$ = - 009$-05t$ | 0€$ - 0v$ 05'1$ 05'LS |+ (aLDL) vousiq dsues| Aunod oowel|i]

aply-y-eid / vay ale4 pajunodsiq 8IN0Y-paxid (2907

sa1ouaby JayjQ 0) saied g1l jo uosuedwo) Z ainbyi4

*so10UR8 e I9Y30 0] saxe] (I DL sereduiod g aandig

1oUlsI oliepodsuR ] AJUnog jooweljit
sisAjpuy pup maiaay Adijod 2ipg asuodsay-pubwiag

@HNQ PUTAL
MG \ZZ






